Vlrglnla Tobacco Reglon |
| Rewtahzatlon Commuss:on

S Wlnter -203
e Commlttee & Co

Capltal Ballroom L
700 East Mam Street
Rlchmond VA




ITINERARY
Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
Winter 2023 Tobacco Commission Meetings
: January 4 - 5, 2023
Homewood Suites by Hilton - Richmond Downtown

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 4, 2023

ABINGDON GROUP TRAVEL BY RICHMOND STATE PLAN
{arrive at alrport 30 minutes early)

10:50 am - Depart Virginia Highlands Airport (KVJI) - 18521 Lee Highway, Abingdon
11357 am - Arrive Richmond Airport {RIC) - Virginia Department of Aviation (KRIC)
5702 Gulifstream Road, Richmond

12:00 pm - Pick up @ Richmond Airport by Virginia Airlink Shuttle Service. Transport to Hamptan
Inn & Suites by Hilton - Richmond Downtown 700 East Main Street, Richmond {(drop
off on 7' & Frankin Street side)

~~~ LUNCH ON YOUR OWN ~~~

2:00 - 3:30 PM SOUTHERN VIRGINIA COMMITTEE
3:30 - 3:45 PM ~~~ BREAK ~~~
3:45-5:15 PM SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMITTEE

3:00 P.M. - HOTEL CHECK-IN TIME
Hampton Inn & Suites by Hilton - Richmond Downtown
700 East Main Street, Richmond (enter on 7% & Franklin Street side)

6:30 - 9:00 PM - RECEPTION @ CAPITAL ALE HOUSE, MUSIC HALL ROOM
623 East Main Street, Richmond

THURSDAY, JANUARY 5, 2023

9:00 - 9:45 AM EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

9:45 - 10:45 AM STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE

10:45 - 11:00 AM ~~~ BREAK ~~~

11:00 AM BOX LUNCH SERVED (Eat During Orientation Presentation)
| 11:00 AM - HOTEL CHECK-IN TIME

11:00 - 12:15 PM  ORIENTATION FOR FULL COMMISSION

12:15 -~ 1:15 PM  REGULAR FULL COMMISSION MEETING

ABINGDON GROUP TRAVEL BY RICHMOND STATE PLAN

1:45 pm - Pick up from hotel by Virginia Alrlink Shuttle Service. Transport to Richmond
Afrport (Virginia Department of Aviation ) - 5702 Guifstream Road, Richmond

2:30 pm - Depart Richmond Airport (RIC) by Virginia Department of Aviation
4:00 pm - Arrive Abingdon - Virginia Highlands Airport (KVJI)

.
.




TABLE OF CONTENTS
Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
Winter 2023 Committee & Commission Meetings
Homewood Suites by Hilton - Richmond Downtown
Capital Baliroom
Richmond, Virginia

January 4 - 5, 2023

MEETING LOGISTICS
itinerary

SOUTHERN VIRGINIA COMMITTEE ......00veunvee erreriresereraieereceriterieaterrey 3

Staff Summaries & Recommendations
Extensions & Modifications
FY2023 Guidelines & Request for Proposals

SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMITTEE

Staff Summaries & Recommendatmns
Extensions and Modifications
FY2023 Guidelines & Request for Proposals

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ....iviiiiiinnie e Crecseiserirrserenass

Strategic Plan 2023-2025
Feedback SUMMAry....ccoiiiianisianssenas PPN

FULL COMMISSION ..oviveins Cee e nen e e v e e dtte e et e e i re R RSNt r e e
Agenda
Orientation
TROF & CBL Loan Update
Financial SUMMANY ..iciiiieiiriniiissimiommississnnsiasatinsiisiosinieens e 140
Statement of Revenues, Expend1tures & Changes
Current Committee Membership.......c.covviiiviiinnnns ereriseersiiihersnrrss




SOUTHERN VIRGINIA
-~ COMMITTEE



= In-Person Meeting »

AGENDA

SOUTHERN VIRGINIA COMMITTEE
Homewood Suites by Hilton, Capital Ballroom
700 East Main Street, Richmond, VA 23219
Wednesday, January 4, 2023
2:00 P.M.

In accordance with §2.2-3708.3 of the Code of Virginia, public access for this meeting is being provided both in person and
through electronic communications means. Video will not be used for this meeting, only audio. The public may remotely
participate in this meeting by utilizing the following meeting link:

https:/virginiatobaccocemmission.my.webex com/virginiatobaccocommission.my/L. php?MTID=m4c 1 0bbea837293ba83eb494fdfedeab

If participating by phone, please dial:
1-408-418-9388 (toll) and enter meeting number: 2631 326 6747 and password: 78495872

If during the meeting electronic transmission fails, the public may alert the Comunission by calling 804-894-9652 or
emailing jbutler@revitalizeva.org. If alerted to a transmission failure, the Committee shall recess until public access is
restored.

Welcome and Call to Oxder My, Buddy Shelton, Chair
Call of the Roll Mr. Andy Sorrell, Acting Director
Approval of the_ 10/5/22 Minutes (published on website)

Public Comment

FY 2023 Southern Va. Applications Ms, Sarah Capps, Southern Regional Director
Extensions & Modifications Ms. Sarah Capps, Southern Regional Director

Other Business M. Andy Sorrell, Acting Director
Public Comment

Adjournment



FY23 Southern Virginia Program
Staff Summaries and Recommendations
January 4, 2023

'The Toobacco Region Revitalization Commission received eighteen applications by the October 20, 2022
application deadline for the FY23 SouthetnVitginia Program, One was “withdrawn”, The remaining
applications are grouped below by investment category. The Southern Virginia Committee will act on
these applications at its meeting scheduled for Januvary 4, 2023, at 2:00 p.m.

Req# Organization Project Title Requested Staff Rec

Amount

Brunswick County Industrial

Development Authority Brunswick County Produce Project $§ 500,000 § 500,000

Southside Virginia Beef Producers
. Increase Efficiency and Their Bottom
4119 Mecldenburg County Line Through Use of Certifiable
Livestock Scales

$ 7500 $ 7,500

4114 Prince Bdward County Project Clementine $ 75,000
Vitginia Cattleman’s Inventoty Advance Incentive and Cattle
418 Association Processing Initiative Fund $ 330000

Brunswick County Industrial

4121 Development Authority Sledge and Batkley § 437,000 § 437,000
4136 Davick County Beonomic o oy Mill/Breehouse Brewer § 30000 § 30,000
Development Authority y ‘ ’ ’
4105 SOVA Ionovation Hub SOVA Innovation Campus Construction  $ 400,000 § 400,000
Corporation
TRRC — FY23 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Suramaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 1

e



Refer to CBL,

122  City of Ermporia Putensions of Water and Sewer to § 840,000  forLoan of
orwood Propetty §1,680.000
. Vitginia Intesnational Raceway Water
4124  Halifax County Supply Intesconnection - Halifax County $ 745,259 $§ 546,029
] Vitginia's Growth Alliance Site _ SN
4104  Mecklenburg County Development Project $ 602,210 8 602,210
41p3  Pauick County Heonomic  pq, et Corporate Park Shell Building ~ § 95850 & 95850
Development Authotity P & ’ ’
Megasite - Master Planning, Conceptual
4111 Sussex County Engineering, & Water Line Extension § 250,000 § 250,000
_ . Herman Road Lake Gaston Day Use Park
4112 Brunswick County - Kayak and Canoe Lavnch § 230,400
4108, Cumberland County Opetation Connect-The-Dots & 218,667 § 218,000
National D-DAY Memorial ~— National D-Day Memorial Motor Pool ‘ .
4113 Foundation L.TD Museum and Courtyard $ 350000 % 350,000
4106  Town of Blackstone Operation Swedish Chef § 581,000 § 581,000
4099 West Piedmont Planning Southetn Virginia Regional Branding and . § 50000 $ 50,000

District Commission

Marketing Plan

TOTAL (17 requests): $5742,886 $ 4,702,989

TRRC — F¥23 Sauthern Virginia Program — Staff Summaties & Recommendations - Januacy 2023 page 2

—-G—




L

Agtbusiness

Brunswick County Industrial Development Authority
Brunswick County Produce Project (#4107)
$500,000 Requested

Project Summary:

This project is a public-private partnership between Brunswick County’s IDA and Southside Vitginia Vegetable
Packing, LLC (SVVP) to consttuct 2 produce ptocessing facility at the 1-85 Business Patk in Alberta, VA. The
SVVP is comptised of and owned equally by eight local farms participating in otganic produce production,
aggregation, and distribution. Demand for their products has led to multiple expansions of theit farming
operations over the past five years. To accommodate the need for further expansion in production, a large-scale
produce processing facility is sequited, This project will grow to support 60 jobs from an estimated 20 farms
across Southern Vieginia and the surrounding area by yeat five of operations. A 450,000 sq. ft. building will
include climate-controlled intake areas with forced ait-cooling system, industsial ice making equipment, two
processing lines, and ample cold storage and loading docks to facilitate final disttibution of produce.

Matching Funds:
A total of $3,619,000 including:

e $435,000 state funding from VDACS AFID Facilities grant award,

o $1,184,000 federal award from the US Economic Development Administration,
e  $200,000 cash from Brunswick County IDA towards A&E and construction.

®

$1,800,000 loan by Brunswick County IDA with private lender, backed by USDA.

Project Outputs:

e Consttuction of a 450,000 sq. ft. produce handling facility on 4.25 actes at -85 Business Park.

e Assistin development of 2 business projected to have $8.3 million in annual sales; and growing annual
putchasing to suppost 60 jobs, and 20 farms across Southern Vitginia,

Staff Comments: :

The Commission approved a $500,000 grant and $300,000 loan in September 2021, to support the Brunswick
County Produce Project. Due to sising construction costs bids were significantly over budget and the new
estimated cost for the facility is $5,619,000. A detailed cost estimate for copstruction was provided. An additional
$500,000 is requested from the Commission and match from other funding soutces are at $4,619,000 including 2
$1.8 million private loan. In light of this new loan amount, the smaller $300K loan offer from the Commission
was declined by the IDA, Old Dominion Otganic Farm (ODO) is one of eight member farms that are equal
membets in the Southetn. Virginia Vegetable Packing, LLC, which collaborates in organic produce production,
aggregation and distribution, This project provides for direct Agribusiness outcomes for increasing net farm
income in the region and supports 2 ptivate producer collaborative. A schematic of the layout for the Vegetable
Packing Facility, as well as the Business Plan and competitive analysis wete provided. Water, sewet, three-phase
electric and fiber access are already available at the site.

Financial Viability Assessment:
There is demonsttated demand for more organic vegetable products in the market; and a proven track record of
success by the identified operation. With this grant, all financing for construction will be secared.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of $500,000 grant award, contingent oh executive
ditector’s approval of final lease agteement with Southern Virginia Vegetable Packing LLC.

TRRC - FY23 Southera Virginia Program — Staff Summaties & Recommendations - January 2023 page 3

e I



Mecklenburg County

Southside Vitginia Beef Producets Inctease Efficiency and Their Bottom Line Through
Use of Certifiable Livestock Scales (#4119)

$7,500 Requested

Project Summary:

Grant funds are requested to suppott 50% of equipment purchases, and certification costs for mobile legal for
trade sales to benefit cattle farmers in Mecklenburg, Brunswick and Charlotte Counties. Beef Cattle producers
have the opportunity to captute added value by masketing their feeder cattle in uniform lots by weight and sex
(teack load of 48,000-50,000 pounds) while minimizing costs for transportation and subsequent shrink.
However, most of Virginia’s cattle hetds ate not large enough to have enough head of same sex, similar weight
feeder cattle for a 48-50,000 pound truck load to allow cattle to be directly loaded at farm and weighed on truck
across certified truck scales. Marketing ttuck load lots takes cooperation of like-minded producers working
together, but is hindered by the lack of available legal for trade scales to allow weighing individual producet’s
calves before loading the truck on the fasm. The purchase scales to be utilized from a base location in
Mecklenbutg County will support producers marketing their feeder cattle in cooperation with other producets, as
well as efforts to market finished cattle for direct sales.

Martching Funds:
o $6,000 Mecklenburg County, match on equipment purchase and cettification
s $1,500 Lake County SWCD contribution towards certification and maintenance

Project Outputs!

¢ Purchase and cestification of legal for trade scales.

Staft Comments: :

This project reflects a modest request for a project that will benefit many producers in the region. The County is
partnering with Lake County Soil and Water Conservation District, who will coordinate with livestock markets
and with local VCE agents, and will be responsible for managing the equipment including annual certification
and maintenance costs, Virginia cattle producets have a history of cooperating to market feeder cattle in uniform
truck load lots thru local producer groups, such as the Amelia Area Cattlemen, LLC (AAC) utilizing the Virginia
Quality Assured Feeder Cattle Program (VQA) and the Virginia Cattlemen’s Tel-O-Auction, The nearest set of
lepal for trade scales for use by cattle producers in the Mecklenburg County atea is managed from Buckingham
County by the Buckingham Cattleman’s Association, which is a logistical burden and not practical for
maximizing producer coopesation, Letters of support were provided from 22 cattle producers in Mecklenbuig
County; and the project is expected to benefit producers in at least three Southern Virginia counties. The $15,000
project budget includes two equipment estimates totaling $11,494, annual scales certification costs at §1,800
(8600 X 3 yeats), and $1,706 for replacement parts and transpottation costs.

Financial Viability Assessment: Long-term commitment by the Lake County Soil and Water Consetvation
District to coordinate scales, and for operation and maintenance of the equipment.

4

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends a $7,500 grant award for 50% of the equipment purchases,
and third-patty certification and maintenance costs duting the three-year grant period.

TRRG ~ FY23 Southern Virginia Progeam — Staff Summaries & Recominendations ~ January 2023 page 4

-8-




Prince Edward County
Project Clementine (#4114)
$75,000 Requested

Project Summaty:

Project Clementine is 2 small, multi-species, red meat processing plant whose operations center on 1) fee
processing of beef, lamb, and goats for local Southside Virginia producers and 2) processing and manufactating -
of wholesale and retail cuts for local restaurants, hotels, and grocers as well as retail consumers especially seeking
Halal meats. Project Clementine will consist of a 32X 92’ square foot steel building constructed on a 2.5-acxe
parcel in the Prince Edward County Business Park. Site planning is underway and will be considered for approval
by Prince Edward County shortly after its completion.

Matching Funds:

$684,500 has been preseated in matching funds, detailed below:
s $100,000 application for the VDACS Agticulture and Fogestry Industifes Development (AFID) Fund
o  $584,500 in loan approved by private lender.

Project Outputs:
o Patinto operation a small red meat processing plan,
e Anestimated 1,122 beef producers from Prince Bdward and seven surrounding counties will have access
to the facility; however the ptimary benefit is expected to accrue to small ruminant producers.
s  Net §776,189 in revenue in its first yeat of operation.

Staff Comments!

Project Clementine will help expand meat processing by creating a new value-added facility that will source from
producers of cattle and small ruminants in the Southetn Virginia region. The project enjoys the support of the
locality, which is assisting the firm to locate in the Prince Edward County Business Patk for the operation.
Market planning was well-researched, citing the “Demand Estimation for a Red Meat Processing Pacility in
Southern Virginia” study produced by Longwood Small Business Development Center and “A Stady of Small-
Volume Red Meat Processing in Virginia” produced in September 2020 by Matson Consulting and Vitginia
FAIRS. A weli-organized business plan for the project was included, which provided detailed information about
the planned facility. In addition, the applicant provided several projected monthly orders by prospective
customers of the facility demonstrating demand particulatly for lamb and goats, and for beef cattle,

Financial Viability Assessment:
Thete is a shortage of meat processing facilities in the Southern Virginia region. Given this fact, along with the

extensive business plan and encoutaging pipeline of prospective customers, it is anticipated that the facility will
have great potential for success.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff reccommends a $75,000 grant, to support up to 25% of approved equipment costs; contingent on
executive director’s approval of final petformance agreement.

TRRC -~ FY23 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 5

-9-




Virginia Cattleman’s Association
Inventory Advance Incentive and Cattle Processing Initiative Fund (#4118)
$330,000 Requested '

Project Sumnary:

Grant funds are requested by the Virginia Cattleman’s Association with §300,000 towatd incentive fund and
$30,000 for contractual services related to start-up of the program; to be matched by $300,000 from the Virginia
Cattle Tndustry Board for the incentive fund and $30,000 in-kind from VCA, The primary objective of this
project is to suppott expansion of the finished cattle market in Virginia to provide cattlemen with the
opportunity to sell their cattle and/or beef locally for a higher return. USDA statistics show a decrease to 36.8%
in 2021, for US cattle producet’s shate of tetail value of beef; down from 51.5% in 2015, An inventoty advance
purchase incentive fund will be established, providing for an increase in the number of Virginia cattle finished by
offering incentive for the advance putchase of cattle processed for USDA certified beef sale,

The program will be limited to fatm operations that raise and finish cattle in the Commonwealth of Virginia,
Vitginia-soutced cattle is ate any cattle that ate physically located in Virginia, owned by a Vitginia producet o
agribusiness and have been finished in Vitginia for at least 30 days. Organizations or agribusinesses who source
Virginia cattle to process in Virginia under USDA inspection (co-matketers) are eligible; and agribusinesses
operations processing at least 16 cattle annually under USDA inspection, for commercial or tetail sales are also
eligible for this incentive program. Based on the cuttent price of fed cattle at ~ $1,50 per pound, 2 1,300 pound
steer would cost approximately $2,000 pet head. This unit value of §2,000 will be used for allotment of the
available program funding which are proposed can suppott putchase of ~ 300 cattle, All advance incentives will
be approved for each applicant, based on an increase in the number of Virginia-sourced cattle processed
annually, with transactions requited to be sepotted to VCA on an approved schedule.

Martching Funds:
e $300,000 application to the Virginia Cattle Industry Board
¢  $30,000 in-kind match by Virginia Cattleman’s Association fot ptoject administration

Project Outpuits!

o Support 25 cattle farm businesses and/or co-marketing agribusiness organizations providing an increase
in annual sales revenue by an average of $100,000 annually per farm business,

e Provide incentive fund for an estimate 300 head of cattle annually; estimating for an 8-week cash cycle,
allowing the program to suppost an increase in up to 2,000 head of Virginia sourced cattle per yeat.

Staff Comments:

This project provides an immediate solution to address a known bartier for expanding beef processing. The
primary beneficiaty of the project are beef cattle farmers and co-marketing agribusiness organizations supporting
the sale of USDA cettified beef products originating from Vitginia, Two categoties ate identified for nonprofit
and private entity eligibility: 1) entities source Virginia cattle to process in Virginia under USDA inspection
(examples of eligible Tobacco Region beef producers inclade BCA Beef, Grayson Beef, Landcrafted Food, -
Vitginia Beef Company, and Vitginia Farm Fresh Meats; 2) Virginia Agribusinesses that finish their own cattle in
Vitginia and have them process under USDA inspection (examples include Black Locust Beef, Buffalo Creek
Beef, Munsey Meats, Natural Products, 460 Meats, and others within program eligible criteria for processing at
least 15 cattle annually). A secondary beneficiary will be the USDA certified processing facilities.

While this proposal is submitted and tecommended under the Tobacco Commission’s Southern Virginia
Program, the incentive funding will be available for all eligible entities in the Tobacco Region footprint. VCA is
proposing that the Virginia Cattle Industry Board matching funds be allowed to support entities anywhete in

TRRC — FY23 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Sumtnaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 6

-10—



Vitginia so that the program can be offered statewide. 'The benefit of the program will be available for producers
in many Tobacco Region counties, with 14 localities having over 10,000 head of cattle. Here ate the highest beef
cattle producing counties for the Tobacco Region, based on the 2021 USDA Ag Census:

1) Bedford County (23,500) — number of beef cattle

2) Pittsylvania County (21,000)

3) /4) Russell County (20,500)

4)  /3) Wythe County (20,500)

5) Washington County (19,000}

6) Carroll County (14,300)

-7y Campbell County (14,200}

8) Franklin County (12,400)

9) Smyth County (12,100)

10) Scott County (11,700)

11) Lee County (11,400

12) Floyd County (10,900)

13) Tazewell County (10,300)

14) Halifax County (10,200}

15) Appomattox County (9,700)

The incentive fund will be managed similar to a loan program with payback by recipients annually. Virginia
Cattleman’s Assoclation has committed to annual reporting to the Commission; and to return of any balance in
the incentive fund to the Commission, if the program were ever to cease to exist. Distribution of the available
300 units @ $2,000 cattle unit value, will be handled equitably by VGA, with different tier levels established
based on the size of agribusiness entities applying for the funds. The $30,000 portion of TRRC request allocated
to contractual services will be used to suppott necessaty legal and accounting fees performed by a third parties
related to contract and lending documents, and for matketing costs for the new program such as website updates
and printing costs. Risks for the incentive are addressed by limiting eligibility to private entities with
demonstrated sales of USDA certified Virginia-raised beef. VCA has addressed all concerns and staff
tecommends approval of funding for this incentive program.

Financial Viability Assessment:

Tina! contract to be used for incentive program will be reviewed by general counsel as a condition of the award.
The design of the incentive program reduces risks, by offer incentive to ptivate entities with demonstrated sales
of USDA certified Vitginia-raised beef for setail and/or commercial markets.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends a $330,000 grant award contingent on the executive director’s approval of the final
contract to be used for the incentive program; and recognizing that required match will cover
participants from across the Commonwealth in order for VCA to offer the program statewide.

TRRC — FY23 Southern Vitginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 7

-11-



Brunswick County Industrial Development Authotity
Sledge and Barkley (#4121)
$437,000 Requested

Project Summary:

The Brunswick County Industriai Development Authotity BCIDA) is requesting 50% of the §874,000 costs for
essential repairs and stabilization of the lower floor of the Sledge and Basley building. This is a historic 1890’
theee-stoty, eight-bay brick building in downtown Lawtenceville. 'The BCIDA plans to development the 23,000
square foot building for mixed-use. The top two floors and an adjacent 7,000 square foot storage space will be
convested to ~ 24 apattments, The lower level on N, Main Street and the basement will be used for business
development and provides equivalent of three commercial spaces. A Market and Feasibility Study funded by 2
DHCD Industrial Revitalization Fund will determine the best use for the lower level. Considerations are funding
establishing an economic development “hub” with a shated space providing access to technology, office
equipment and business setvices, or as commetcial retail space, ot a combination of both.

The TRRC funding request is for an initial $156,000 to cover immediate structaral stabilization and water
mitigation to prevent deterioration on the lower level. The remaining $287,000 from TRRC will be combined
funding from the DIHCD IRF program to provide the necessary funding for the requited renovations and
buildout of the 1* floor and basement ateas of the building.

Marching Funds:
e  $437,000 match committed from Brunswick County IDA.
o $250,000 grant from Vitginia Depattment of Historic Resources is assist in repaiting damage from
Hutricanes Florence & Michael, including roof damage and masonry repairs ,
e  Other Match identified for total building renovations include 2 $2 million funding request to DHCD’s
IRF program, $2.7 million in state and federal historsic tax ctedits, and loan financing,

Project Outputs;
e Structural stabilization and water mitigation to lower floor walls of the Sledge and Barkley building,

o Buildout of 5,400 sq. ft. on both the lower floor and basement for business development to provide co-
working, business incubation and/ot shared retail space serving as an economic hub.

Staff Commenits: _

This applications fits within the Commission’s Business Development investment strategy. The Sledge & Barkley
Building has been vacant since 2007, and has been a community redevelopment piority since the IDA acquired
the building in 2019, It is a formes hatdwate store, and prominent historic building in the Town of
Lawrenceville, The presence of vacant o undetutilized buildings in Brunswick County, within its towns, has
been identified as an obstacle for expanding the county’s tax base. Redevelopment of the property aligns with
the 2020-2025 Community Hconomic Development Strategy prepared by Southside PDC which recommends
development of a shared wotkspace in downtown to continue redevelopment and business retention. The
Commission approved a $71,900 geant in October 2019 (TRRC #3476), which was used towards Preliminaty
Architectural Report, securing Past 1 and 2 histotic tax credits, and further design and estimates for construction,
Total estimated costs for redevelopment of the entire building is $8.62 million, An estimate for the $874,000
pottion of the TRRC project costs was provided. '

TRRC — FY23 Southern Vitginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 8

-12-



The DHCD Industrial Revitalization planning grant is expected to be followed by an IRF application in summet
2023 to suppott the larger building renovations contract. Staff notes that both the BCIDA and the Branswick
Chamber of Commetce are considering moving theit offices into this buiiding as well as a proposed Main Street
Program staff position. The synetgies associated with the co-location of setvices for business support is noted.
Meanwhile, staff has clarified that use of TRRC funding will need to be limited to areas supporting business
outcomes and not for these local offices. Staff suppotts the request for up to $150,000 of funding to be used for
necessaty costs to stabilize the building, in order to reduce further degradation, The remaining > §287,000 of
grant funds will be matched significantly when financing is in place for buildouts of this space as determined by
market demand in the feasibility study. The Commission has made similar grant investments with the Town of
Altavista for 5,625 squate feet building; and in Patrick County for a 7,178 squate foot space in Town of Stuart,
both for business development for these downtowns. The Brunswick County partners have documented
multiple prospective commetcial intetests, as well as individual and small business interests for the building. The
viahility of the Brunswick County TDA project will be fully assessed with completion of the feasibility study.
Staff supports approval of this funding request. :

Financial Viability Assessment:

Vetting of the project will be completed by DHCD, A feasibility study wiil determine the highest and best use of
the business development space. All financing will be in place before contract is initiated for the lower level and
basement renovations. Local pattners are committed to operation of the business development space.

Sraff Recommendation;

Staff recommends apptroval of a $437,000 grant allowing for release of up to $150,000 for stabilization of
the lower floor; and contingent on the balance of grant funding being released following completion of
the Market and Feasibility Study and securing all funding required for building renovations.

TRRC — FY23 Southern Virginia Progtam — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 9

-183-



Patrick County Economic Development Authority
Cockram Mill/Freehouse Brewery (7#4126)
$30,000 Requested

Project Sumimaty: ‘
Cockeam Mill, a former brick construction grist mill located on the Dan River less than one mile from the Blue
Ridge Parkway in Meadows of Dan is undetgoing sehabilitation to transform the mill building into a brewety, tap
room, restaurant, and event space, ‘The property is located on state highway 58 and also includes two smaller
buildings with concept drawing showing thesc as a craft shop and antique shop. Pattick County has limited
gathering places and cutrently does niot have an establishment such as what is planned for the revitalized mill
complex, Preehouse Brewery will need to puschase brewing equipment, hot water heaters and cold storage
equipment to commence brewety opetations which is a substantial capital investment,

Marching Funds: :
¢  $115,044 in private funds from Frechouse Brewery, in hand toward equipment costs
o $872,250 loan request from IRF to suppott tenovation costs (establishing revolving loan fund)

Project Outputs:

e Hstablish and put into operation multiple tourism businesses at the Cocksam Mill property.
e 20 new jobs at an average wage of $40,000

Staff Comments:

This project will help revitalize a blighted site along US Highway 58 between the Blue Ridge Patkway and the
Primland Resort, a scenic tourist thoroughfare. The project is a direct priotity in the West Piedmont PDC’s
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 2002-2026 Plan towards the goal of improving small business
culture actoss the region, The proposal was supported by a detailed feasibility report and end use business plan,
which cleatly outlined projected revenues and expenses, and cost estimates for renovation and equipment.

Financial Viability Assessment:

The Cockram Mill complex consists of several buildings other than the grist mill, and the brewery will be a
catalyst for renovation of other buildings for use as retail and shott term rentals, which will increase economic
development activity for Meadows of Dan and Patrick County as a whole.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff tecomimends a $30,000 grant, to support up to 25% of approved equipment costs; contingent on
executive ditector’s approval of final performance agteement.

TRRC — F¥23 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 10

...‘}4....



SOVA Innovation Hub Corporation
SOVA Innovation Campus Construction (#4105)
$400,000 Requested

Project Summaty:

The scope of work fot the SOVA Innovation Campus includes 1) redevelopment of a neighboring 13,000 square
foot building at 801 Wilbotn Ave., South Boston, VA, which is one mile from U.S. Route 58 and 2)
Development of site infrastructure to suppott environmentally-sustainable practices and agriculture and
technology demonstration areas, The Campus will fill a physical gap in the Main Street Disttict of South Boston
and suppotts the region’s emetging identity as a rural technology hub. The building, which has alteady been
substantially designed, is referted to as “The Labs” to complement “The Hub.” The Labs includes four key
components: digital makesspace, community spaces, coworking offices, and outdoor spaces, Once complete, the
SOVA Tnnovation Campus will facilitate mass collaboration among regional and state partners to find innovative
solutions to the complex challenge of cteating economic equity for Southern Virginia,

Matching Funds:
A total of $2,588,860, which includes:

s $1,688,860 application submitted in Match 2022 to the US EDA Public Works Economic Adjustment
Assmtance program

e $900,000 in funds from the SOVA Innovation Hub C01p01at10n

Project Outputs:
e 104 new jobs at an average salaty of $65,962

Staff Cormments:

The SOVA Innovation Corporation is suppozted by professional non-profit staff employed by the Mid-Atlantic
Broadband Communities Coxpcnadon TRRC Grant #3749 was previously funded at $85,300 to support
atchitectural and engmccimg design for the SOVA Innovation Labs building, The current funding request will
be used fot hard construction costs for the building, which is anticipated to be completed by 9/1/2024. The
facility is projected to mote readily enable entrepreneurship, small business development and talent retention in a
region that is experiencing population decline and a poverty level of 17%. The proposal was accompanied by
letters of suppott from Southside PDC, Brunswick County, Chatlotte County, CodeVA, Danville Science
Centet, Halifax County, Longwood Univessity, Lunenbutg County, Mecklenburg County, the Town of South
Boston, the Southern Virginia Higher Education Center, and the Southern Virginia Regional Alliance.

Financial Viability Assessment:

The proposal was accompanied by a detailed construction budget and business pian projecting revenues and
costs, In addition, a market study prepared by the Institute for Setvice Research for the project defines the uses
for the campus that will most contribute to the success of the facility and forms the backbone of the business
plan,

Sraff Recommendation:

Staff recommends a $400,000 grant, contingent upon acquisition of matching funds to support the
project.

TRRC - FY23 Southern Virginia Prograta — Staff Summaties & Reeommendations - fanuary 2023 page 11

=1 5=




City of Emporia
Extensions of Water and Sewer to Norwood Property (#4122)
$840,000 Requested

Project Summary:

The City of Emporia puschased the 38-acte Norwood Estate Property in 2016, with the objective to develop an
industrial park strategically located with direct access to US Route 58. The location provides access to a four-lane
divided highway and is in close proximity to Interstate 95. The project will provide the water and sewer line
extensions connecting the existing watet and sewer lines under US Route 58 and to the southetn boundary of the
Notwood site. Bmporia contracted with Timmons Group to design and engineer the extensions. The $1,680,000
estimated construction cost includes $252,000 for new 750 linear feet of watetline, and §1,428,000 for 4,625
lineat feet of force main sewer line. Addtessing the watet and sewer utility capacity limitations is necessaty to
expand marketing oppottunities for this industrial patk.

Matching Funds:
o $840,000 matching funds committed by City of Empotia

Project Outputs:

e 750 linear feet of 12-inch watetline under US Route 58 to connect to the existing line neat the
intersection of East Atlantic Street and the eastbound lane of US Route 58.

o 4625 linear fect of force main sewer line will be installed from the Notwood property line, under US
toute 58 and along the north side of East Atlantic Street to intersection of Broad St

Staff Comments:

The Commission has one grant benefiting Emporia’s Norwood Estate Propetty, a $130,000 award (#3454) in
September 2018, providing 50% of funding for engineering water and sewer connections and fot site work
engineering, The Norwood site is a 38 acte industrial patk located adjacent to US Route 58. With expanded
wates/sewet capacity the site will be marketed for a single larger business, or sevetal smaller advanced
manufactuting companies or supply chain businesses. Development of the property is expected to result in at
least 100 high paying jobs intended to improve income levels of the region. The Notwood site is cusrently
chatacterized as Tier 2; and Is expected to move to Tier 3/4 following completion of outstanding due-diligence
updates. The site is served by power and fiber and is located in a designated Entetprise Zones and in an
Opportunity Zone which will assist in attracting ptivate investment. Four neighboring counties provided letters
of suppott. The Resolution passed by the City of Emporia identifies a request for $1.6 million of loan funds
from the Commission. Punding requests for construction of off-site utility infrastructute projects are
tecommended by TRRC staff for Loan consideration. The Commission’s Community Business and Lending
Program suppotts loans of §1 million or more and provides competitive rates for locality-backed loans,

Financial Viability Assessment:
Vitginia Resoutces Authority will access financial viability of financing water and sewer infrastructure,

Staff Recommendation: Staff secommends project be referred to the Commission’s Community
Business and Lending Program for consideration of a $1,680,000 Loan.

TRRC — FY23 Southern Virginla Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 12

-1 6_



Halifax County (#4124)

Vitginia International Raceway Water Supply Interconnection - Halifax County
$745,259.15 Requested

Project Summary:

Grant funds are requested to suppott 50% of the ~ $1,490,518 million estimated costs for final design,
petmitting, easements and inspections for the water supply system to connect the Virginia International Raceway
in southern Halifax County and the town of Milton, North Catolina. The long term sustainability of a significant
regional asset is a priotity of Halifax County and the entire Southside region. Without public watet, VIR cannot
host events or continue to invest back into its growth. The wells setving the existing public water system at VIR
atc no longer reliable and at a high tisk of being insufficient, The proposed Phase 1 VIR Watet Interconnection
would connect Pittsylvania County's Ringgold water system to the VIR water system. The Pittsylvania County
Service Authotity would convey water supplied from the City of Danville to the VIR water system which is
owned and operated by the Halifax County Service Authority.

Matching Funds:
¢ Halifax County has committed $500,000 toward final design including Phase 2 costs to Milton NC.
s State appropriate of §4 million, of which $245,259 is allocated to final design and planning costs, and the
balance will be used for construction.
s A US EDA application for $4 million is intended to support remaining construction costs.

Profect Outpuits:

e Final engineeting and planning necessaty for proceeding with contract for construction of watetline;
including environment permitting and ROW acquisition.

Staff Comments;

VIR is one of the largest visitor attractions in Southern Virginia, A 2018 economic impact study that was based
on 300,000+ annual visitation for multi-day events, estimated VIR provides a $237 million total annual impact
on the region’s economy. Visitation numbers are estimated at 350,000 for 2022, with the addition of the Blue
Ridge Rock Hestival. Provision of a reliable water supply is critical for VIR to maintain and grow their impact on
the region, The Preliminary Engincering Repost prepared for the Halifax County PSA was completed by Hurt &
Profit in 2017, Partners in this project include Halifax County, and three Vitginia public sexvice authotities the
Halifax PSA, Pittsylvania County PSA, and Danville PSA. Construction of the watetline is estimated to cost ~
$7.5 million. While funding requests for construction of off-site utility infrastructure are considered for loans;
request for assistance with final design and planning ate eligible for the Commission to considet for grant
assistance, Staff notes that the $1,490,518 cost estimate for final engineering and soft costs for Option 2 includes
both the $1,092,058 for Phase 1 to VIR; and $398,461 for Phase 2 which is a connection from VIR to Milton
NC. Staff views the Phase 1 costs at $1,092,058, for connecting water service to VIR as a priority for the
Commission and recommends this pottion for grant funding at up to 50% of eligible costs.

Financial Viability Assessment;
All matching funds need to proceed with a contract for final design and soft costs have been secured.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends a $546,029 grant awatd for 50% of the $1,092,058 Phase 1 estimated costs.

TRRC — FY23 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 13

-17-




Mecklenburg County
Vitginia's Growth Alliance Site Development Project (#4104)
$602,210 Requested

Project Summary:

Grant funds are requested on behalf of five localities who participate in the regional economic alliances,
Vitginia’s Growth Alliance, to increase the martketability of five smaller and three larger industtial sites to expand
diversity of sites being marketed in the region. Engineeting due-diligence and final reports/studies will be
completed at cight industrial sites with one or more in Brunswick, Charlotte, Lunenbuig, and Greensville
Counties, and the City of Emporia. This request is based on research undertaken through VEDP’s Vitginia
Business Ready Sites Program and the assessment completed fot identifying sites with the most developability
potential in conjunction with ptiotities of VGA localities. VEDP’s research considered the strengths and
weaknesses of each site and how it pertained to the labor shed and developability criteria established for targeted
sectots, This project enables participating localities to address the existing deficit in shovel ready sites allowing
them to better market the region fot attracting targeted industries. The entire scope of work will include the
charactetization of one site, which is currently uncharactesized, and bring it to a Tier 3. It will also raise the tier
level of four sites and provide final design work to allow three sites to advance their tier level.

Matching Funds & Profect Outputs:

$770,201 Match = Go Virginia Region 3 application to be submitted for $392,210; $235,000 Go Vitginia Region
4 match; and $80,000 Local Match (825,000 from Brunswick County, $55,000 from City of Empotia).

Project outputs are included below with VEDP’s VBRSP assessment status for Tier level classifications.

1. 1-85 Ag Industrial Patk — Brunswick Connty), $41,150 TRRC & Match = $82,300 Total
112 acres available; 475,000 sq ft buildout potential. Due-diligence to raise site from Tier 2 to Tiet 5; an
approximately 20 acte site gtaded pad will be certified as shovel tecady.

2. Brunswick County Industtial Patk — Brumswick Connty), $45,150 TRRC & §45,150 Go Virginia Match
+ $25,000 IDA = $115,300 Total. :

34 acres available; 280,000 sq ft buildout potential. Due-diligence to achieve Tier 5; an approximately 17
acte graded pad will be certified as shovel ready.

3, Heartland Regional Industrial Patk — (Charlotte Connty), $25,000 TRRC & Match = $50,000 Total.
375 actes available; 1,700,000 sq ft buildout potential. Final design for well drilling to achieve Tiet 4.

4, Lunenburg-Victosia Industrial Park — (Lunenburg Connty), $53,235 TRRC & Match = $106,470,
29 acres available; 225,000 sq ft buildout potential. Due—diligence to move site from Tier 2 to Tier 3,

5. Tunenburg Commetce Center — (Lunenburg Connty), $77,175 TRRC & Match = §154,350 Total.
114 acres available; 900,000 sq ft buildout potential, Due diligence to certify site at Tier 4.

6. K-V Road Site / OId Middle School— (Lunenburg County), $80,000 TRRC & Match = §160,000.
21 acres available. No cutrent characterization; will achieve Tier 3 status after due-diligence completed.

7. Norwood Estate Property— (City of Emporia), $210,000 TRRC & $290,000 Match = §500,000 Total.
38 acres available; 350,000 sq ft buildout potential, TRRC funding for transportation final design, and
Match from Go Virginia Region 4, for final design on water storage tank, With the completion of all
required studies, the industrial patk will move from Tiet 3 to Tier 4 characterization.

‘I'RRC — FY23 Southern Virginla Program — Staff Summatles & Recommendations - January 2023 page 14

...18_



8, TFASTA Site — (Greensville Connty), $70,500 TRRC & Match = $141,000 Total
52 acres available; 410,000 sq ft buildout potential, $21,000 to update environmental due-diligence for
maintaining ‘Tiet 4 characterization; and $120,000 A&KE services for site plan for 20-acre graded pad.

Staff Comunents:

Mecklenburg County serves as the fiscal agent for the Virginia’s Growth Alliance, a regional economic alliance of
fout counties and one city in the south-castern area of Southern Vitginia, A strong application was presented by
VGA. for moving five smaller acteage sites, each between 21 and 52 actes available; and three latger sites, each
between 112 and 375 acres available, to higher level of Tier charactetization under VEDP’s Virginia Business
Ready Sites Program, Copies of VBRSP assessments were provided for industsial parks, where assessment were
completed. Detailed line-item engineeting cost estimates were provided by Dewberty Engineeting for the two
sites in Brunswick County. Detailed line-item engineering cost estimates have been provided by Timmons for
five sites, and an estimate is expected to be provided for the K-V Road Site in Lunenburg County. Staff verified
that scopes of work do not duplicate previous investments by TRRC in seven out of the eight industrial patks,
with this request providing TRRC’s first investment in the FASTA Site.

Financial Viabillty Assessment:
All required funding will be secured at the initiation of each contract for A&E services.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of $602,210 grant award, for up to 50% of the engineering due-diligences
and studies for each of the eight industrial sites,

TRRC - FY23 Southern Virginia Program -- Staff Summaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 15

-19~



Patrick County Economic Development Authority
Rich Creck Corporate Park Shell Building (#4123)
$95,850 Requested

Project Summary:

The Pattick County Economic Development Authority proposes to renovate a recently vacated building ir the
Rich Creek Cotpotate Park to prepate it for a future business or Hght industtial tenant, The 20,000 SF building
was constructed in 2006, sits on a 3.5 acre graded site and was previously used as office space for a call center.
"The renovation will include removal of non-load bearing walls, drop ceilings and the installation of a sprinkler
system, Attracting a tenant to the shell building located at the business patk entrance will help market the larger
70 acres available at this industrial site that is available for development.

Matching Funds:
o $95,850 matching funds to be requested from US DOC’s Economic Development Administration.

Profect Outputs:

¢ Construction tenovations for 20,000 squate foot building to provide a marketable shell building.
e Targeted outcomes: 25-40 jobs at $62,000 average salary, and $10 million capital investment.

Staff Comments:

Rich Creek Corporate Patk is the only business park in Pattick County, This area lacks sufficient available
commercial space to attract new business. This request presents a cost-effective solution to take an exlstmg
building back to & shell, to malke it teady for attraction of a business ot light industry. Estimated economic
impact outcomes based on cutrent prospects interests is creation 25-40 jobs at $62,000 average salary, and $10
million capital investment, While the larger 70 acres site at Rich Creek C01p01atc Park is characterized as Tier 2,
undet the VBRSP, the smaller site with the shell building meets all ctiteria for Tier 5 with utility services already
at the building, The Commission has previously invested ~ $942,218 in the shell building with the oldet award
from to 2002, and other grants to support previous up-fit for the call center. Further investments under this
request will restore the value of the property and allow it to be marketed for light manufacturing, Three cost
estimates from Clark Brothers Company combine for Plant & Improvements renovations costs totaling
$191,700 (§93,500, $46,200, $52,000). Of this total the Patrick County EDA is requesting 50% funding from the
Commission. US EDA is identified as the intended soutce of match.

Financial Viability Assessment:
Al utility infrastructare is already available at this patk, and with the renovation to the shell building the propesty
wiil be ready for occupancy. All funding will be in place prior to the disbursement of grant funds.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of a $95,850 grant award for 50% of the construction renovations.

TRRC — FY23 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaties & Recommendations - Jameary 2023 page 16

-20-




Sussex County (#4111)

Megasite - Master Planning, Conceptual Engincering, & Water Line Extension
$250,000 Requested

Profect Summary:

The goal of the project is to enhance the shovel-readiness of the Sussex Megasite, a strategic economic
development area for Southern Vitginia, This request is a component of a broader application the County
submitted to the VA Economic Development Partnership (VEDP) for 2 VA Business Ready Sites Program site
development grant, Overall, the County is requested over $3 million in funding from VEDP, the Tobacco
Commission, and USEDA to assist with a more sobust master: planning and conceptnal engincering design study
and construction of 2 watetline for the Sussex Megasite. This includes identifying the highest and best uses for
manufacturing and distribution in this strategic atea of Sussex County - particulatly those without significant
water demands. The study would include both of the County-owned properties, the Sussex Megasite and Route
602 Industrial Park given their close proximity (less than 1,500” feet apart), as well as due diligence and pursuit of
adjacent properties (700+ acres) to expand the Megasite.

Matching Funds:
s $250,000 committed from by Sussex County.
o $1,255,000 application submitted to VEDP VA Business Ready Site Program.
e $1,555,000 application intended to US DOC’s Economic Development Administration

Profect Outputs:

o Tdentification of the industrial users (specifically for manufacturing and distribution sectors), based on
highest and best uses of the propetty and particulatly those without significant water demands.

s A&E Master planning for latger proposed Megasite to include A&E costs for Wetlands Mitigation Plan,
Stormwater Management Plan; Treated Wastewater PER, rail spur access and internal toad netwotk
assessment, and concept site layouts for the larger atea proposed development atea.

» Feasibility, surveying, and design engineering of extension of 8,500 linear feet of 8" natural gas
distribution line for Columbia Gas to service Megasite

e (If funded) Construction of 9,500 linear feet of 12" water line along Beef Steak Road to ptovide a
320,000 cubic feet per day increase it water capacity to service the Sussex Megasite.

Staft Commments:

The Commission has invested $10,234,956 in the Sussex Megasite, with all five previous grants awarded from the
Megasite Program. The Commission has invested $315,277 in the Route 602 Industrial Park which is included in
the scope of this request. Sussex Megasite has a total of 1,130 acres, with the two largest contiguous developable
acreages identified as 595 acres, and 112 actes, both of which are considered to have a Tier 4 site
chatacterization, ‘The focus of the proposed wotk is primarily driven by the inability of Sussex County to attract
Project Glove, who ultimately selected Wythe County, Staff has concerns about wanting to make the Megasite
propetty to be even bigger {adding another 700 acres, and combining this with the 156 acse Route 602 Industial
Park property); when it is known that there is very limited water supply available in the region. The total
$4,199,000 project budget includes $3,100,000 for construction of the water line, and $740,000 for purchase
option agreement on the additional 704 acres; with the balance $395,000 for engineering, including $200,000 for
natutal gas line planning feasibility and preliminary engineeting, The County is comiitting an equal match to the
amount requested from the Commission, Staff recommends the TRRC approval align with VEDP VBRSP
award for this project with funding support limited to up to 50% of the requited match. The VEDP Review
Comznittee is recommending funding suppott for the $199,000 due diligence and master planning costs, which
will requite $64,530 match; however, final awards will be determined by the Governor and his administration.

TRRC — FY23 Southem Virginia Progearn — Staff Summaties & Recommendations - January 2023 page 17

—-21-




Financlal Viability Assessment:

Thete is concern about the financial viability of the proposed expansion of the acreage of the Sussex Megasite,
recognizing the site limitations related to water supply. This will be addressed through the identification of the
industrial users with highest and best use of the property, within manufacturing and distribution sectots. A
decision to expand the site will be fusther vetted by VEDP staff involved in administering the VBRSP funding,

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval for up to $250,000 grant award, contingent on the final amount being
limited to 50% of the tequited match for the VEDP VBRSP award.

TRRC — FY23 Southern Vitginia Program — Staff Summasies & Recommendations - January 2023 page 18

_22_.



Brunswick County

Herman Road Lake Gaston Day Use Patk - Kayak and Canoe Launch (#4112)
$230,400 Requested

Project Summary:

Lake Gaston s a major tourist attraction fot the Southern Visginia region, and public access to Lake Gaston is
very limited as much of the shoreline is ptivately owned, Brunswick County acquired roughly 14 acres of
watetfront property on Lake Gaston with the intent to develop and maintain 2 free and safe public outdoor
tecteation day-use facility. The county's goal is to provide the community and tourists with free and safe access
to the waters of Lake Gaston for an expansion of outdoor tecseational opportunities, Grant funding from the
Tobacco Commission is requested to support $230,400 towards the $1,298,200 estimate from Timmons ($140K
engineering services, and $1,158,200 construction cost estimate) for the Phase 1 park construction which
includes the kayak and canoe launch access, a fishing/ observation pier, parking for 8-12 vehicles, picnic area and
pavilion and the access road to the facility.

Matching Funds:

A total of $1,480,000 match including:

$681,270 Dominion Fnergy FERC Funds ($473,120 used for acquisition; $208,100 construction),
$150,000 award from Virginia Outdoors Foundation Preservation Trust Fund Grant

£450,000 application to VIDOT’s Recreational Access Program.

$198,734 from Brunswick County including $50,000 ARPA funds

Prafect Outpuisi

o Kayak and canoe access and surtounding park space constructed for Phase 1 of the Herman Road Lake
Gaston Day Use Park in Brunswick County,

o Expansion of the Southetn Virginia Wild Blueways trails to include Brunswick County.

Staff Comments:

Grant funding of $230,400 is requested toward the $1,158,200 Phase One construction costs for development of
the Herman Road Lake Gaston Day Use Park in Bracey, VA, Brunswick County is one of the lasgest localities in
Vitginia by land area (566 square miles), with one of the smallest population with less than 17,000 residents. The
toutism economy in the County is expanding evidenced by a 14.7% inctease in total visitor spending reported at
$10.1 million for 2021, and providing $579,200 in state and local tax revenues. Lake Gaston is located
downstream of Buggs Island Lake an anchor destination for visitors to Southern Vitginia. Public access on the
eastetn side of Lake Gaston is very limited, which is a bastier for attracting visitors interested in exploting its
many miles of blueways oppostunities. This new park facility will expand the cusrent footpsint of the Southern
Virginia Wild Blueways, over 100 miles of navigable water providing access to the natural beauty of Southern
Vitginia’s waterways. The application is well matched with over $1,530,005 Match, more than six times the
TRRC request, for both the acquisition phase and the Phase one construction costs.

Financial Viability Assessment:
The Phase One construction contract witl be initiated by the County after all project funding is secured.

Staff Recommendation: Staff secommends approval of a $230,400 grant to support construction costs
for the kayak and Canoe Launch, and other Phase 1 development costs for establishing the patk.

TRRC — FY23 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - Januaty 2023 page 19

-2




Cumberland County
Operation Connect-The-Dots (#4108)
$218,667 Requested; Revised to $218,000

Project Suminaty:

The Cumbetland Coutthouse/Bear Creek Lake State Parl Connector Ttail Project is currently a local trail that
connects Cumberland Coutthouse Village to Bear Creek Lake State Park Tiail. This 0.7-mile trail is a 6-foot-wide
grass trail built in 2004 and is maintained by Cumberland County (mowed 2-4 imes 2 month depending on
season and weathes). Due to the current condition, the grassed walking path is not easily accessible for visitots
and is ptone to erosion. The goal of this project is to provide major improvements to the custent trail by paving
the 6-foot-wide trail in asphalt to enhance the walkability and accessibility for all users. If funded these much-
needed improvements will link the visitor to the nearby Cumbetland State Fotest which connects to Bear Creek
Lake State Patk as well as Cumberland Courthouse Historic District. ‘This project will allow for state park and
state forest visitots from around the country to access Cumbetland Courthouse encoutaging them to spend
more money supporting the local tourism economy,

Matching Funds:
e  $218,000 Match from Cumberiand County including $6,000 In-Kind and $212,000 Cash Match

- Project Outputs:

o 0.7-mile of asphalt trail constructed connecting Bear Creek State Park with the Cumbesland Coutthouse
Village, allowing visitors to walk from the state patk to antique stores and restaurants.

¢ Cumberland County will track visitation metrics in collaboration with the state patk, and through the use
of cameras, cat counters, and surveys.

s Increasc in Bear Creek Seate Park attendance by + 10%, from 80,730 to 88,803 annually (+8,073}.

Staff Comments:

Grant funds are requested for a portion of the $430,000 estimated costs to pave an existing 0.7-mile grass
pathway segment to connect the Cumbetland Courthouse Historic District to Beat Creek Lake State Patk. This
will connect with an existing trail allowing state patk visitors the option to walk ~ 2.5 miles to the Cumbetland
Courthouse Village area, where they can visit antique stotes and restautants.

Curtent visitor attendance at Beat Creek Lake State Pasrk was 80,730 in 2021, This figure is used to estimate an
increase of 10% for 8,073 net new visitors following completion of this connector trail. The Economic and
Fiscal Impacts of Virginia State Parks 2021, identifics $3.6 million total visitor spending at Bear Creck Lake State
Park, of which $1.3 million in from non-Vitginia residents; and the park employs 37 persons annually proving
$1.2 million in labor income for the tegion, This project will expands tecreational trail access connecting two
existing state natural resoutce assets to an atea where tourism related businesses ate concentrated. The county
agreed to a revised budget of $436,000 includes the $100I estimate for A&E design services, $330,000 for trail
construction, and $6,000 in-kind allocated for project management and administration. The Commission has
received very few funding requests from Cumbesland County over the past decade; and this project reflects a
practical opportunity fos this community to expand impact of tourism on the local economy.

Financial Viability Assessment:
The partnership and connection to the Bear Creek State Park provides a clear ability to attract visitors and visitor
spending to the region, extending their stay and attracting mote visitors anfnual to this community.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of a $218,000 grant award, with approval of
disbursement of grant funds fot up to 50% of the $436,000 approved project costs.

TRRC — FY23 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 20

_24._.



National D-DAY Memorial Foundation L.TD
National D-Day Memotial Motor Pool Museum and Courtyard (#4113)
$350,000 Requested

Profect Summary:

The National D-Day Memotial Foundation is secking funding toward the construction of an indoot museum
space (specifically for the excavation, grading and site prepatation work for the museum Motot Pool building
and adjacent coutrtyatd to the Motot Pool)) The 1940s inspired Motor Pool building will serve as the Memorial’s
first truly indoor museum space featutring armoted and transpott vehicles and the stories of the Allied armies that
battled an entrenched foe to liberate Europe. Additionally, a rare amphibious tank recovered from Omaha
Beach in Normandy has been committed to the Foundation once display and curation space is complete. The
proposed Motor Pool addition will highlight these unique artifacts and in turn broaden visitation to the
Commonwealth while also increasing visitor expendituzes in lodging, food, recreation, and othet sectors of the
regional economy, The Motor Pool will imptove visitor experiences to the monument, increase national and
international tourism figures to the site (and the Commonwealth), and transform the Memorial into a true yeat-
round destination.

Matching Funds:
¢ $350,000 private donations toward final design and site development.

o Over $3 million match has been committed towards the latger capital improvement plan, which includes
the addition of walking trails, an outdoor amphitheater and the Motor Peol building.

Project Outpuis:

s Two level structure constructed on sloping site with 6000-7000 square feet; and replicating a 1940s
WWII Era Motot Pool with an adjacent courtyard and outdoor exhibit space

¢ Display of vehicles from the Lee Holland Collection to be donated.

¢ Total annual visitation at the Memorial is expected to increase by 31,680 annually, a 77% increase from
the 2021 visitation of 41,188, The total visitation estimate would be 71,868 annually.

Staff Comments:

This is a very well leveraged project that expands facilities at the National D-Day Memotial in Bedford County.
The Memotial’s Foundation plans to complete design and have the Motor Pool constructed by May 2025. An
estimate of $447,185 was provided by Glave & Homes for total design service taking the project from design
through construction administration for the new structure. An additional $500,000 is estimated for the site work.
A schematic with Amphitheatte, motor pool and natuse teails was provided and total costs to complete
construction is estimated at $4 million, A Marketing Plan and Operating Budget were provided as required in the
Commission’s RFP for this funding,

Financial Viability Assessment:
The National D-DAY Memotial Foundations has a proven track record attracting ~ 41,188 visitors annually.
Fundraising is nearly complete to cover capital costs for next phase of development at the site.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends a $350,000 grant award towards site wotls, contingent on

disbursement of grant funds being limited to no more than 50% of documented project expenses
(including design setvices and construction to be paid from matchy).

"TRRC ~ ['Y23 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summarics & Recommendations - January 2023 page 21

—25~



Town of Blackstone
Operation Swedish Chef (#4106)
$581,000 Requested

Project Summary:

Grant fands ate requested for the final portion of the $3,781,000 total project costs for tehabilitation and
senovations to the Harris Memorial Armory Center. The building will be used as a multi-purpose facility
including training programs for hospitality students and an event center. "The job training would consist of
hospitality training to support the tourism business sector for the new lodging that has opened and that is
planned for the area to setve the recently opened Foreign Affairs Secutity Training Center (FASTC) facility at
Fort Pickett, Part of the building would be used by Vitginia State University for job training programs to provide
skilled wotkess for support industries needed for the BASTC facility at Fort Pickett — namely hospitality (four
new hotels ate planned for the atea to service users of FASTC). The other parts of the building would be used as
rental space for banquets and teceptions, Students in the job training programs would work at these events as
patt of theit hospitality training, to gain experience working in the hospitality industty.

Matching Funds:
A total of $3,482,500 match including:
$2,200,000 federal ARPA funds available

-

o $1,000,000 application submitted to DHCD’s Industrial Revitalization Fund program

e $250,000 award from VEDP’s Brownfield Fund

»  $32,500 contributed by Town of Blackstone toward architectural and engineeting costs
Project Outputs:

o Renovations of the 16,400 sq. ft. Harris Memotial Armoty building to allow building to be repurposed
for job training and to suppoxt the business development for the tourism sector.

e Vitginia State Univesity and Transition Solutions Enterprises will deliver hospitality job training, and will
document numbert of students enrolled and graduating from training programs.

Staff Comments;

Blackstone is committed to revitalization of the Hasris Memorial Atmoty building constructed in 1936, The
building consists of 16,400 sq. ft. providing two main floots and a basement level; and a balcony on the west end
of the building, A construction and operational feasibility study was completed in August 2016 hy Community
Planning Pattoers, The highest ranked uses was for a Learning Center & Multipurpose Event Place, Supporting
toutism outcomes the market research indicated a moderate capture rate fot visitors within a 60-minute drive for
Education, Entertainment and ‘Tourism interests.. The allocation of ARPA funding towatds the project included
a commitment for final uses of the building to support hospitality, toutism and training, The Town ptovided a
Scope of Wotk description updated in November 2022, for the Harris Memotial Multi-Putpose & Hospitality
Training Center. An MOU with the Town and Virginia State University identifies plans for an Armoty
Hospitality Training Institute to train wotkfotce for hotel operations. Transition Solutions Enterprises is
identified for delivering short-term hospitality job training programs for inmates. A third potential education
pattaer, Virginia Union University may become 2 pattner for short-term and 2-year certification training
programs, Letters of suppott wete provided from Waukeshaw Development and Blackstone Academy Squate.

Financial Viability Assessment:
The building will be supported primarily by revenues generated from event rentals and commmunity activities.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends a $581,000 grant award.

TRRC -- FY23 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 22

_26_



West Piedmont Planning District Commission

Southern Vitginia Regional Branding and Marketing Plan (#4099)
$50,000 Requested

Profect Summary:

Grant funds ate tequested for 50% of $100,000 consultant setvices fot a Southern Vitginia tegional branding and
matketing plan development. This initiative is modeled after the Friends of Southwest Virginia which has
successfully branded their region as a distinct cultutal area and destination, and expanded microenterprise,
tourism and business development opportunities throughout the segion. A need/oppottunity has been identified
for the region of Southern Vitginia which does not have a regional identity for branding like Southwest Vitginia,
Nevertheless, the Southetn Vitginia region is undergoing and anticipating major economic and toutism-related
developments and needs a united brand to matket and promote the region. The time is right for the region to
come together for this branding initiative, This project led by the three southern Vitginia Planning District
Commissions: the Commonwealth Regional Council, Southside PDC, and West Piedmont PDC; will establish a
tegional brand, inventoty the region's toutism assets, establish key anchor attractions that link the region
together, and develop a promotion and matketing plan to implement the tegional brand.

Matching Funds:
e $50,000 planning grant to be requested from DHCD

Profect Outputs:

e Invite localities in the selected geographic area to patticipating in a regional branding to better matket the
tegion to future workforce patticipants and to visitoss to increase tourism spending,

e EHstablish a tegional brand for the alliance of Southern localities; inventoty the region’s tourism assets and
establish anchor destinations that can be used to tie the region together.

s  Develop a matketing plan to move the regional alliance’s interests forward,

Staff Cormments: .
The project is modeled after the success of the Friends of Southwest Visginia, The focus will be on increasing
the number of visitors to the region’s anchor destinations, outdoor recreation assets, and shating with them the
- small town culture. This effost is being led by the three PDCs whose setvice footprint is entirely within the
Tobacco Region’s Southern Virginia area (West Piedmont PDC, Commonwealth Regional Council and
Southside PDC), Staff recommends the PDC leadesship team evaluate including all counties and cities iocated in
the Southern Piedmont topographic region of Virginia to focus on an area that is geoggaphically defined.
Commission staff has requested that the Centtal Virginia PDC and their counties within the Tobacco Region
that ate south of the James River be considered fo the region alliance (Appomattox, Bedford and Campbell
Counties). This provides for a proposed atea of the Southern Piedmont tatgeted to 17 counties, 2 cities within
the Southern area of the Tobacco Region, The final atea for the alliance will be determined by the project team.

Financial Viability Assessment:
T'his is 2 planning grant, DHCD will vet the project for their commitment of matching funds.

Staff Reconunendation:
Staff recommends approval of a $50,000 grant award for 50% of consultant fees,

TRRC — FY23 Southern Vieginia Prageam — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - Januaty 2023 page 23

-27-



OTHER BUSINESS:

Sussex County

Three Brothers Access Road (#3504) — Cutrent Project End Date: 1/31/2023
5% Year Extension Requested

Staff Comments: The Commission approved a small out-of-cycle grant request to assist a small local business (a
distillery) with a new access toad, Three Brothers Distillery, a Sussex County business, makes spitits from locally
sourced ingredients. The distillery is accessible to the public by a single lane ptivate road in Prince George
County; and the proposed project would provide for a one-and-a-half-lane access road off Cabin Point Road in
Sussex County. The new access road would provide for a 50° wide road, that is 2,869 linear feet and which will
support the creation of two new jobs at the distillery. $12,500 from VIDDACS AFID progtam combined with
$6,250 match from Sussex County with $6,250 of TRRC funding was to be used toward the §25,000 costs.

Several months after the original three year gtant term had passed staff received a request from Sussex County
for 2 foutth year extension due to turnover in county staff positions. The fourth year extension was approved in
June 2022, extending the grant to Januaty 31, 2023, The business has indicated initial delays were related to the
pandemic; while curtent delays ate associated with muitiple lawsuits related to the new access toad. The private
business owner indicates that lawsuits are estimated to tequire 120 days (4 months); and then the construction
contract would requites anothes 3-5 months, Staff suggests that when this project was presented to the
Commission for approval, it was inappropriately presented as being ready to begin. The business has had four
years to complete the access road with the grant incentive offered by the Commission. Recognizing that the
project did not proceed in this time including the previous extension, staff recommends no further action,

Sraff Recommendatior: Staff recommends no further action.

City of Danville
Industrial Shell Building (# 3360) — Cuttent Project End Date: 1/31/2023
Six-Month Extension into 6 Year Requested

Staff Comments: This $1,000,000 grants is providing ~ 35% towards the $2,875,000 contract for construction
of a new 30,000 square foot shell building in the City of Danville’s Cyber Park, This project was initially delayed
as the Danville evaluated options for location of the building and assessed needs of companies intetested in the
region, A fifth year extension was apptoved by the Commission in May 2022. While the construction contract is
well underway and the City is submitting regular reimbutsement requests, thete remains a balance of $507,758.20
on the TRRC project account. This funding is needed for completion of the building. The City has indicated that
the most recent delays have been related to the financing process, with legal teams associated with the financing
institutions having required multiple changes to the contract documents, causing delays in the release of funding
to suppott construction. The City is tequesting a six month extension through July 31, 2023, and staff is
recommending a full final year through January 31, 2024.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of a one year extension to January 31, 2024,

TRRC — FY23 Southern Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations ~ January 2023 page 24

_28_




Danville-Pittsylvania Regional Industrial Facility Authotity
Berry Hill Industtial Patk — Site Improvements (#3358)
Cuttent Project End Date: 1/31/2023 — 6 Year Extension Requested

Staff Comments: This $2,624,8000 grant was approved in January 2018, from the Southside Economic
Development program to suppott site development costs for a 80-90 acre pad site on lot 8 at the Southern
Virginia Mega Site at Betry Hill. The Commission approved an extension and scope tevision in January 2020, to
seallocate the project funding toward grading a 65-acte pad site on Lots 1 & 2 at the Mega Site. Commission
staff approved a revised project budget in January 2021, with an equal amount of Match being provided toward
the $4,834,296 revised total project costs. While a majotity (82,262,443} of the grant remains available in the
TRRC project account, the construction contract is underway. The Danville-Pittsylvania RIFA indicates that the
construction of the pad side will require approximately three months to be completed. A full sixth year extension
is requested to provide sufficient time for the remaining wotk to be completed.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends apptoval of a sixth year extension to July 31, 2024,

TRRC - FY23 Southern Vitginia Program ~ Staff Sutmmaries & Recommendations - January 2023

—29-

page 25



Commonwealth of Virginia
Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

FY2023 Southern Virginia Program

GUIDELINES & REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Application Due Date:
Thursday, October 20, 2022

=-30-



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
FY2023 Southern Virginia Program

GUIDELINES & REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

GENERAL PROGRAM INFORMATION 3
A. Purpose & Background

B. Investment Categories - Funding Priorities

C. Eligibility — Eligible Applicants, Matching Funds, Use of Funding

D. Application and Submission Information

E. Evaluation

F. TRRC Staff Contact Infermation

GUIDELINES FOR SPECIFIC INVESTMENT STRATEGIES 6
A. Business Development 6

= Regional Economic Development Marketing Initiatives
= Business District Redevelopment

8. Sites & Infrastructure 8

»  |ndustrial Sites
» |nfrastructure — Off-site Utility Infrastructure

C. Agrihusiness 10

*  Value-Added Processing, Aggregation, and Marketing Facilities
= Development of Market Opportunities

D, Tourism i4

[l.

= Tourism Destination Infrastructure
= Regional Marketing Campaigns & Initiatives

REQUIRED DOCUMENTS 17

REQUIREMENTS OF FUNDING 18
A. Grants and Loans

B. Award Information

C. Payment of Grant Funds

D. Reporting

E. Assets

ATTACHMENTS 20
A. Attachment A — Evaluation Criteria
B. Attachment B - Eligible Counties & Cities for Tebacco Commission Funding

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 2 of 22

-31-



i GENERAL PROGRAM INFORMATION

A. Purpose & Background

The Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission (“TRRC” or “Commission”} was established by the
Virginia General Assembly in 1999, as a political subdivision of the Commonwealth. The
Commission makes investments to revitalize and diversify the economy of the region it supports.
Projects selected for funding include initiatives that will measurably advance the Commission’s
oriorities as a direct result of project success.

The Southern Virginia Program’s Guidelines and Request for Proposals {together, “RFP") are
issued to solicit applications through a competitive process in order to establish grant and loan
agreements for economic development projects in the region. Funding will be considered for
projects promoting economic growth and development within the Southern Virginia area of
Virginia’s Tobacco Region. Refer to Attachment B - Eligible Counties & Cities for Tobacco
Commission Funding on page 23 of this RFP,

Approximately $16 mitlion is available for awards from the Southern Virginia Program, in
addition to $15 million of carryforward balances in county ailocations from the past Southside
Economic Development Program, The application deadline is Thursday, October 20, 2022,
Award decisions are expected to be made at the Commission’s meeting in january 2023,

B. Investment Categories — Funding Priorities

Logic madels included in the Commission’s Current Strategic Plan identify specificinvestment
strategies for the types of projects that the Commission will consider funding.
Applications submitted in response to this RFP must fall into one of the following categories:

A. Business Development

B. Sites and Infrastructure

C. Agribusiness

D. Tourism

Detalls on priorities and the types of projects to be considered within each investment category
are provided in Section ill. Guidelines for Specific Investment Categories of this RFP. Ali
applicants must clearly articulate how the project relates to the goals of the program. All projects
must clearly define outputs that will occur during the project period and directly relate to the use
of Commission funds and matching funds. Outputs are specific to each investment category.

The Commission at its discretion may entertain other types of projects provided they meet all
other requirements of this RFP, are in alignment with TRRC's Strategic Pian, and address critical
economic development barriers affecting the Tobacco Region. Applicants who wish to bring a
project outside of the scope of this RFP must contact TRRC's grants staff in advance,

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 3 of 22

-37-



C. Eligibility — Eligible Applicants, Matching Funds, Uses of Funding
Eligible Applicants

Applications will only be accepted from governmental entities and non-profit organizations
located in and/or providing economic revitalization programs, services, or facilities in the
Tobacco Region. Eligible applicants including the following:

s Governmental Entities - Governmental entities within the Tobacco Region, including
towns, cities, and counties; local or regiona!l industrial or economic development
authorities; regional authorities, and other governmental units.

+ Non-Profit Organizations - Incorporated non-profit organizations designated as tax-
exempt by the federal Internal Revenue Service.

Guidelines for applications submitied by regional partnerships and for projects benefiting for-
profit entities, are in Section 1l of the Commission’s Funding Policies discussed below.

Ineligible / Eligible Uses of Funding

The Commission’s Funding Policies for Grant Awards: Information for Applicants & Grantees
(Revised June 2020) {“Funding Policies”) contain information on general ineligible uses of funds,
specific type of expenses hot eligible for reimbursement, acceptable expense documentation for
seeking reimbursement, match documentation requirements, and other important details about
the Commission’s grant administration policies.

Matching Funds

As required by the Code of Virginia, all requests for grant funds require at least dollar-for-dollar

{1:1) matching funds, with no more than 25% of the match requirement from “in-kind” sources.

Loah requests do not have a match requirement. Expenses already included in an annual budget
such as personnel and other operating costs will count toward the 25% In-Kind limit.

Applicants for grant awards must submit details on the nature, source and timing of match
contributions necessary for meeting the 1:1 match requirement. Once secured, matching funds
must be committed to the project and available as needed, and must not be conditioned or
encumbered in any way that may preclude their use for the project duting the grant period.
Applicants should provide a commitment {etter or equivalent document signed by an authorized
representative of the organization providing matching funds to document each source of match.

If the Commission awards a grant to an applicant who has not secured acceptable matching funds
at the time of award, the applicant will have up to 12 months from the date of the award to
secure matching funds or else the Commission may rescind the award and de-obligate its funds.

£Y23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 4 of 22

—-33-




D. Application and Submission Information

Proposals must be submitted by midnight on Thursday, October 20, 2022, through the
Commission’s online application portal: https://vtc.smartsimple.com/s Login.isp.

Applicants must select the Economic Development (use this for Business Development, Sites
and Infrastructure, and Tourism projects), or Agribusiness application based on the nature of
their proposal. In addition to text fields of the application, up to 10 pages of additionalproject

description may be submitted as an attachment,

Applicants must certify they have read this RFP and the Commission’s Funding Policies; that the
information in their applications is true and correct; and that documentation for any claims and
representations made can be made available upon request from Commission staff. The
certification must be made by an authorized representative of the applicant organization.

All information expressly required by this RFP must be included. Proposals which are
substantially incomplete or lack key information, will be considered nonresponsive. These
proposals will be declined for review and will not be presented to the committee.

E, Evaluation

The Commission’s Southern Virginia Committee will evaluate applications submitted in response
to this REP. Staff recommendations to the Committee will be based upon requirements in this
RFP and the Evaluation Scoring Criteria provided in Attachment A. Approval of funding is at the
sole discretion of the Commission. The Commission reserves its right to cancel this RFP, to not
proceed with any or all applications, to condition its award on additional terms and conditions,
or to award a loan to an applicant who sought a grant.

F. TRRC Staff Contact Information

TRRC staff are available to assist with applications, For technical assistance with logging in or
setting up an account with the Commission’s online grants portal, please contact:

e Suzette Patterson, Grants System Manager (Richmond, VA)
(804) 894-9662, spatterson@revitalizeva.org

To obtain feedback prior to submitting a full application, eligible organizations are strongly
encouraged to complete the pre-application form available on the Commission’s website. The
pre-application is an optlonal, non-binding process that is used for providing informal feedback.
Contact TRRC's grants staff for assistance with project deslgn or to discuss a pre-application:

e Sarah Capps, Southern Reglonal Director (Rocky Mount, VA)
(540} 483-0179, ext. 2168, scapps@revitalizeva.org

e Vicki Humphreys, Grant Programs Director (Richmond, VA)
(804) 8949658, vhumphreys@revitalizeva.org

£Y23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 5 of 22

....34....



.  GUIDELINES FOR SPECIFIC INVESTMENT CATEGORIES

A. Business Development

Investment Category: Business Development

The Commission will consider awarding grants and loans to facilitate the development of new
industry and employment clusters, to support traditional economies, and to grow
entrepreneurial systems that result in a diversified regional economy. Priorities in this area
include support for regional marketing organizations for marketing the region’s industrial sites;
and projects that focus on impiementation of strategles for the creation of higher paying jobs
and the attraction of skilled workers to rural localities. Priority will be given to projects targeted
for downtown commercial districts.

Applicants will use the Economic Development application and will select one of the investment
strategies provided for each of the investment categories below:

i Regional Economic Development Marketing Initiatives

(i) Other Economic Development {for Business District Redevelopment}

Eligibie Investments

Al. Regional Economic Development Marketing Initiatives

Support for up to 50% of the costs to conduct targeted marketing strategies to recruit new
emplovyers to the region. This includes the recruitment of traditional industries and the
recruitment of satellite offices and back office locations to the region. Eligible applicants include
regional marketing organizations or other regional partnerships.

Funding may be used to contract with third party consultants to assist with marketing available
sites and buildings, recruitment of small job creators, and promotion of targeted downtown
spaces for satellite business operations and back offices.

Support for regional marketing organizations should be focused on critical lead generation
activities including expenses related to prospect and consultant trips or visits, contracts with lead
generation firms/ consultants, and marketing materials used for prospect recruitment. Expenses
related to trade show attendance or conference expenses will not be considered.

A2. Business District Redevelopment

The Commission wili make grants and loans to support capital investments in properties, and in
entrepreneurial and business support strategies, with the goal of encouraging the occupancy of
vacant, underutilized buildings and creation/expansion of technology and business service sector
jobs. Development of shared work spaces and small scale manufacturing spaces focused on
businesses which produce traded products and services are a priority. Projects could include, but
are not limited to:

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 6 of 22

—-35-



o Planning and capacity building

Funding may be requested for up to 50% of third-party professional services to support
critical planning activities focused on the redevelopment of commercial business
districts. This may include feaslbility studies and market assessments, architectural and
engineering/design setvices, and professional project development support.

o Publicly or nonprofit owned property for collaborative business development
Funding may be used for up to 50% of the costs for renovations/up-fit of publicly or
nonprofit organization owned buildings to be used as professional office space for
individuals and small businesses, for technology or business services sector satellite
offices, and for small scale production/manufacturing businesses. Funding consideration
for property Intended as a mixed-use development, will be given for the portion of the
property that is targeted for the Commission’s priority interests.

Applicants are required to submit a feasibility study, or simitar analysis, that
demonstrates market demand and feasibility of the facility operations to be sustainable.
A business plan and operating pro-forma must be provided showing how the facility will
hecome revenue positive within a reasonable period after construction is complete.

e Small business development incentive

The Commission may provide a private business incentive for a project which clearly
demonstrates the potential to act as a catalyst for additional business development, for
an underdeveloped and underutilized downtown commercial business district. The
application must describe how the proposed project aligns with the community’s
comprehensive business district planning efforts. Such incentive will require a
performance agreement with the locality, and will be limited to up to $30,000 and no
more than 25% of the capital costs for construction or equipping costs for the new
business enterprise.

Requirements

Depending on the nature of the project, Business Development projects require the following
information {refer to Section lil. Required Documents of this RFP):

Service Area and Project Location Map (required for all)

Feasibility Study or similar analysis (required for business development facilities)

Cost Estimate from Engineer or Construction Contractor (required for construction)
Detailed Equipment List and Equipment Quotes {required for equipment purchases)
Business Plan or Operating Plan {required for business development facilities, and for small
business development incentives)

Operating Budget and Pro Forma (required with Business Plan or Operating Plan)
Operating Agreement (required for public-private partnerships)

Marketing Plan (required for regional marketing initiatives)

VVY VVVYY

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 7 of 22

-3 [~



QOutputs / Metrics — Business Development
Applicants must identify the outputs that are expected to result from their project and explain
how projections were calculated. Following are examples of Business Development metrics:

Number of existing businesses recruited to region or strengthened by project activities
Increase in revenues from sale and export of traded products or services

Number and salaries/wages of jobs created by new or expanding businesses
Advancement of targeted sector-based or cluster development recruitment strategies

e Increase in bona fide prospect activity, realistic for available workforce

Number of new businesses started as a result of project activities

Number of individuals assisted with entrepreneurial training and business development
s Number of new or expanding businesses benefiting from lending, or access to financing
* Increase in taxable private capital investment

These are the typical project metrics for estimating outputs of business development projects.
Applicants are expected to identify the appropriate project output metrics for their project,

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelings and RFP / Page 8 of 22

3T



B. Sites and Infrastructure

Investment Category: Sites and Infrastructure

The Commission will consider awarding grants and loans to support the development of ctitical
infrastructure necessary to provide a competitive environment for the recruitment of new jobs
and investment to the Tobacco Region. Projects that will enhance the marketability and site
readiness of existing publicly-owned economic development sites are of particular interest to
the Commission. Priority will be given to projects that bring existing properties to a higher level
of business ready site certification rather than acquiring and developing new sites.

Applicants for Sites and Infrastructure projects will use the Economic Development application,
and will choose from one of the following investment categories:

{i) Industrial Sites

(i) Infrastructure

Eligible Investments

Bl. Industrial Sites -- Includes On-Site Utility Infrastructure & Buildings

Applicants seeking funding for development of industrial sites {including requests for on-site
infrastructure and buildings) must provide details on the scope of work and associated
development costs for the whole site, including a discussion of any funding necessary to
complete the project. Applications for on-site utility infrastructure will only be considered to
bring targeted properties to a higher level of business ready site certification or as part ofa
broader site development initiative with a scope beyond utility construction.

The application should provide documentation of a master plan reflecting intended industrial or
commercial uses and verify that the appropriate zoning for these uses is in place. Targeted
sectors including NAICS codes should be provided. Building requests must document that the
building and site specifications will satisfy the requirements of the targeted sector(s).

Priority will be given to projects that improve the readiness of sites already under deveiopment
within the region as opposed to the acquisition and development of new sites. Development of
new sites will only be considered when the applicant provides compelling evidence of a deficit of
competitive sites in the locality and surrounding region.

The redevelopment of brownfield sites is a funding interest for the Commission. A Phase 1
Environmental Site Assessment must be provided for brownfield site applications,

B2. Infrastructure -- Off-Site Utility Infrastructure

The Commission will only consider requests for off-site utility infrastructure that will
predominantly serve existing, clearly-defined economic development sites. The Commission will
only consider awarding grants for planning, engineering, and design associated with necessary
off-site utility infrastructure to serve the site; and the Commission will only consider awarding
loans for construction of off-site utility infrastructure,

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 9 of 22

~-38—



Reguirements

Depending on the nature of the project, Sites and Infrastructure proposals require one ormore
of the following documents (refer to Section Ili. Required Documents of this RFP):

YVVY

YV VVYY

Service Area and Project Location Map (required for all)

Master Plan with Targeted Sectors {required for all)

Fee Estimate or Proposal from Engineer {required for A&E and/or construction)
Construction Cost Estimate from Contractor {required for construction, if cost estimate Is
not provided by A&E)

Phase 1 Environmental Assessment Report (required for brownfield sites)

Virginia Business Ready Site Assessment Repart {required for sites assessed by VEDP)
Cash Flow Analysis with Rate Structure {required for utility infrastructure)

Inventory of available sites in locality and surrounding region {for new industriol sites)

Outputs / Metrics — Sites and Infrastructure

Applicants must identify the outputs expected to result from their project and explain how any
projections were calculated. Following are examples of Sites and Infrastructure output metrics:

Change in the site’s business ready tier characterization to improve marketability to
specific targeted sectors

Acres (and available lots) of graded or improved sites or sites served with necessary
infrastructure

Square footage of building constructed or renovated for new economic activity

Linear feet of access road constructed

Capacity increase and/or linear feet of water or sewer infrastructure improvements
Number and average salaries of new jobs created

Increase in taxable private capital investment

These are the typical project metrics for estimating outputs of economic development sites and
infrastructure projects. Applicants are expected to identify the appropriate project output metrics
that are expected to result from the implementation of their project.

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 10 of 22

~3G—



C. Agribusiness

Investment Category: Agribusiness

The Commission will consider awarding grants and foans for agribusiness projects that create or
expand market opportunities for regional producers and that result in a quantifiable increase in
net farm income. The two primary areas of interest to the Commission are the establishment of
value-added processing, aggregation, and marketing facilitles, and the development of emerging
and new market opportunities to diversify and enhance the region’s agricultural economy.

Priority will be given to reglonal facilities serving or benefiting multiple producers in more than
one locality. Investments will support increasing sales of agricultural commodities and
agricultural food products from the region. Projects must clearly demonstrate the identified
need or opportunity for a new or expanding market that brings economic value to the region.

Eligible Investments

C1. Value-Added Processing, Aggregation, and Marketing Facilities

Value-added processing, aggregation and marketing facilities add value by changing the
characteristics of the agricultural commodity to meet market demand. Applicants will use the
Agribusiness application and select one of the following Agribusiness Investment strategies:

{i) Commercial Agriculture Processing
(i) Community Food Processing

(iii) Farmers Markets

(iv) Multi-Purpose Agriculture Centers

Producer Collaboration & Cooperatives: The Commission’s priority Is to Invest in value-added
projects that support producers working in partnership through a producer-based business,
agricultural association, or a member-owned cooperative that benefits multiple producers.
Funding limits depend upon on whether the facility is publicly or privately owned and operated.

Private Ownership:

e Grants for Capital Projects - Grant requests for up to 25% of the total capital costs for
equipment for value-added processing facilities operated by a for-profit business whose
primary function involves theproduction, processing, or marketing of agricultural
products. Applications must be sponsored by an eligible applicant. The Commission’s
funding will require a performanceagreement under which the company will be required
to repay grant funds if it does not meet certain performance targets.

Public or Non-Profit Ownership:
e Grants for Capital Projects - Value-added facilities owned by a government entity or a
non-profit organization may apply for grants of up to 50% of total capital costs.

¢ Grants for Start-Up Operations - Governmental entities and non-profit organizations may
request grant support for start-up operating costs associated with new or expanding
value-added processing and aggregation facilities. Applicants must provide a sound
operating plan that shows decreasing reliance on Commission funds.

£Y23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Gulidelines and RFP / Page 11 of 22
_40_



Loans

e Applicants may apply for low-interest financing assistance to support capital costs for
start-up or expansion of a value-added processing facilities benefiting Tobacco Region
producers regardless of public or private ownership. Loans will be recommended for
projects where there is an identifiable revenue stream sufficient to repay the loan.

C2. Development of Market Opportunities

Projects that diversify and enhance the region’s agribusiness economy with a focus on new or
expanded market opportunities are eligible for funding. Applicants will use the Agribusiness
application and select one of the following Agribusiness investment strategies:

(i) Wholesale & Retail Cooperative Marketing
(ii} Crop Demaoanstrations
(i} Cost-Share Programs

Wholesale and Retail Cooperative Marketing < $20,000 grants - Small matching grants of up to
$20,000 to support marketing initiatives focused on obtaining access to new or expanding
markets to Increase agricultural product sales revenues will be considered. All projects must
benefit multiple producers. Eligible projects include those that facus on development of institutional
or commercial market opportunities; creation of on-line sales systems connecting buyers o
sellers; targeted marketing strategies for specialty crops; and creation of broker or expediter
services where a third party connects quality agricuiture products from several farms to new
market opportunities.

Crop Demonstrations Projects - Projects that assist producers in the development and
demonstration of high-value, low acreage crops (defined as those that have a higher net return
per acre compared to conventional commodity crops) will be considered. Projects seeking funds
for basic research activities will not be considered.

Cost Share Programs - Cost-share programs that focus on transitioning producers into alternative
agriculture enterprises or for implementing new best practices, directly resulting In an increase
to farmer income, will be considered. Projects must be regional and benefit a multi-county area.
Cost share incentive payments will be limited to no more than 33% of capital costs or the costs
of contracted services, Projects seeking funds for recurring farm expenses are not eligible.

All cost share program proposals must include the following:
- Education component with requirements for participation,
- Proposed cost-share program guldelines with eligible costs and evaluatlon criteria,
- Analysis of the return on investment to producers for implementing the practice(s},
- Demonstration of need and/or evidence of producer interest, and
- Adefined plan for monitoring and measuring outcomes.

EY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 12 of 22

_41_..



Requirements

in addition to any required information specified above, ali proposals for Agribusiness
investments must demonstrate the foliowing:

Benefit agriculture producers from Tobacco Region localities,

Have a clearly identified market opportunity,

Encourage private capital investment in farm operations or agribusiness facitities, and
Will result in measurable increases to net farm income.

Depending on the nature of the project, applications for Agribusiness funding will require the
following information (refer to the Required Documents section of this RFP):

Service Area and Project Location Map {required for ali)

Feasibility Study or similar analysis (required for publically owned vaiue-added facilities)
Business Plan or Operating Plan (required for value-added facilities)

Operating Budget and Pro Forma (required with Business Plan or Operating Plan)

Cost Estimate from Engineer or Construction Contractor (required for construction)
Detailed Equipment List and Equipment Quote (required for equipment purchases}
Marketing Plan {required for wholesale and retail cooperative marketing projects)
Operating Agreements (required for public-private partnerships)

Program Guidelines & Sub-Awards (required for cost-share programs)

YVVVVVVVYVYY

Cutputs / Metrics — Agribusiness

Applicants must identify the outputs that are expected to result from the project and explain how
the projections were calculated, Following are examples of Agribusiness output metrics:

e Number of agricultural producers benefitting

o Total doliar value of Tobacco Region agricultural products to be used annually
Increase in annual sales revenue for value-added agriculture products
Average (per farm), and aggregate annual increase to net farm income

Sales revenue for value-added agriculture products resulting from the project
Number of new jobs created by new or expanding agriculture based business
Increase in taxable private capital investment

. & & @

These are the typical project metrics for estimating outputs of agribusiness projects. Applicants
are expected to identify the project outputs that are most applicable to their project.

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 13 of 22
..4 2...



D. Tourism

investment Category: Tourism

The Commission will consider awarding grants and loans for tourism destination infrastructure
projects and for regional tourism marketing initiatives. The Commission prioritizes regional
projects of interest to national or international markets. Applicants must demonstrate the ability
of the project to attract measurable visitor revenues from outside the Tobacco Region,

Applicants for Tourism projects will use the Economic Development application, and will choose
from one of the following investment Strategies:

{N Heritage Tourism Sites (museums, historic sites, etc.)
(i) Outdoor Recreation Tourism (recreation trails, blueways trails, etc.)
(iiiy  Marketing Campaigns and Initiatives

Eligible Investments

D1. Tourism Destination Infrastructure
{Heritage Tourism Sites and Outdoor Recreation Tourism}

Infrastructure investments in tourism destinations wili only be considered for sites of
documented national or international interest. Heritage tourism sites or outdoor recreation
tourism destinations must demonstrate the ability to attract a measureable increase in visitors
and visitor spending from outside the Tobacco Region. The significance and connection of these
sites to larger regional, state, or national tourism initiatives must be documented.

The development of local recreational and cultural amenities such as tralls, theaters, and historic
sites primarily serving a local market will not be considered. Tourism destination projects that do
not demonstrate the ability to attract significant visitor spending from outside the region will not
he considered for funding.

D2. Regional Tourism Marketing Campaigns and initiatives

Projects under this investment strategy should be focused on specific campaigns that will lead to
the attraction of new visitors to an area {e.g. Southern Virginia, or a muiti-county tourism areas)
of the Tobacco Region from national or international markets, Priority will be given to supporting
marketing projects that seek to market the larger region as a whole rather than those that focus
on an individual site or an initiative-specific campaign.

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 14 of 22

....43_



Requirements

Ali applications must include economic impact projections as well as a description of the data
collection ot visitor tracking mechanism that will be used to document the number of new visitors
to the region and associated spending resulting from the project.

Depending on the nature of the project, applications for Tourism funding will require the
following information (refer to the Required Documents section of this RFP):

YVVVVYVYY

Service Area and Project Location Map (required for all)

Feasibility Study or similar analysis (required for new tourism infrastructure and initiatives)
Economic Impact Study {required for new or expanded tourism infrastructure)

Cost Estimate from Engineer or Contractor (required for construction)

Business Plan or Operating Plan {required for taurism infrastructure and initiatives)
Marketing Plan (required for marketing requests)

Qutputs / Metrics - Tourism

Applicants must identify the outputs that are expected to resuit from their project and explain
how any projections were calculated. Following are examples of Tourism output metrics:

Number of new visitors to the region

Increase in annual visitor spending

Increases in tourism-related tax revenues (e.g., lodging)
Increased annual sales revenue from ticket or business sales
Number of new or existing tourism husinesses benefiting
Direct job creation at tourism destination

" These are the typical project metrics for estimating outputs of tourism projects. Applicants are
expected to identify the project outputs that are more applicable to their project.

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginla Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 15 of 22

-4 4~



REQUIRED DOCUMENTS

Depending on the nature of the project, applicants may be required to submit several other
documents so the Commission and its staff are fully informed about all pertinent aspects of the
project. As these will vary by project type, this list is not exhaustive and applicants should submit
any other documents they believe will assist during the review process.

A.

12

Service Area and Project Lacation Map — Maps of the project’s service area should be
provided for projects where more than one specific area is served.

Line Item Detailed Budget - All requests must include a line item detailed budget with
supporting details on proposed project costs, including how Commission resources and
matching funds will be used. A template available in the online application may be used
to provide this information. Other line item detail formats will be accepted provided they
contain all pertinent information.

Cost Estimate from Engineer or Construction Contractor — Requests for construction
expenses must provide a current written cost estimate from a licensed architect, engineer
or contractor, as appropriate for the project. In addition, applicants must provide
additional supporting documents including preliminary engineering reports, other
relevant ARE documents, building plans, etc. with the application.

Detailed Equipment List and Equipment Quotes — Requests for the purchase of
equipment, must provide a detailed equipment list and quotes from product vendors.

Business Plan or Operating Plan - A Business Plan or Operating Plan that describes the
operational requirements for the project and how those requirements will be met should
be submitted, if applicable.

Operating Budget and Pro Forma - All requests for projects that will have ongoing
operating costs must demonstrate how operation of the new or expanded program or
facility is expected to be sustained beyond a start-up period of no more than three years.
An operating budget or pro forma with revenues and expenses must be provided showing
projections for how the program/facilities will be supported.

Feasibility Study - A feasibility study or similar analysis that demonstrates that the
proposed business concept is technically and economically feasible should be submitted,
if applicable. This analysis evaluates the practicality and viability of an idea and should
answer the question “should we proceed with the proposed project idea”.

Economic fmpact Study - The potential economic impact of the project to the region must
be documented. While the Commission is primarily interested in the direct impact,
estimates of the indirect and induced impacts may be provided.

£V23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 16 of 22

- 5-



I. Marketing Plan - A marketing plan to describe the project’s target market and the plan to
capture that market must be described in the application, if appiicable.

l. Performance Agreements — Provide terms for private sector performance agreements,

K. Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment — Required for brownfield site applications.

L. Virginia Business Ready Sites Program Assessment Report — A copy of the Virginia
Business Ready Site Assessment for industrial site properties; with the most recent Tier
characterization certification letter, if Tier level has been updated since the assessment.

VL. Inventory of Available Sites — A complete listing of all publically owned sites located in

the applicant locality and the surrounding region must be provided for new industrial site
funding requests.

N. Operating Agreements - Agreements (Memoranda of Understanding, contracts, or
similar documents) between project partners are required whenever there are multiple
beneficiaries of the project.

0. Program Guidelines & Sub-Awards - Applications requesting support for incentive
programs (e.g., agriculture cost share or business development community business
launch programs) must provide a copy of the proposed Program Guidelines. This will
describe the governance of the program including its eligibility criteria, funding
limitations, and program requirements. When the project will result in sub-awarding of
TRRC funding to other recipients, the details of the sub-award arrangements including a
draft of the proposed contract agreement must be provided.

P. cash Flow Analysis with Rate Structure - For projects that will generate revenues,
appilcants must provide {i) a detalled cash flow analysis that shows a baseline of current
operations and expected changes to revenues and expenditures if an award is approved,
and (i) a proposed or currently adopted rate structure for new and/or existing customers.
Proposed or planned changes to the rate structure that will result from and/oris
necessary to support the project requested for support from the Commission must be
identified.

Q. Letters of Support - Applicants are encouraged to provide letters from project partners,
beneficiaries and others that demonstrate the commitment of resources to the project or
document demand for the project. Redundant form letters of support are discouraged
and do not add value to an application.

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 17 of 22
_46“



IV. REQUIREMENTS OF FUNDING

A. Grants and Loans

This REP seeks applications for both grants and {oans. Staff will typically recommend that loans
he awarded to projects that are expected to generate sufficient revenues to service debt even
when the application sought a grant. TRRC offers competitive interest rates and will entertain
flexible loan terms, such as forbearance periods during construction or startup periods and
interest only payments. In addition, the Commission will also entertaln applications for a
combination of a grant and loan as part of the same award.

The Virginia Resources Authority {VRA) administers TRRC loans and applicants to which loans are
awarded must provide any additional documentation that VRA or TRRC requests,

B. Award Information

It is anticipated that the Commission will approve multiple awards—including grants and loans—
as a result of this RFP. After the Commission makes award decisions, grant agreements will be
issued for the amounts and with any conditions as approved by the Commission.

The Commission will typically use its standard restricted or unrestricted grant agreements for

selected projects. All grantees are required to foliow the Commission’s Funding Policies as a

condition of the award, The standard grant agreement and the Funding Policies are available on

" the Commission’s webpage. The Commission reserves the right to update its standard grant
agreement and Funding Policies at any time. '

C. P.ayment of Grant Funds

Payment of grant funds will be subject to the terms of the grant agreement and will be disbursed
on a reimbursement basis. Expenses incurred prior to the award date are not eligibie for
reimbursement. The standard reimbursement period is guarterly, unless otherwise agreed to by
Commission staff. The grantee is required to provide appropriate documentation of the
expenditures and use of required matching funds for the project. The Commission’s Funding
policies contain additional information that applicants should review closely.

D. Reporting

Grantees must provide annual reports on the financial and quantitative progress made toward
completion of the project’s milestones and outputs and provide a narrative discussion of
progress. A final report including a narrative on the success of the project, attainment of
nroposed outputs, and a description of the long-term expectations and achievements for the

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 18 of 22

-7




project is required at the close of the project. The Commission will not process the final payment
request until all the grantee has satisfied all reporting requirements.

Additionally, grantees must provide any additional or interim reporting information the

Commission may request to ensure the provisions of the grant agreement are properly carried
out, administered and enforced.

E. Assets

As a condition of awarding a grant, the Commission will have a claim to all property and assets in
which Commission grant funds were invested and the Commission must-approve any
conveyances of such property and assets. This applies to investments in real property, intellectual
property, and equipment purchases greater than $5,000. The details of these requwements are
included in the grant agreement and the Commission’s Funding Policies.

V. ATTACHMENTS
¥ Attachment A — Evaluation Criteria

> Attachment B —Tobacco Region Map of Eligible Localities

£Y23 TRREC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 19 of 22

! 8_




Attachment A

Assessment of Need & Eligibility {15 points)}
Problem / Need - Clearly Identified problem or need to be addressed. (5)

Assessment of Need & Planning - Significance and strategic fit of project to the community,as
demonstrated by assessment of need or opportunity, and evidence of stakeholder inputand support
in project design. (5)

TRRC Priority - Fit with the Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission's mission, Strategic Plan,
investment categories and funding priorities. (5)
Methodology & Project Feasibility (25 points)

Methodology - Logical and feasible approach to addressing objective and meeting investment
metrics/output deliverable objectives that will benefit economic revitalizationin the region. (10}

Timeline & Milestones - Project describes how objectives will be achieved under a realisticwork pian.
Progress steps and estimated dates for completion provided. (5)

Project Team - Experience and demonstrated expertise of project team for accomplishingobjectives. (5)

Feasibility - Focus of project pianning, and feasibility to accomplish direct outcomes benefiting economic
revitalization in the Tobacco Region. {5)

Project Budget and Match (15 poinis)

Budget Detail - Budget is reasonable, realistic and cost-effective. Planned use of funds supported by a
budget narrative, and with quotes and estimates. (5)

Match - Leveraging of non-TRRC resources is evident with appropriate sources andamounts
of cash commitments and other funding, and in-kind match contributionsidentified. {5)

Additional Match - Leveraging of non-TRRC resources exceeds minimum 1:1 requirement. {5)

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guldelines and REP / Page 20 of 22

-4 99—



Sustainability for Long-Term Success (15 points)
Sustainability - Demonstrated financial plans with cash-flow analysis and pro-forma budgets, Clear
plan for financial sustainability and ability to maintain effort beyond the term of grant funding. (10)

Long Term Impact on Region & Communities - Regional cooperation and financial
collaboration. Likelihood for benefits of the project to accrue regionally and/or serve as a model for
other communities. {5}

A. AGRIBUSINESS

Ability to create agribusiness opportunities and to increase net farm income, with an emphasis on
systemic or collective benefit. Evidence of producer interestand market opportunity.

B. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Ability to recruit or expand business development opportunities, thereby leading to an increase in jobs,
incomes, and revenues in the region.

C. INDUSTRIAL SITES & INFRASTRUCTURE

Addresses critical needs to improve economiccompetitiveness of the region and to result in long-
term iob creation and private capital investment.

D. TOURISM

Ability to significantly and directly, increase number of visitors from outsidethe region and beyond the
Commonwealth; and with the increase in tourist and visitors toincrease visitor spending in the region.

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 21 of 22

-5 0....



Attachment B

Counties & Cities Eligible for Tobacco Commission Funding

The service area for the Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission includes 40-
tobacco-dependent localities in the Southern and Southwest areas of Virginia. Eligible
applicants serving these localities are eligible to apply to the Commission’s grant programs
for projects that will enhance the economic growth and development of the region.

SOUTHWEST AREA

Counties:
Bland
Buchanan
Carroll
Dickenson
Floyd
Grayson
Lee

Russell
Scott
Smyth
Sussex
Tazewell
Washington
Wise
Wythe

es:
Bristol
Galax

Norton

E L

SOUTHERN AREA

Counties:
Amelia
Appomattox
Bedford
Brunswick
Buckingham
Campbell
Charlotte
Cumberland
Dinwiddie
Franklin
Greensville

Halifax

Henry

Lunenburg
Mecklenburg Nottoway
Patrick

Pittsylvania

Prince Edward

Cities
Danville
Emporia
Martinsville

FY23 TRRC Southern Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 22 of 22

- —51-



'SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA
COMMITTEE

—-52~




. In-Per ‘SO Meetmg "

AGENDA

SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMITTEE
Homewoed Suites by Hilton, Capital Ballroom
; 700 East Main Street, Richmond, VA 23219
Wednesday, January 4, 2023
3:45 P.M.

In accordance with §2.2-3708.3 of the Code of Virginia, public access for this meeting is being provided both in person and
through electronic communications means., Video will not be used for this meeting, only audio. The public may 1emotely
participate in this meeting by utilizing the following meeting link:

https:/virginiatobaccoconmission.my.webex convvirginiatobaccocommissionmy/A.php?MTID=mdc | 9bbea837293b683cb494fdfeleabl

If participating by phone, please dial:
1-408-418-9388 (toll) and enter meeting number: 2631 326 6747 and password: 78495872

If duung the meeting electronic transmission fails, the public may alert the Commission by calling 804-894-9652. or

emailing jbutler@revitalizeva.org. If alerted to a transmission failure, the Committee shall recess until public access is
restored.

Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Will Morefield, Chair

Call of the Reoil Mpr. Andy Sorrell, Acting Director
Approval of the 10/5/22 Minutes (published on website)

Public Comment

FY 2023 Southwest Va. Applications Ms. Sara Williams, Southwest Regional Director
Extensions & Modifications Ms. Sara Williams, Southwest Regional Director
Other Business Myr. Andy Sorrell, Acting Director

Public Comment

Adjournment

_53_.



FY23 Southwest Virginia Progtam
Staff Summaries and Recommendations
October 20, 2022

The Commission teceived fourteen applications by the October 20, 2022, application deadline
of the FY23 Southwest Vitginia Program, Two applications were later withdrawn. One project
was tabled at the May 2022 meeting. These thirteen applications are grouped below by
investment categoty. The Southwest Virginia Committec will act on these applications at its
meeting scheduled for January 4, 2023 at 3:45 p.m.

Req Request Recommended

4 Organization Project Title Amount Amount
. ) Improving Genetics, Health,
do9s  Abingon Feeder Cale and Management of Small $299,880 $299,880
clato Ruminants in SWVA

Vacuum Cooler-Value Added

4128  Carroll County Project

$96,000 $96,000

Blue Ridge Crossroads Wildwood Commerce Park Site

4109 Economic Development 1 Due Diligence and Design $168,750 $188,750
Authority Setvices
M27 Washington County Oale Park, Lot 8 Rattway $500,000  $500,000
Extenston

LENOWISCO Planning LENOWISCO InvestSWVA
20 District Commission 3.0 (RMI) $400000  $400,000
4425 Recrention Authosi o mnples - Whise-C $524:153 withdrawn
TRRC — F'¥23 Southwest Virginia Program -~ Staff Summaries 8 Recommendations — January 2023 page 1

_54_



Battet Theatre Regional

4100 ‘The Barter Foundation, Inc. Marketing Campaign $105,000 $105,000
4103  Birthplace of Country Music Bisthplace of Country Music $500,000 $500,000
Museum Expansion
4101 ‘Town of Haysi Haysi Trails Center $650,206 $650,206

. $240,000
4116  Song of the Mountains ?{Znigt;hfziiﬁ/lountams reduced to $120,600
: v $120,000
Southern Gap Amphitheatet
3975  Sanset Holler, Inc, Project: Construction $500,060 %500,0600
Documents & Construction
FownofFarewell
4102  Industrial/Beonomie Farewell-Spotts-Center $250.000 withdrawn

Blue Ridge Public Television,

—-55—

Ine PBS Appalachia Virginia $530,000 . $400,000
Mendota Communt Revitalization of Former
41y endom unity Mendota School Building and $38,485 table
Association
Grounds
Vitginia Coalfields Cell
4097 Virginia Coalfield Coalition Covetage Assessment Planning  $40,000 $40,000
Grant
TOTAL (15 requests)  $4,622,474 $3,799,836
 TRRC — FY23 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Summaties & Recommendations — January 2023 ‘ page 2




3 i :
Agribusines

Abingdon Feeder Cattle Association

Improving Genetics, Health, and Management of Small Ruminants in § WVA
(#4098}
$299,880.00 Requested

Project Summary:

TRRC funds will be used to continue a program to provide cost share for small ruminant producers
in the entire SW region to assist with genetic improvements to herds as well as equipment and
facility needs required for effective herd management. Suppott for the first round of this program
was approved in May 2022.

Imptoving the genetic quality and health of flocks and hetds is impottant because small ruminants
ate susceptible to parasites, diseases, and predators. Purchasing genetically superior breeding stock
will result in less animal Josses, seduced production costs, increased productivity, and generally
healthies flocks. The majority of grant funds ($294,000) will be used for producet cost share
payments. A small amount ($5,880) is allocated for administrative expenses such as printing,

postage, and tax form preparation, Grant fands will reimburse 33% of eligible costs up to a $3,000
limit. ‘

Matching Funds: :
A minimum of $890,910 of matching funds will be provided by the program patticipants.

Profect Outputs;

'This request will suppott approximately 98 producers assuming cach patticipant receives the
maximum allowable cost share payment, These patticipants will increase their net farm income by at
least $1,312 per year. ‘This figure, an average across a wide range of hesd sizes, is based upon the
assumption that a 5% increase in weight results in an additional 4 lbs. per lamb sold. At $4.00/1bs.
this will result in an additional $16 per lamb sold.

Staff Comments:

'The first grant for this cost shate program was approved in May 2022, Due to Staff's concerns about
the lack of participation in previous small ruminant cost share programs, only $215,000 of the
original §428,400 request amount was recommended for approval. Staff felt that a smalles initial
awatd, to gauge the interest of participants, was more approptiate, The recommendation noted that,
should demand for the program exceed the approved funding, a future application could be
submitted o continue the project for a second tound.

The program has been very well received in the region and all available funding was quickly
allocated. The fitst grant allowed for 70 producer awards, assuming each received the maximam cost
share amount. At time of application, 76 applications have been approved. An additional 50
applications have been teceived and are pending until additional funds become available,

TRRC - FY23 Southwest Vieginfa Program ~ Staff Summaries & Recommendations — January 2023 page 3

-5 6_



Financial Viability Assessment:
The populatity of the program i the first round indicates that it was well-received by the targeted
farming market, and will gencrate the necessaty transfer payments to fulfill the cost share.

Staff Recommendation;

Staff recommends approval a $299,880 grant award to suppott a second, and final, round of this
cost shate program.

Carroll County
Vacuum Cooler Value Added Project (#4128)
$96,000.00 Requested

Project Summary:

Commission funds ate tequested to assist Virginia Produce Company, a private entetprise located in
Cattoll County, with costs associated with the purchase of vacuum coolers and telated equipment.
Comimission funds will reimburse 25% of the total cost for the coolers which are significantly more
efficient compared to conventional cooling equipment. The total equipment cost fo this project is
$384,000 tepresenting the purchase of 2 Vacaum Coolers (§339,000) and a forklift (845,000,

Matching Funds:

Vitginia Produce Company has committed $205,000 for the purchase of the vacuum cooling
equipment and for related infrastructuse improvements requited for the project. Funding from
Cartoll County ($33,000) is committed to the project and an appiication to the Vigginia Agriculture
& Potestry Industties Development Fund (AFID) program ($50,000) is pending,

Project Outputs:

Vacuum cooling equipment will be instalied at Virginia Produce Company creating a longer shelf life
fot ptoduce resulting in an additional $620,162 increase in sevenue for TRRC region producers.

Staff Comments:

The installation of vacuum cooling equipment will allow Vitginia Produce Company to continuc to
market produce for regional produce growers, Using a vacuum cooling system rather than a
traditional hydro cooling system to chill fresh produces decreases chill time from several hours to
only a few minutes. Vacuum cooling also results in mote consistent evaporation actoss vegetable
surfaces. These factors increase the sheif life of produce which is important because VPC pays its
suppliers (Farmets) based on the product that reaches a retailer. When produce must be discarded
before it reaches market the farmer loses revenue, Increasing shelf life will allow VPC to hold
inventory longet to adjust for supply and demand fluctuations. These equipment upgtades will
ptotect existing market oppottunities due to changing retailer guidelines that requite very specific
temperature measutements. A longer shelf life will also allow VPC to matket produce to a latger
transportation area to inctease sales oppottunities for regional producets. |

The current REP for this program allows privately owned value added processing facilities to request

suppott for up to 25% of equipment costs. These awatds requite a performance agreement which
requites repayment of grant funds if performance targets are not met. Due to VPC's 20+ year

TRRC — FY23 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 4

....57...



history as cotpotate citizen of the region, and its reputation of providing valuable matket
opportunities to local produce growets, there appears to be little risk that the proposed equipment
upgrades will not result in revenue increases for both the company and its associated growers.
Virginia Produce’s ability to attract additional growets is somewhat limited by the number of
 certified (le. GAP certified) growets. A cost share program suppotted by this Committec a year ago
is available for produce growers who would like to obtain this certification which is requited to
matket produce to retailers, VPC has been a strong supportet of the cost share program and
attempts to increase participation. Because the ability to attract new growers from the SWVA region
is somewhat limited for VPC, Staff requests that this Committee allow flexibiliy for the Executive
Director to set performance targets for the project which ate achievable for VPC and offer
protection for TRRC’s investment. The inclusion of AFID funding for the project offers further
assurance that this is a viable project resulting in 2 measurable retutn on investment for producers.
An award by the Commission award should be contingent upea the approval of the AFID funding,

Financial Viability Assessment:
Increasing the shelf life of the produce through the use of the vacuum cooling equipment is

projected to increase revenues fot the growers, and should pay off in terms of the efficiencies
created,

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of a2 $96,000 grant award contingent upon the following
conditions, 1) The approval of the pending AFID application and 2) The execution of a
performance agreement with performance measutses to be set by the Executive Ditector.

Blue Ridge Ctossroads Economic Development Authotity
Wildwood Commetce Park Site 1 Due Diligence and Design Setvices (#4109)
$188,750.00 Requested

Project Suinmary: ~ .
Commission suppott is requested for 50% of due diligence and design costs for Site 1 of the
Wildwood Commetce Park, Site 1 is the final available property at Wildwood. The Park’s Tier 5 sites
(2 and 4) are currently under an option agteement with a prospect. A concurtent request for the
construction pottion of Site 1 development has been submitted to VEDP’s Virginia Business Ready
Site Program and is pending, VBRSP Site Charactetization currently classifies the site as Tiet 2.
Completion of due diligence will allow the site to advance to Tiet 3.

Matching Funds:
Matching funds ($188,750) are committed by BRCEDA localities.

Project Outputs;

Due diligence, design, and permitting will be completed for the propesty allowing progtession to
Tier 3 certification. The following will be completed:

TRRC — FY23 Southwest Vitginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — January 2023 page 5

.....58_



o Geophysical & Geotechnical Explotation & Repott Phase T ESA Waters of US Delineation
and Determination Waters of the US Permitting Cultural Resoutces Review Threatened &
Endangered Species Review

o  Mass Grading & Infrastructuse designs and engineering plans
¢ Permitting for site wotk, including but not limited to mass grading and infrasttucture

Staff Comments:

This is a reasonable request for due diligence work for the only remaining site at the Wildwood
Commetce Park, Wildwood’s attractive location, adjacent to 1-77 and only 13 miles from the I-77/
1-81 interchange, has made it one of SWVA’s most atiractive industrial parks. Due diligence is
required before construction can proceed. Because an application for construction has already been
submitted to VEDP’s Virginia Business Ready Site Program, completion of due diligence is ctitical
to the compeitiveness of that application. Site 1 is the final available propetty in the park and
tequires substantial site development work befote it can be matketed to prospects. This appeats to
be a high priority need fot this regional industrial patk,

Financial Viability Assessment;

The financial viability for the marketing of this propetty is dependent upon the completion of the
due diligence, and suppotting a portion of the costs to make progress toward realizing the full
potential of the commerce patk,

Sraff Recommendation:
Staff recommends a grant awatd of $188,750 for 50% of due diligence and design activities
required for Site 1.

Washington County
Oak Park, Lot 8 Railway Extension (#4127)
$500,000.00 Requested

Project Summary:

Funding is requested to support 50% of the cost to design and construct a 1,300 foot rail spur to
serve Lot 8 at Oak Patk. The lack of rail access has been noted by several prospects as a teason fot
not selecting the site. The 70 acre pad is rated as Tier 2 under VEDP’s Ready Sites Program.

Matching Funds:
The applicant has committed $500,000 to complete the project.

Project Outputs:
The project will suppozt the construction of a 1,300 foot rail spus.

Staff Comments:

The addition of a rail extension to serve Lot 8 of Oak Park will assist the locality in marketing the
propetty to prospective industtics, The application notes that there have been ten declinations from
prospective industries over the past three yeats due to the lack of a rail extension. The Park’s
readiness is cugrently certified as 'Tier 2 under VEDP’s Virginia Business Ready Sites Program

TRRC — FY?23 Southwest Vitginia Program - Staff Summaries & Recommendations — January 2023 page 6

....59_



however it appears that 'Tier 4 status can be achieved in fairly short order. Although rail access is not
a requirement for Tier 4 status, the lack of service was noted in the VBRSP report. The tepost states
that cootdination with Notfolk Southern will be necessaty to determine the feasibility and costs of
the extension, The estimate provided with the application is from a local engineering firm (the Lane
Group). It is unknown if Nosfolk Southern was consulted.

Staff recognizes that the lack of rail access has hindered industeial recruitment efforts for Oak Park.
While thete is little doubt that the addition of a rail spur will make the site more matketable, there is
great concern that TRRC has been asked to fund 50% of the estimated cost. Another state program,
the VEDP Vitginia Rail Industtial Access Program, exists to assist with the development of rail

~ projects. The Oalk Park project does not currently qualify for VIRIAP because it is an incentive
program intended for projects with active prospects and cannot be used for speculative
development. Staff recognizes this constraint however, to provide consistency with TRRC’s policy
that Comumission funds should not be used to supplant other state or federal funds, it is important
that all other reasonable sources be utilized first to ptotect this Committee’s limited resources. As an
alternative to declining ot tabling the application until the project qualifies and can pursue VIRIAP,
it is reasonable to recommend suppott for the project with contingencies that require eventual
application to that progtam, This will allow the applicant to have committed funds for the project
that can be used to illustrate to prospects that the tail extension can be added to the propertyin a
timely manner.

Financial Viability Assessment:

While staff recognizes the impottance of the rail spur to the marketability of the site, it is the
Commission’s policy not to supplant other existing state funding programs pritarily serving the
project’s purpose.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of a grant award of up to $500,000 for 50% of remaining costs
after the following conditions have been met. 1) The identification of a prospect for the site
and 2) A successful application to the Vitginia Rail Industrial Access Program.

LENOWISCO Planning District Commission
LENOWISCO InvestSWVA 3.0 (RMI) (#4120)
$400,000.00 Requested

Project Summary:

Funding is requested for a thitd round of support for the InvestSWVA regional matketing inidative.
The grant will fund the initiative for two additional yeats (July 1, 2023 ~ June 30, 2025). This phase
of the project will focus on accelerating lead generation and project development work in the region.
Several projects are currently in the pipeline undergoing due diligence and requite additional time for
resolution. Commission funds will be used to support contractual services with Coalfield Strategies.

TRRC — FY 23 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Summaties & Recommendations — January 2023 page ¥

-p0-




Matching Funds:

Commission funds will be matched with tequests to Dominion Energy $200,000 and Appalachian
Power $200,000.

Project Outputs:

The application estimates that, at the end of the project petiod, 4 prospects will have committed to
the region,

Staff Comments:

The Commission has provided two previous grants totaling $800,000 to the Lenowisco PDC to
support the first four years of this regional marketing project. The InvestSWVA effort has proven to
be extremely valuable for the region resulting in the commitment of five companies (SPIG Industty,
eHealth Technologies, EarthLink, Coronado Global Resources and Paymerang) will create an
estimated 789 jobs. Additional projects ate underway at various stages of development and require
additional time for completion. The application outlines an ambitious plan to initiate contact with at
least 48 new prospects. Of these initial contacts, 36 will tequest additional information about the
region and 20 will follow up with visits. Fout prospects will commit to the region. Continuing
suppott allow time to complete projects alteady under development and provide an oppottunity to
explote new oppostunities for the region.

Financial Viability Assessment;
The project has sufficient suppott to maintain its viability over the two-year project petiod.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends awarding a grant of $400,000 contingent upon the following conditions to
encourage equitable marketing efforts across the region: (1) the Executive Directot’s
approval of the terms of the renewed contract between the applicant and its consultant, and
(2) Staff’s continued participation in InvestSWVA’s leadership and strategy development.

The Barter Foundation, Inc.
Barter Theatre Regional Matketing Campaign (#4100)
$105,000.00 Requested

Project Summary: Commission funds will be used for two additional years of contractual support
for implementation of the Theatre’s regional marketing campaign Funding will be used to tetain
the services of Anat Gerstein Inc., the public selations fitm selected by Barter in March, 2022, TRRC
currently supports the first phase of this project under #3925 (§70,000) approved in January 2022.
Duting the second phase the campaign will utilize the knowledge gained over the past several
months to continue to develop and implement the campaign., Digital and print earned media
placements will be generated for targeted markets around the nation.

TRRC — FY23 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Sutnmaries & Recommendations — January 2023 page 8

_61_



Matching Funds:

BRarter will conttibute $65,000 for ad buys in target markets duting 2023 and 2024, 'The Theatre has
also committed §15,000 to match TRRC funds for the cost of the public relations firm, Additionally,
in-kind suppott of $25,000 representing marketing staff houts dedicated to the project will also be
provided.

Project Outputs;

Barter will continue to work to restore and eventually exceed pre-pandemic attendance levels.
During the grant pericd, visitation will increase to 17,692 annually (increase of 1608), Annual
tevenue from these patrons is projected to be $688,608 (increase of $62,600). These figures reflect
an annual increase of 10%.

Sraff Comments:

TRRC approved a request in January 2022 to provide funding for the initial phase of this project to
assist Batter in its post-Covid tecovery by developing a marketing program which appeals to utban
theatregoers and cultural tourises from select, densely-populated markets outside the region, The
Theater would like to restote attendance to pre-pandemic levels while increasing attendance by 10%
each year. Attendance increases will allow Baster to increase revenues and will allow the Theatre
assume tesponsibility for the Anat contract at the end of the grant period and to continue to utilize
the firm’s services on an ongoing basis.

The campaign desctibed in the previous application focused on matkets within 2 6 hour drive radius
of Abingdon.. Anat’s research during the first phase helped to refine the target markets and to advise
on the best opportunities to pitch nationally. The campaign was also amended to include a focus on
targeting the hometowns of the involved artists. These artists change with each production allowing
the markets to be adjusted. Additiopally, the target matket area has been updated to focus on
locations closer to Abingdon, These include Chatlotte, Asheville, Lexington KY, Roanoke/
Richmond, Atlanta, Knoxville, and Chattanooga. These locations continue to meet this program’s
tequitement that tourism projects result in the attraction of visitors from national and intesnational
matkets.

Financial Viability Assessment:

Tnitial results from the matketing campaign ate positive, Bartet’s attendance is growing however the
Theatre’s post-Covid recovery will require multiple years of effort in ordet to be effective. The
approval of continuation funding for this initiative will increase its likelihood of success and protect
Batter’s position as one of the premier tourism venues in the region.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends the approval of a $105,000 grant awasd.

TRRC — FY23 Southwest Virginia Program — Sta ff Summaties & Recommendations — January 2023 page ¢

—-[7—




Birthplace of Country Music
Birthplace of Countty Music Museum Expansion (#4103)
$500,000.00 Requested

Project Summaty:

Funding is requested by the Bitthplace of Country Music, Inc. (BCM) to support construction costs
associated with the expansion of the BCM Museum (BCMM). In 2015 BCM completed the
putchase of the building adjacent to the Museum, This building, now tefesred to as the Annex, will
allow BCMM to greatly increase the size of the overall property to 41,000 SF. The new space will
allow for the expansion and improvement of the areas used to house both core and special exhibits
as well as creating an atea to stage and house special exhibits when not on display. Archival space, a
recording and radio production area, activity space, education space, and additional offices are
among the other areas that will created or improved as a result of the expansion. All new museumn
spaces will comply with Smithsonian standatds for temperature, humidity, and sound in ordet to
maintain out Smithsonian Affiliate status. The estimated cost to complete development of the
Annex is $3,582,397 including futnishings and technology.

Matching Funds:

Matching funds ate committed from the Cabell Foundation (§275,000), Community Project Funding
($500,000), and Genan Foundation ($50,000). State and Historic T'ax Credits totaling $1,342,250
have also been apptoved for the project. An application has been submitted to DHCD’s Industrial
Revitalization Fund ($1M) to complete funding needs. If this application is successful, and all othet
match temains available, there will be a small overage of ($84,853) of requited funds.

Project Outputs:
The expansion of the Museum footpgint will result in the creation of 5 new jobs with an average

salary of $34,000. An additional 8436 visitors are expected each year resulting in $125,825 of new
revenue for the Museum.

Staff Comments:

The Commission has provided significant suppott for the establishment of the BCMM from the
catliest stages of its development. Several previous grants totaling §4,072,943 were awarded to the
BCMA between 2004 and 2011 to assist with the planning, design, and construction of the Museum
and exhibits. The Annex projeét received $250,000 from TRRC in 2015 for Phase 1 renovation
expenses including roof replacement and structural improvements. An additional grant ($250,000)
was awarded in 2016 however that grant expited and was eventually denied an extension due to a
large deficit in the amount of matching funds required to complete the project, Staff suggested that
BCM reapply to the Commission once additional fundraising had been completed and the project
was closet to reaching full funding, These effosts appear to have been very successful and Staff is
assured that there are sufficient matching funds in place to allow the project to proceed.

As the result of the substantial suppott provided by the Commission, and other funders, ovet the
years, the BCMM has become a showpiece for Bristol and the region. Its reputation as a premier
museum destination has allowed the Museum to become a major economic driver in the region. The
marketing plan provided with the application notes that the economic impact of the museum is
close to $2M annually. The expansion, patticulatly to the exhibit spaces, will allow BCM to attract

TRRC - FY23 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Summaties & Recommendations -- January 2023 page 10

_63._.




both new first time visitors as well as repeat visitors resulting in an additional $1M of economic
impact in the community.

Financial Viability Assessment:

Since opening in 2014, thousands of people from all 50 states and 45 foreign countries have visited
the Museum. This level of success certainly meets this program’s requirement that tourism projects
result in the attraction of visitors from national and international markets and provides confidence
that the proposed expansion will allow BCM to continue its role as a tourism leader in the region.

Staff Recormmendation;

Staff recommends a grant award of $500,000 for last dollar construction costs associated
with the redevelopment of the Annex property.

Town of I—Iayéi
Haysi Trails Center (#4101)
$650,206.00 Requested

Project Sumnmary:

Commission funds will be used to complete construction of the Haysi Trails Ceater in Downtown
Haysi. The project, involving the renovation of the former Haysi Theater, was fully funded through
grants from ARC and VCEDA however additional floodproofing is now required for the second
floor. The Trails Center will serve visitors to the Town of Haysi which is located directly along ot
adjacent to six major outdoor recteational destinations.

Matching Funds:

Matching funds have been committed from the Appalachian Regional Commission (§788,516) and
Vitginia Coalfield Economic Development Authority (§150,000).

Project Outputsy

Construction of the Haysi Trails Center will be completed, The facility is expected to setve, 1000
new, non-local, visitors each yeat,

Staff Comments:

Commission funds will be used to close an unexpected funding gap in this otherwise fully funded
project. Although it is a latge request telative to other projects presented to this Committee it
represents true “last dollar” support for a project that is nearly construction ready. At this time the
project is undergoing final design and plans to begin construction in mid-late Q1 of 2023. The
recent discovety of additional floodproofing requitements for the building’s second floot cteated a
funding deficit that TRRC suppott will alleviate.

"The Haysi Trails Center is identified in the Town of Haysi’s Downton Revitalization Economic
Resttucturing and Master Plan developed in 2010, The multiphase revitalization project centets on
Haysi’s location along or adjacent to six majot outdoor recreational hotspots including Breaks
Interstate Park which welcomes 300k visitors each year, The trailhead of Spearhead Trails’
“Ridgeview Trail” is located in Haysi. World class rapids attract hundreds of whitewater raftets to

the Town each October. Haysi also attracts numerous cyclists, The Trail Center will provide a multi-

TRRC — FY23 Southwest Virginiz Program — Staff Summaries & Recotmmendations - January 2023 page 11

_64...



use venue to serve visitors to the Town which is lacking in tourism suppott businesses and
infrastructure, In addition to its role as a visitors center, the facility will house a space for a café as
well as space to allow attisans to sell their products.

Commission suppott fot this project will ensure that construction proceeds on schedule and is
completed by the end of the 2024 calendar year.

Financial Viability Assessment;

The Town of Haysi is already attracting visitors from national and international matkets as required
for toutism projects submitted to this program. The development of this Cente, along with other
tevitalization efforts underway in Haysi, will create a destination that continues to grow in
popularity.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of a grant award of $650,2006.00.

Song of the Mountains
Song of the Mountains Revitalization (#4116)
$240,000.00 Requested reduced to $120,000

Project Summary:

Commission funds will be used to assist with booking fees for popular bands. Song of the
Mountains, and Lincoln Theater, will book large draw acts to entice patrons to return to live
petformances at the Theater. The amount requested was reduced due to Staff’s concerns about the
availability of eligible matching funds. The otiginal budget allocated 100% of the booking costs to
the TRRC grant. The revised budget limits the Commission’s support to 50% of each booking fee. -
The remainder will be provided by SOTM through sponsorships.

Matching Funds:
SOTM will contribute $120,000 to be used for 50% of the cost of each booking,

Project Outputs;
The project will result in an additional 350 visitors to Marion, Current visitation is estimated at 850

and this will increase to an anticipated 1200, Outcomes are focused on recovery of toutist visitation
to Marion.

Staff Comments:

The Lincoln Theater has hosted Song of the Mountains for 18 years, The program, Vitginia’s only
nationally-syndicated PBS television seties, is shown on 139 PBS affiliate stations actoss the nation.
The seties, along with the restoration of the Lincoln Theater, is credited for helping to stimulate the
redevelopment of the Town of Mation’s downtown area, Marion’s downtown business vacancy
rates are less than 5% while meals tax revenues doubled over the past decade.

This project is similar to the Baster project in that it supports the recovery of one of SWVA’s most
popular performance venues. Live performance venues suffeted tremendously during the pandemic
shut downs. These venues were unable to host events, and eatn needed revenues, for an extended

TRRC - FY23 Southwest Visginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — Januaty 2023 page 12 -

.—-65_



petiod of time. Song of the Mountains is not alone in its quest to reestablish itself as a viable draw
for tegional tourists. Many potential patrons remain cautious of the risks associated with attending
events while othets may have moved on to new options. Helping SOTM with booking fees will
provide the opportunity for the Theater to entice visitors back to Mation. '

Financial Viability Assessment!

These fees will provide financial assurance to potential acts and help secute commitments from
performers with the highest potential to attract large numbers of attendees. The ticket sales from
these visitors, as well as the associated spending at downtown businesses, is critical to the SOTM’s
(and the Town’s) post Covid recovety.

Stalf Recommendation:
Staff recommends a grant award of $120,000 to reimburse 50% of booking fees.

Sunset Hollet, Inc. (#3975)
- Southern Gap Amphitheater Project: Consttuction Documents & Construction
$500,000.00 Requested

Profect Summary:

The funds requested in this application will assist the development of 2 commetcial-grade
amphitheater at Southern Gap in Buchanan County, Virginia. The amphitheater will host a variety of
events including live music performances, film screenings, spotts events, etc. with a2 maximum
capacity of 4,000 attendees. Commission funds will be used fot the purchase of a Stageline SL320
stage ($450,000) and for amphitheater construction ($50,000). Upon completion, a professional
operatot and manager with industry experience will be engaged. Construction of the amphitheater is
estimated to cost approximately $5M. This request was submitted to the spring 2022 round and was
tabled at the May meeting,

Matching Funds:

Matching funds are available from the Thomson Chatitable Foundation ($200,000), the McGlothlin
Foundation ($50,000), the Ratcliff Foundation ($20,000), and an anonymous donot {$30,000), The
Appalachian Regional Commission ($700,000) and the Buchanan County IDA ($687,320) have each
announced recent awatds for the project. :

Project Outputs:

The completed project will result in the development of an amphitheater with a maximum capacity
of 4,000 attendees; eight new jobs with avesage salaties of $54,165; annual revenue from ticket sales
resulting in approximately $1,500,000 based on 64,000 attendees.

Staff Comments:

The Commission provided a $57,000 award in 2019 through the Southwest Economic Development
Program to support 50% of the cost of the Initial Design Phase, Two subsequent requests have
been submitted for the project. The Januaty 2021 application was declined. The second, this
application, was tabled in May 2022 due to concerns tegarding the availability of majority of

TRRC — FY23 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Surnmnaries & Recommendations — January 2023 page 13

-hBH—



matching fands sufficient to complete the project. At the time these were three large applications
pending with the Appalachian Regional Commission (§700,000), US EDA ($3,949,280), and Virginia
Energy AMLER ($1,000,000). Only the ARC application was successful although Sunsct Holler
plans to reapply to both the AMLER and US EDA programs. EDA advised the project to teapply
once enough funds are committed from othet sources to reduce the EDA request to a maximum of
$3M. A commitment of $500,000 from TRRC would ptovide leverage for the project and could
strengthen the re-application efforts. Regardless, caution must be exercised to protect Commission
funds and to prevent obligating this committee’s limited tesousces for any project which is aot
cettain to be undetway during the customary 3 year grant period, TRRC’s standard letter agreement
states requites the grantee to provide satisfactory evidence of the availability of acceptable match
within one year of the award date. Staff’s funding recommendation must reflect this requirement as
a contingency for an approved grant.

Projects considered under the Tourism strategy of this program’s REP must document the ability to
attract visitots from national and intetnational markets. The business plan provided for this project
indicates that the unique geogtaphical location of the amphitheater will setve as a draw for music
tourists. Project updates provided since the project was tabled in May document aumerous
campsites in close proximity to Southern Gap which could provide lodging options to these visitors
who may also take advantage of other opportunities, in patticular the outdoor recreation amenities,
in the region, Sunset Holler plans to work with other regional tourist organizations and venues to
collaborate on cross marketing opportunities.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A detailed feasibility study and business plan were provided as part of the proposal, evidencing that
much cate has been taken to assess the viability of the project. Should the applicant be successful in
achieving full project funding, this venue will be 2 landmark cultural asset for the atea.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends a grant awatd of $500,000 contingent upon the successful reapplication to
EDA and/ ot the achievement of full project funding within 12 months.

Blue Ridge Public Television, Inc.
PBS Appalachia Vitginia (#4110)
$530,000.00 Requested

Project Summaty:

Commission funds will support the establishment of a fully digital public television: station, PBS
Appalachia Virginia, to serve the 14 counties and three cities of the SWVA TRRC service atea. The
station, announced in July, 2022 will be fully region based and will highlight positive stoties from the
footptint, This content will support other regional branding initiatives to market tourism and
business development efforts, Commission funds ate requested for a vatiety of operating expenses
ovet a two yeae statt up period. The station plans to launch on June 10, 2023.

TRRC, — FY23 Southwest Vitginia Program — Staff Summaties & Recommendations — January 2023 page 14

......67_.



Matching Funds:

Matching funds will be provided primarily from cutrent and future state approptiation funding. The
project was allocated $500,000 in FY2022/23 through VA DOE apptopriation. These funds have
assisted with initial staffing needs and othet expenses. The applicant anticipated additional
apptoptiations in the futute ($1.25M). The applicant will also seek support from the Appalachian
Regional Commission during that program’s next round.

Project Outputs:

The project will result in the establishment of PBS Appalachia Virginia and the creation of 5 new
jobs.

Staff Comments: .

Although the establishment of PBS Appalachia Vitginia will certainly result in a new oppottunity to
broadcast content which brands the region in a positive light, exact outcomes ate difficult to
quantify. The project will provide matketing opportunities for both tourism and business
development oppottunities in the SWVA region, PBS application is an expansion of wotk begun
~under grant #3602 approved in Januaty 2020 which established a digital media channel on Youtube.

Despite potential for this project to have a positive effect on regional matketing efforts, Staff noted
some procedural jssues with the application that prevent the recommendation of full funding for
this tequest, Although the station is a new endeavor which will expand Blue Ridge PBS’s reach
throughout the region, the project was announced in July, 2022 and is already undesway with
existing staff including the Executive Producer, an existing position otiginally supported under
TRRC Grant #3602 and the General Manager whose salary is covered under the Visginia DOE state
approptiation, Commission policy states that any expense which is currently listed in an applicant’s
existing operating budget, may only be presented as in-kind match, Additionally, TRRC’s General
Non-Eligible Uses of Funds state that Commission funds should not be used to supplant other state
ot federal funds fot which an applicant is eligible. These policies must apply to any expense

" ptesented in the grant budget that is curtently paid under the DOE approptiation, The Hxecutive
Producet’s salary is already 100% allocated to match however the General Managet is cutrently split
between TRRC ($130,000) and match ($130,000). To comply with TRRC policy this position must
be fully paid ($260,000) with matching fands. Both positions should be listed as “in-kind” match,

Due to the concetns about Commission funds supplanting other state funding, it is necessary to
limit the use of TRRC suppott to only ditect new costs associated with the establishment of the
station. These expenses include two positions (Cotporate Support Tetritory Manager - $40,000 and
Producer/ Videographer - $50,000). Contractual Setvices ($32,000), and Equipment ($191,677). The
application also requests $86,323 for Continuous Charges including lease, internet, utilitics,
insurance, janitorial, sanitation, etc. for a yet to be determined location, These expenses will be new
to the project and are eligible for teimbursement howevet, because no definite location has been
selected, no basis for these costs was provided in the application. Staff will continue to wotk with
the applicant during the grant period to ensute that any disbursements undet this line item comply
with TRRC limits and policies, The budget currently allocates suppott for all activities on a 1:1 split
between TRRC and matching funds. Staff suggests that this split remain with TRRC reimbursing
50% of each eligible expense during the two year grant period, This will allow match to be
documented concurrently with grant funds and will simplify reimbursement process.

TRRC — FY23 Southnwest Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations - January 2023 page 15

_68.._.




The disbursement of grant funds for these listed putposes and in the manner described above will
enable the Commission to provide ctitical statt up operating support for the new entesptise while
preventing any expectation that the Commission will be a soutce of ongoing operational suppott for
the station.

Financial Viability Assessment:

The applicant is expected to be able to qualify for funding for operational expenses from other
additional soutces once they ate beyond the start-up petiod for the station,

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends a grant award of $400,000 to support 50% of direct new costs for
establishing the PBS Appalachia Virginia station.

Mendota Community Association
Revitalization of Former Mendota (#4117)
$38,485.00 Requested

Profect Summary: Commission suppott s tequested to assist with planning needs focused on the
redevelopment of the former Mendota School Building and Grounds. The building cutrently serves
a vatiety of putposes in the community of Mendota including housing a local branch of the
Washington County Public Libtaty. The facility also contains a cafeteria, theatet room and other
spaces that could be used for a vatiety of purposes. The $38,485 tequest will be used to determine
the best future uses for the building and to develop 2 prioritized strategy to addressing the structural
and aesthetic improvements that will be required for the redevelopment,

Matching Funds: The Washington County BOS recently committed $38,450 for HVAC upgrades
to the facility. No matching funds are presented to assist with the costs of the additional planning
activities.

Project Ontpurs; During teview of this proposal, Staff struggled to identify the primary output of
this project.

Staff Comments: Former school buildings, such as the one in Mendota, exist all over Southwest
Vitginia. Several have been re-purposed to meet a variety of needs and continue to serve as anchor -
points fot the communities they are based in. The redevelopment of the former Mendota School
Building and Grounds has been a priotity for Mendota for several years. A Preliminary Architectural
Feasibility Report was completed in 2019 using funding provided by DHCD. This document
outlined a numbet of potential uses for the building and provides general cost estimates for building
upgeades. At that time, the estimated cost of renovation was neasly $2.3M however the repott notes
that these improvements could be accomplished in phases.

Commission staff commends the efforts of the MCA in not only maintaining the facility as a center
point of the Mendota community for over 40 yeass, but in continuing to explote new uses for the
property, The Centet’s advantageous location along the Notth Folk of the Holston and the terminus
of the Mendota Ttail presents an opporttunity for the facility to serve as an economic engine of the

TRRC — FY23 Southwest Virginia Program — Staff Summaries & Recommendations — Januacy 2023 page 16

-59-



Mendota community and to capitalize on the developing outdoor recseation prospects in the area,
For this to be accomplished the applicant must natrow the scope of the project to concentrate on
the highest use priotities. Although this is a stated goal of the application, Staff struggled to identify
how the proposed activities differed from the scope of the 2019 report. The application did not
provide a scope of work, ot related cost estimate, from an engineeting form to justify the $38,485
request amount. An additional concern is that the matching funds presented in the application are
unrelated to the planning efforts, This program limits support for capacity building projects such as
this one to up to 50% of third-patty professional services. While the HVAC improvements ate
cettainly needed it is important that, to maintain consistency with similar projects under
development actoss the tobacco region, the direct match requirement be enforced. '

Despite these concetns, Staff sees tremendous potential for this project and the impact that the
facility’s redevelopment will have on the Mendota community. Staff suggests that this project be
tabled to allow additional time to work with the applicant to identify appropriate matching funds
and to develop project outcomes which move the project forward in a clear and measurable mannet.

Financial Viability Assessment:
The ptoposal needs additional attention to mose adequately present the sustainability of the project.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends that this request be tabled to allow additional time to work with the
applicant to refine the scope of the project and to identify appropriate matching funds.

Virginia Coalfield Coalition

Vitginia Coalfields Cell Coverage Assessment Planning Grant (#4097)
$40,000.00 Requested

Profect Summary:

Commission fands will be used to support a planning project to identify the remaining witeless
needs in the Coalfields region (Buchanan, Dickenson, Lee, Notton, Russell, Scott, Tazewell, and
Wise Counties). It is estimated that 40% of this region lacks wireless service. TRRC will suppozt
$40,000 of the estimated $140,000 total project cost. The applicant will select a provider though a
competitive bid process. ' ‘

Matching Funds:
The applicant has committed $100,000 to fund the remaining cost of the assessment.

Project Outputs;

A teport will be produced to identify the highest priority locations as well as the estimated cost to
extend setvice to the identified areas,

Staff Comments:

The lack of adequate cell service has been identified as a major bartier to further economic
development in these localities as witeless coverage is gencrally considered as basic inftastructure for
business prospects. The lack of coverage also has a significant impact to the region’s outdoor
recreation tourism efforts. Several popular destinations, including the Clinch River State Park,

TRRC ~ FY23 Southwest Virginia Program ~ Staff Summaties & Recommendations — Januaty 2023 page 17

.......7 0_.




Devil’s Bathtub, Breaks Interstate Park, the Channels Wildlife Management Area, High Knob State
Park, and Spearhead Trails systems atound the Towns of Haysi and Pocahontas, etc. lack coverage.
The visitots and residents of these arcas are at dangerous disadvantage due to the inability to contact
first tespondets and/ ot law enforcement in cases of emergency. Many visitors also prefet to have
connectivity while visiting the region,

Financial Viability Assessment:

The applicant has successfully managed the ownership of 12 cell towets and will soon add an
additional six. This experience, along with an established relationship with a major carxiet, adds
confidence that this study will produce a plan that will guide an effective expansion of setvice to
these communities, Commission investment at this stage will help to facilitate this expansion
however the application is clear that no additional funding, to support implementation costs, will be
requested. VCC will use the plan, and the cost estimates contained within, to apply to vatious federal
and state funders for construction costs.

Staff Recommendation:
- Staff recommends approval of a $40,000 grant award.

OTHER BUSINESS

Blue Ridge Plateau Initiative

- Meat Processing Facility (#3368)

Approved for $500,000 in January 2019 ($500,000 balance)
Request for fifth year extension

Staff Overview & Comments:

Blue Ridge Plateau Initiative has tequested a fifth year extension for this project. Since the approval
four yeats ago there has been little to no progress. Despite a 10+ year planning effort to establish a
commercial meat processing facility in Carroll County, the Commission remains the only funder
committed to the project. In May 2022 a $4M request was submitted to the US Transpottation,
Housing, and Utban Development Community Project Funding (CPF) program by Congressman
Griffith’s office. It is Staff’s understanding that this request was not apptoved although that has not
been verified by BRPL

The project’s fourth year extension, approved administratively but the Executive Director in Jamuary
2022, required that the following conditions be met in order for the grant to be extended beyond the
January 8, 2023 expiration date. First, that all funding sufficient to complete the project be committed
and second, that a site be acquired. Neither of these conditions have been met. No matching fands
are committed at this time and the total development cost remains unknown as it is dependent upon
the site selected, BRPD’s fitst choice is located just off of exit 14 on 177, ‘This site is already developed
for industrial use and is large enough to provide space for both cutrent and future development plans.
The federal approptiation would have provided funding needed to purchase this site. If funding
cannot be raised to allow for the acquisition of this property thete are alternative sites already owned
by Castoll County that are suitable for the project. These sites are less desirable due to size restraints
and the lack of existing infrastructure.

TRRC — FY23 Southwest Vitginia Program ~ Staft Summaries & Recommendations — January 2023 page 18

_7"!....



Given this committee’s intent to conduct a special funding tound to focus solely on incteasing meat
ptocessing capacity in the region it is impottant that this project be vetted alongside similar projects
that may be under development. Despite the decade -+ planning effort Staff is concetned by the
grantee’s failare to move the project forward in any substantive way ovet the past four yeats. The
ptoject appears to lack the leadership capacity necessary to not only see it through to completion but
also to effectively manage the operation of the facility once open, Staff encourages BRPT to continue
to refine its business plan and to pursue matching funds necessary to meet TRRC’s match requitement.
A new application, based upon the cutrent status and needs of the project, may be submitted to the
upcoming deadline.

Staff recormmends no additional extension for this project. The grant will be deobligated and
added to the $2M previously set aside for the meat processing funding round.

TRRC - FY23 Southwest Virginia Program - Staff Summartes & Recommendations — January 2023 page 19

....', 2_




Commonwealth of Virginia
Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

FY2023 Southwest Virginia Program

GUIDELINES & REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Application Due Date:
Thursday, October 20, 2022

.....'73_



50

Tohacco Region Revitalization Commission
FY2023 Southwest Virginia Program

GUIDELINES & REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

GENFRAL PROGRAM INFORMATION 3
A. Purpose & Background

B. Investment Categories - Funding Priorities

C. Eligibility — Eligible Applicants, Matching Funds, Use of Funding

D. Application and Submission Information

E. Evaluation

E. TRRC Staff Contact Information

GUIDELINES FOR SPECIFIC INVESTMENT STRATEGIES 6
A. Business Development 6

» Regional Economic Development Marketing Initiatives
» Business District Redevelopment

B. Sites & Infrastructure a

» industrial Sites
= Infrastructure — Off-site Utility Infrastructure

C. Agribusiness i0

= Value-Added Processing, Aggregation, and Marketing Facilities
» Development of Market Opportunities

D. Tourism 14

.

= Tourism Destination Infrastructure
» Reglonal Marketing Campaigns & Initiatives

REQUIRED DOCUMENTS _ 17

REQUIREMENTS OF FUNDING 18
A. Grants and Leans

B. Award Information

€. Payment of Grant Funds

D. Reporting

E. Assets

ATTACHMENTS | 20
A. Attachment A — Evaluation Criteria
8. Attachment B - Eligible Counties & Cities for Tobacco Commission Funding

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 2 of 22

-7 4~



I GENERAL PROGRAM INFORMATION

A. Purpose & Background

The Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission (“TRRC” or “Commission”) was established by the
Virginia General Assembly in 1999, as a political subdivision of the Commonwealth. The
Commission makes investments to revitalize and diversify the economy of the region it supports.
Projects selected for funding include initiatives that will measurably advance the Commission’s
priorities as a direct result of project success.

The Southwest Virginia Program’s Guidelines and Request for Proposals {together, "RFP”) are
issued to solicit applications through a competitive process in order to establish grant and loan
agreements for economic development projects in the region, Funding will be considered for
projects promoting economic growth and development within the Southwest Virginia area of
Virginia’s Tobacco Region. Refer to Attachment B - Eligible Counties & Cities for Tobacco
Commission Funding on page 23 of this RFP,

Approximately $7 million is available for awards from the Southwest Virginia Program. The
application deadline Is Thursday, October 20, 2022. Award decisions are expected to be made at
the Commission’s meeting in January 2023,

B. investment Categories — Funding Priorities

Logic models included in the Commission’s Current Strategic Plan identify specificinvestment
strategies for the types of projects that the Commission will consider funding.
Applications submitted in response to this RFP must fall into one of the following categories:

A. Business Development

B. Sites and Infrastructure

C. Agribusiness

D. Tourism

Details on priorities and the types of projects to be considered within each Investment category
are provided in Section Iil. Guidelines for Specific Investment Categories of this RFP. All
applicants must clearly articulate how the project relates to the goals of the program. All projects
must clearly define outputs that will oceur during the project period and directly relate to the use
of Commission funds and matching funds. Qutputs are specific to each investment category.

The Commission at its discretion may entertain other types of projects provided they meet all
other requirements of this RFP, are in alignment with TRRC's Strategic Plan, and address critical
economic development barriers affecting the Tobacco Region. Applicants who wish to bring a
project outside of the scope of this RFP must contact TRRC's grants staff in advance.

FY¥23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 3 of 22

-7 5~

So




C. Eligibility - Eligible Applicants, Matching Funds, Uses of Funding

Eligible Applicants

Applications will only be accepted from governmental entities and non-profit organizations
located in and/or providing economic revitalization programs, services, or facilities in the
Tobacco Region. Eligible applicants including the following:

e Governmental Entities - Governmental entities within the Tobacco Region, including
towns, cities, and counties; local or regional Industrial or economic deveiopment
authorities; regionai authorities, and other governmental units.

s Non-Profit Organizations - Incorporated non-profit érganizations designated as tax-
exempt by the federal internal Revenue Service.

Guidelines for applications submitted by regional partnerships and for projects benefiting for-
profit entities, are in Section 1l of the Commission’s Funding Policies discussed below.

Ineligible / Eligible Uses of Funding

The Commission’s Eunding Policies for Grant Awards; Information for Applicants & Grantees
(Revised June 2020} (“Funding Policies”) contain information on general ineligible uses of funds,
specific type of expenses not eligible for reimbursement, acceptable expense documentation for
seeking reimbursement, match documentation requirements, and other important details about
the Commission’s grant administration policies.

Matching Funds

As required by the Cade of Virginia, ail requests for grant funds require at least doliar-for-dollar

(1:1) matching funds, with no more than 25% of the match requirement from “in-kind” sources.

Loan requests do not have a match requirement, Expenses already included in an annual budget
such as personnel and other operating costs will count toward the 25% In-Kind limit.

Appticants for grant awards must submit details on the nature, source and timing of match
contributions necessary for meeting the 1:1 match requirement. Once secured, matching funds
must be committed to the project and available as needed, and must not be conditioned or
encumbered in any way that may preclude their use for the project during the grant period.
Applicants should provide a commitment letter or equivalent document slgned by an authorized
representative of the organization providing matching funds to document each source of match.

If the Commission awards a grant to an applicant who has not secured acceptable matching funds
at the time of award, the applicant will have up to 12 months from the date of the award to
secure matching funds or else the Commission may rescind the award and de-abligate its funds.

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guldelines and RFP / Page 4 of 22

~T6-

So



D. Application and Submission {information

Proposals must be submitted by midnight on Thursday, October 20, 2022, through the
Commission’s online application portal: https://vtc.smartsimple.com/s Login.isp.

Applicants must select the Economic Development {use this for Business Development, Sites
and Infrastructure, and Tourism projects), or Agribusiness application based on the nature of
their proposal. In addition to text fields of the application, up to 10 pages of additionalproject
description may be submitted as an attachment,

Applicants must certify they have read this RFP and the Commission’s Funding Policies; that the
information in their applications is true and correct; and that documentation for any claims and
representations made can be made available upon request from Commission staff, The
certification must be made by an authorized representative of the applicant organization.

All information expressly required by this RFP must be included. Proposals which are
substantially incomplete, or lack key information, will be considered nonresponsive. These
proposals will be declined for review and will not be presented to the committee.

E. Evaluation

The Commission’s Southwest Virginia Committee will evaluate applications submitted in.
responseto this RFP, Staff recommendations to the Committee will be based upon requirements
in this RFP and the Evaluation Scoring Criteria provided in Attachment A. Approval of funding is
at the sale discretion of the Commission. The Commission reserves its right to cancel this RFP, to
not proceed with any or all applications, to condition Its award on additional terms and
conditions, or to award a loan to an applicant who sought a grant.

F. TRRC Staff Contact Information

TRRC staff are available to assist with applications. For technical assistance with logging in or
setting up an account with the Commission’s online grants portal, please contact:

e Suzette Patterson, Grants System Manager (Richmond, VA}
(804) 894-9662, spatterson@revitalizeva.org

To obtain feedback prior to submitting a full application, eligible organizations are strongly
encouraged to complete the pre-application form available on the Commission’s website. The
pre-application Is an optional, non-binding process that is used for providing informal feedback.
Contact TRRC’s grants staff for assistance with project design or to discuss a pre-application:

o Sara Williams, Southwest Regional Director (Abingdon, VA)
(276) 619-4235, swilliams@revitalizeva.org

e Vicki Humphreys, Grant Programs Director {Richmond, VA}
{804) 894-9658, vhumphreys@revitalizeva.org

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 5 of 22

—~77~

So



.  GUIDELINES FOR SPECIFIC INVESTMENT CATEGORIES

A. Business Development

investment Category: Business Development

The Commission wili consider awarding grants and loans to facilitate the development of new
industry and employment clusters, to support traditional economies, and to grow
entrepreneurial systems that resuit in a diversified regional economy. Priorities In this area
include support for regional marketing organizations for marketing the region’s industrial sites;
and projects that focus on implementation of strategies for the creation of higher paying jobs
and the attraction of skilled workers to rural localities, Priority will be given to projects targeted
for downtown commercial districts.

Applicants will use the Economic Development application and will select one of the investment
strategies provided for each of the Investment categories below:

{i) Regiohal Economic Development Marketing Initiatives

(if) Other Economic Development {for Business District Redevelopment)

Eligible Investments

Al. Regional Economic Development Marketing Initiatives

Support for up to 50% of the costs to conduct targeted marketing strategies to recruit new
employers to the region. This includes the recruitment of traditional industries and the
recruitment of satellite offices and back office locations to the region. Eligible applicants include
regional marketing organizations or other regional partherships.

Funding may be used to contract with third party consultants to assist with marketing available
sites and buildings, recruitment of small job creators, and promotion of targeted downtown
spaces for satellite business operations and back offices.

Support for regional marketing organizations should be focused on critical lead generation
activities including expenses related to prospect and consultant trips or visits, contracts with lead
generation firms/ consultants, and marketing materials used for prospect recruitment. Expenses
related to trade show attendance or conference expenses will not be considered.

A2, Business District Redevelopment

The Commissioh will make grants and loans to support capital investments in properties, and in
entrepreneurial and business support strategies, with the goal of encouraging the occupancy of
vacant, underutilized buildings and creation/expansion of technology and business service sector
jobs. Development of shared work spaces and small scale manufacturing spaces focused on
businesses which produce traded products and services are a priority. Projects could include, but
are not limited to:

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 6 of 22

-7 8_

So




Planning and capacity building

Funding may be requested for up te 50% of third-party professional services to support
critical planning activities focused on the redevelopment of commercial business
districts. This may include feasibility studies and market assessments, architectural and
engineering/design services, and professional project development support.

Publicly or nonprofit owned property for collaborative business development

Funding may be used for up to 50% of the costs for renovations/up-fit of publicly or
nonprofit organization owned buildings to be used as professional office space for
individuals and small businesses, for technology or business services sector satellite
offices, and for small scale production/manufacturing businesses. Funding consideration
for property intended as a mixed-use development, will be given for the portion of the
property that is targeted for the Commission’s priority interests.

Applicants are required to submit a feasibility study, or similar analysis, that
demonstrates market demand and feasibility of the facility operations to be sustainable.
A business plan and operating pro-forma must be provided showing how the facility will
become revenue positive within a reasonable period after construction is complete.

Small business development incentive

The Commission may provide a private business incentive for a project which clearly
demonstrates the potential to act as a catalyst for additional business development, for
an underdeveloped and underutilized downtown commercial business district. The
application must describe how the proposed project aligns with the community’s
comprehensive business district planning efforts, Such incentive will require a
performance agreement with the locality, and will be limited to up to $30,000 and no
more than 25% of the capital costs for construction or equipping costs for the new
business enterprise.

Requirements

Depending on the nature of the project, Business Development projects require the following
information {refer to Section lil, Required Documents of this RFP):

So

VVVVVYVYY

Service Area and Project Location Map (required for all)

Feasibility Study or similar analysis (required for business development facilities)
Cost Estimate from Engineer or Construction Contractor (required for construction)
Detailed Equipment List and Equipment Quotes (required for equipment purchases)
Business Plan or Operating Plan {required for business development facilities)
Operating Budget and Pro Forma (required with Business Plan or Operating Plan)
Operating Agreement (required for public-private partnerships)

Marketing Plan (required for regional marketing initiatives)

£Y23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 7 of 22

] G




Qutputs / Metrics — Business Development

Applicants must identify the outputs that are expected to result from their project and expiain
how projections were calculated. Following are examples of Business Development metrics:

* & & © & & & &

Number of existing businesses recruited to region or strengthened by project activities
increase in revenues from sale and export of traded products or services

Number and salaries/wages of jobs created by new or expanding businesses
Advancement of targeted sector-based or cluster development recruitment strategies
Increase in bona fide prospect activity, realistic for available workforce

Number of new husinesses started as a result of project activities

Number of individuals assisted with entrepreneurial training and business development
Number of new or expanding businesses benefiting from lending, or access to financing
Increase in taxable private capital investment

These are the typical project metrics for estimating outputs of business development projects.
Applicants are expected to identify the appropriate project output metrics for their project.

So

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guldelines and RFP / Page 8 of 22

-80-




B. Sites and Infrastructure

Investrment Category: Sites and Infrastructure

The Commission will consider awarding grants and loans to support the development of critical
infrastructure necessary to provide a competitive environment for the recruitment of new jobs
and investment to the Tobacco Region. Projects that will enhance the marketability and site
readiness of existing publicly-owned economic development sites are of particular interest to
the Commission. Priority will be given to projects that bring existing propertles to a higher level
of business ready site certification rather than acquiring and developing new sites.

Applicants for Sites and Infrastructure projects will use the Economic Development application,
and will choose from one of the following investment categories:

{i) Industrial Sites

(ii} Infrastructure

Eligible Investments

B1. Industrial Sites -- Includes On-Site Utility Infrastructure & Buildings

Applicants seeking funding for development of industrial sites (including requests for on-site
infrastructure and buildings) must provide details on the scope of work and associated
development costs for the whole site, including a discussion of any funding necessary to
complete the project. Applications for on-site utility infrastructure will only be considered to
bring targeted properties to a higher level of business ready site certification or as part of a
broader site development initiative with a scope beyond utility construction.

The application should provide documentation of a master plan reflecting intended industrial or
commercial uses and verify that the appropriate zoning for these uses is in place. Targeted
sectors including NAICS codes should be provided. Building requests must document that the
building and site specifications will satisfy the requirements of the targeted sector(s).

Priority will be given to projects that improve the readiness of sites already under development
within the region as opposed to the acquisition and development of new sites. Development of
new sites will only be considered when the applicant provides compelling evidence of a deficit of
competitive sites in the locality and surrounding region.

The redevelopment of brownfield sites is a funding interest for the Commission. A Phase 1
Environmental Site Assessment must be provided for brownfield site applications.

B2. Infrastructure -- Off-Site Utility infrastructure

The Commission will only consider requests for off-site utility infrastructure that will
predominantly serve existing, clearly-defined economic development sites. The Commission will
only consider awarding grants for planning, engineeting, and design associated with necessary
off-site utility infrastructure to serve the site; and the Commission will only consider awarding
loans for construction of off-site utility infrastructure.

£Y23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 9 of 22

_81_

Se



Requirements

Depending on the nature of the project, Sites and Infrastructure proposals require one ormore
of the following documents (refer to Section lil. Required Documents of this RFP):

VVVY

VVVY

Service Area and Project Location Map (required for all)

Master Plan with Targeted Sectors {required for alf)

Fee Estimate or Proposal from Engineer {required for A&E and/or construction)
Construction Cost Estimate from Contractor {required for construction, if cost estimate is
not provided by A&E)

Phase 1 Environmental Assessment Report (required for brownfield sites)

Virginia Business Ready Site Assessment Report (required for sites assessed by VEDP)
Cash Flow Analysis with Rate Structure (required for utility infrastructure)

Inventory of available sites in locality and surrounding region (for new industrial sites)

Outputs / Matrics — Sites and Infrastructure

Applicants must identify the outputs expected to result from their project and explain how any
projections were calculated. Following are examples of Sites and Infrastructure output metrics:

e & & 0

Change in the site’s business ready tier characterization to improve marketability to
specific targeted sectors

Acres {and available lots) of graded or improved sites or sites served with necessary
infrastructure

Square footage of building constructed or renovated for new economic activity

Linear feet of access road constructed

Capacity increase and/or linear feet of water or sewer infrastructure improvements
Number and average salaries of new jobs created

Increase in taxable private capital investment

These are the typical project metrics for estimating outputs of economic development sites and
infrastructure projects. Applicants are expected to identify the appropriate project output metrics
that are expected to resuft from the implementation of their project.

So

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginla Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 10 of 22

8 P



C. Agribusiness

Investment Category: Agribusiness

The Commission will consider awarding grants and loans for agribusiness projects that create or
expand market opportunities for regional producers and that result in a quantifiable increase in
net farm income. The two primary areas of interest to the Commission are the establishment of
value-added processing, aggregation, and marketing facilities, and the development of emerging
and new market opportunities to diversify and enhance the region’s agricultural economy.

Priority will be given to regional facilities serving or benefiting mulfiple producers in more than
one locality. Investments will support increasing sales of agricultural commadities and
agricultural food produicts from the region. Projects must clearly demonstrate the identified
heed or opportunity for a new or expanding market that brings economic value to the region.

Eligible Investments

C1. Value-Added Processing, Aggregation, and Marketing Facilities

Value-added processing, aggregation and marketing facilities add value by changing the
characteristics of the agricuitural commodity to meet market demand. Applicants wili use the
Agribusiness application and select one of the following Agribusiness Investment strategies:

(i) Commercial Agriculture Processing
(i) Community Food Processing

(iii) Farmers Markets

{iv)  Multi-Purpose Agriculture Centers

Producer Collaboration & Cooperatives: The Commission’s priority is to invest in value-added
projects that support producers working in partnership through a producer-based business,
agricultural assoclation, or a member-owned cooperative that benefits multiple producers.
Funding limits depend upon on whether the facility is publicly or privately owned and operated.

Private Ownership:

¢ Grants for Capital Projects - Grant requests for up to 25% of the total capital costs for
equipment for value-added processing facilities operated by a for-profit business whose
primary function involves theproduction, processing, or marketing of agricultural
products. Applications must be sponsored by an eligible applicant. The Commission’s
funding will require a performance agreement under which the company will be required
to repay grant funds if it does not meet certain performance targets.

Public or Non-Profit Ownership:
s Grants for Capital Projects - Value-added facilities owned by a government entity or a
nan-profit organization may apply for grants of up to 50% of total capital costs.

s Grants for Start-Up Operations - Governmental entities and non-profit organizations may
request grant support for start-up operating costs associated with new or expanding
value-added processing and aggregation facilities. Applicants must provide a sound
operating plan that shows decreasing reliance on Commission funds,

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guldelines and RFP / Page 11 of 22

_83_.

So



Loans

o Applicants may apply for low-interest financing assistance to support capital costs for
start-up or expansion of a value-added processing facllities benefiting Tobacco Region
producers regardless of public or private ownership. Loans will be recommended for
projects where there is an identifiable revenue stream sufficient to repay the loan.

C2. Development of Market Opportunities

Projects that diversify and enhance the region’s agribusiness economy with a focus on new or
expanded market opportunities are eligible for funding. Applicants will use the Agribusiness
application and select one of the following Agribusiness investment strategies:

(i) Wholesale & Retail Cooperative Marketing
{ii) Crop Demonstrations
(iiy  Cost-Share Programs

Wholesale and Retail Cooperative Marketing < 520,000 grants - Small matching grants of up to
$20,000 to support marketing initiatives focused on obtaining access to new or expanding
markets to increase agricultural product sales revenues will be considered. All projects must
benefit multiple producers. Eligible projects include those that focus on development of institutional
or commercial market opportunities; creation of on-line sales systems connecting buyers to
sellers; targeted marketing strategies for specialty crops; and creation of broker or expediter
services where a third party connects quality agriculture praducts from several farms to new
market opportunities.

Crop Demonstrations Projects - Projects that assist producers in the development and
demonstration of high-value, low acreage crops {defined as those that have a higher net return
per acre compared to conventional commodity crops) will be considered. Projects seeking funds
for basic research activities will not be considered.

Cost Share Programs - Cost-share programs that focus on transitioning producers into alternative
agriculture enterprises or for implementing new best practices, directly resuiting in an increase
to farmer income, will be considered. Projects must be regional and benefit a multi-county area,
Cost share incentive payments will be limited to no more than 33% of capital costs or the costs
of contracted services. Projects seeking funds for recurring farm expenses are not eligible.

All cast share program proposals must include the following:
- Education component with requirements for participation,
- Proposed cost-share program guidelines with eligible costs and evaluation criteria,
- Analysis of the return on investment to producers for implementing the practice(s),
- Demonstration of need and/or evidence of producer interest, and
- Adefined plan for monitoring and measuring outcomes.

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 12 of 22

_84._.

So



Regquirements

in addition to any required information specified above, all proposals for Agribusiness
investments must demonstrate the following:

Benefit agriculture producers from Tabacco Region localities,

Have a clearly identified market opportunity,

Fncourage private capital investment in farm operations or agribusiness facilities, and
Will result in measurable increases to net farm income.

Depending on the nature of the project, applications for Agribusiness funding will require the
follawing information {refer to the Required Documents section of this RFP):

VVVVVVYVYVY

Service Area and Project Location Map (required for all}

Feasibility Study or similar analysis {required for publically owned value-added focilities)
Business Plan or Operating Plan (required for value-added facilities)

Operating Budget and Pro Forma (required with Business Plan or Operating Plan)

Cost Estimate from Engineer or Construction Contractor {required for construction)
Detailed Equipment List and Equipment Quote (required for equipment purchases)
Marketing Plan (required for wholesale and retail cooperative marketing projects)
Operating Agreements (required for public-private partnerships)

Program Guidelines & Sub-Awards (required for cost-share programs)

Outputs / Metrics — Agribusiness

Applicants must identify the outputs that are expected to result from the project and explain how
the projections were calcutated. Following are examples of Agribusiness output metrics:

. & & & & 2

Number of agricultural producers benefitting

Total dollar value of Tobacco Region agricultural products to be used annually
increase in annual sales revenue for value-added agriculture products
Average (per farm), and aggregate annual increase to net farm income

Sales revenue for value-added agriculture products resulting from the project
Number of new jobs created by new or expanding agriculture based business
increase in taxable private capital investment

These are the typical project metrics for estimating outputs of agribusiness projects. Applicants
are expected to identify the project outputs that are most applicable to their project.

S0

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 13 of 22

_85_




D. Tourism

investment Category: Tourism

The Commission will consider awarding grants and loans for tourism destination infrastructure
projects and for regional tourism marketing initiatives. The Commission prioritizes regional
projects of interest to national or international markets. Applicants must demonstrate the ability
of the project to attract measurable visitor revenues from outside the Tobacco Region.

Applicants for Tourism projects will use the Economic Development application, and will choose
from one of the following Investment Strategies:

(i) Heritage Tourism Sites {museums, historic sites, etc.)
(i} Outdoor Recreation Tourism {recreation trails, blueways trails, etc.)
{iii) Marketing Campaigns and Initiatives

Eligible Investments

D1. Tourism Destination Infrastructure
(Heritage Tourism Sites and Outdoor Recreation Tourism)

Infrastructure investments in tourism destinations will only be considered for sites of
documented national or international interest, Heritage tourism sites or outdoor recreation
tourism destinations must demonstrate the ability to attract a measureable increase in visitors
and visitor spending from outside the Tobacco Region. The significance and connection of these
sites to larger regional, state, or national tourism initiatives must be documented.

The development of local recreational and cultural amenities such as trails, theaters, and historic
sites primarily serving a local market will not be considered. Tourism destination projects that do
not demonstrate the ability to attract significant visitor spending from outside the region will not
be considered for funding.

D2. Regional Tourism Marketing Campalgns and Initiatives

Projects under this investment strategy should be focused on specific campaigns that will lead to
the attraction of hew visitors to an area (e.g. Southwest Virginia, or a multi-county tourism
areas)of the Tobacco Region from national or international markets. Priority will be given to
supportingmarketing projects that seek to market the larger region as a whole rather than those
that focuson an individual site or an initiative-specific campaign.

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 14 of 22

—-86-

So




Requirements

All applications must include economic impact projections as well as a description of the data
collection or visitor tracking mechanism that will be used to document the number of new visitors
to the region and associated spending resulting from the project.

Depending on the nature of the project, applications for Tourism funding will require the
following information (refer to the Required Documents section of this RFP):

VY VYVYVY

Service Area and Project Location Map (required for all)

Feasibility Study or similar analysis (required for new tourism infrastructure and Initlatives)
Economic Impact Study {required for new or expanded tourism infrastructure)

Cost Estimate from Engineer or Contractor (required for construction)

Business Plan or Operating Plan (required for tourism infrastructure and initiatives)
Marketing Plan (required for marketing requests)

Qutputs / Metrics - Tourism

Applicants must identify the outputs that are expected to result from their project and explain
how any projections were caiculated. Following are examples of Tourism output metrics:

Number of new visitors to the region

Increase in annual visitor spending

Increases in tourism-related tax revenues (e.g., lodging)
Increased annual sales revenue from ticket or business sales
Number of new or existing tourism businesses henefiting
Direct job creation at tourism destination

These are the typical project metrics for estimating outputs of tourism projects. Applicants are
expected to identify the project outputs that are more applicable to thelr project.

So

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 15 of 22

BT



REQUIRED DOCUMENTS

Depending on the nature of the project, applicants may be required to submit several other
documents so the Commission and its staff are fully informed about ali pertinent aspects of the
project. As these will vary by project type, this listis not exhaustive and applicants should submit
any other documents they believe will assist during the review process.

Sa

A,

Service Area and Pro]ect Location Map — Maps of the project’s service area should be
provided for projects where more than one specific area is served.

. Line ltem Detailed Budget - All requests must include a line item detailed budget with

supporting details on proposed project costs, including how Commission resources and
matching funds will be used. A template available in the online application may be used
to provide this information. Other line item detail formats will be accepted provided they
contain all pertinent information.

Cost Estimate fraom Engineer ot Construction Contractor — Requests for construction
expenses must provide a current written cost estimate from a licensed architect, engineer
or contractor, as appropriate for the project. In addition, applicants must provide
additional supporting documents including preliminary engineering reports, other
relevant A&E documents, building plans, etc. with the application.

Detailed Equipment List and Equipment Quotes — Requests for the purchase of
equipment, must provide a detailed equipment list and quotes from product vendors.

Business Plan or Operating Plan - A Business Plan or Operating Plan that describes the
operational requirements for the project and how those requirements will be met should
be submitted, if applicable,

Operating Budget and Pro Forma - All requests for projects that will have ongoing
operating costs must demonstrate how operation of the hew or expanded program or
facility is expected to be sustained beyond a start-up period of no more than three years.
An operating budget or pro forma with revenues and expenses must be provided showing
projections for how the program/facilities wili be supported.

Feasihility Study - A feasibility study or similar analysis that demonstrates that the
proposed business concept is technically and economically feasible should be submitted,
if applicable. This analysis evaluates the practicality and viability of an idea and should
answer the question “should we proceed with the proposed project idea”.

Economic Impact Study - The potential economic impact of the project to the region must
be documented. While the Commission is primarily interested in the direct impact,
estimates of the indirect and induced impacts may be provided.

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 16 of 22

_88...



S0

M.

N.

Marketing Plan - A marketing plan to describe the project’s target market and the plan to
capture that market must be described in the application, if applicable.

Performance Agreements — Provide terms for private sector performance agreements.
Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment — Required for brownfield site applications.

Virginia Business Ready Sites Program Assessment Report — A copy of the Virginia
Business Ready Site Assessment for industrial site properties; with the most recent Tier
characterizatian certification letter, if Tier level has heen updated since the assessment.

Inventory of Available Sites — A complete listing of all publically owned sites located in
the applicant locality and the surrounding region must be provided for new industriai site
funding requests.

Operating Agreements - Agreements {Memoranda of Understanding, contracts, or
similar documents) between project partners are required whenever there are multiple
beneficiaries of the project.

Program Guidelines & Sub-Awards - Applications requesting support for incentive
programs (e.g., agriculture cost share or business development community business
launch programs) must provide a copy of the proposed Program Guidelines, This will
describe the governance of the program including its eligibility criteria, funding
limitations, and program requirements. When the project will result in sub-awarding of
TRRC funding to other recipients, the details of the sub-award arrangements including a
draft of the proposed contract agreement must be provided.

Cash Flow Analysis with Rate Structure - For projects that will generate revenues,
applicants must provide (i) a detailed cash flow analysis that shows a baseline of current
operations and expected changes to revenues and expenditures if an award is approved,
and (i) a proposed or currently adopted rate structure for new and/or existing customers.
Proposed or planned changes to the rate structure that will result from and/or is

necessary to support the project requested for support from the Commission must be
identified.

Letters of Support - Applicants are encouraged to provide letters from project partners,
beneficiaries and others that demonstrate the commitment of resources to the project or
document demand for the project. Redundant form letters of support are discouraged
and do not add value to an application.

EY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidellnes and RFP / Page 17 of 22

—8 9~



IV. REQUIREMENTS OF FUNDING

A. Grants and Loans

This RFP seeks applications for both grants and loans. Staff will typically recommend that loans
be awarded to projects that are expected to generate sufficient revenues to service debt even
when the application sought a grant. TRRC offers competitive interest rates and will entertain
flexible loan terms, such as forbearance periods during construction or startup periods and
interest only payments. In addition, the Commission will also entertain applications for a
combination of a grant and loan as part of the same award.

The Virginia Resources Authority (VRA) administers TRRC loans and applicants to which loans are
awarded must provide any additional documentation that VRA or TRRC requests.

B. Award Information

It Is anticipated that the Commission will approve multiple awards—including grants and loans—
as a result of this RFP. After the Commission makes award decisions, grant agreements will be
issued for the amounts and with any conditions as approved by the Commission.

The Commission will typically use Its standard restricted or unrestricted grant agreements for
selected proiects. All grantees are required to follow the Commission’s Funding Policies as a
condition of the award. The standard grant agreement and the Funding Policies are available on
the Commission’s webpage. The Commission reserves the right to update its standard grant
agreement and Funding Policies at any time,

C. Payment of Grant Funds

Payment of grant funds will be subject to the terms of the grant agreement and will be disbursed
on a reimbursement basis. Expenses incurred prior to the award date are not eligible for
reimbursement. The standard reimbursement period is quarterly, unless otherwise agreed to by
Commission staff. The grantee is required to provide appropriate documentation of the
expenditures and use of required matching funds for the project. The Commission’s Funding
Policies contain additional information that applicants shouid review closely,

D. Reporting

Grantees must provide annual reports on the financial and quantitative progress made toward
completion of the project’s milestones and outputs and provide a narrative discussion of
progress. A final report including a narrative on the success of the project, attainment of
proposed outputs, and a description of the long-term expectations and achievements for the

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 18 of 22

-90-

So



project is required at the close of the project. The Commission will not process the final payment
request until all the grantee has satisfied all reporting requirements.

Additionaily, grantees must provide any additional or interim reporting information the

Commission may request to ensure the provisions of the grant agreement are properly carried
out, administered and enforced.

E. Assets

As a condition of awarding a grant, the Commission will have a claim to all property and assets in
which Commission grant funds were invested and the Commission must approve any
conveyances of such property and assets. This applies to investments in real property, intellectual
property, and equipment purchases greater than $5,000. The details of these requirements are
included in the grant agreement and the Commission’s Funding Policies.

V. ATTACHMENTS
» Attachment A — Evaluation Criteria

» Attachment B — Tobacco Region Map of Eligible Localities

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 19 of 22

=51~

Se




Attachment A

Assessment of Need & Eligibility {15 points)
Problem / Need - Cleatly Identified problem or need to be addressed. (5)

Assessment of Need & Planhning - Significance and strategic fit of project to the community,as
demonstrated by assessment of need or opportunity, and evidence of stakeholder inputand support
in project design. (5)

TRRC Priority - Fit with the Tobacco Region Revitalization Com mission's mission, Strategic Plan,
investment categories and funding priorities. (5)
Methodology & Project Feasibility {25 points)

Methodology - Logical and feasible approach to addressing objective and meeting investment
metrics/output deliverable objectives that will benefit economic revitalizationin the region. (10)

Timeline & Milestones - Project describes how objectives will be achieved under a realisticwork ptan.
Progress steps and estimated dates for completion provided. (5)

Project Team - Experience and demonstrated expertise of project team for accom plishingobjectives. {5)

Feasibility - Focus of project planning, and feasibility to accomplish direct outcomes henefiting economic
revitalization in the Tobacco Region. (5)

Project Budget and Match (15 points)

Budget Detail - Budget is reasonable, realistic and cost-effective. Planned use of funds supported by a
budget narrative, and with quotes and estimates. (5)

Match - Leveraging of non-TRRC resources is evident with appropriate sources andamounts
of cash commitments and other funding, and in-kind match contributionsidentified. (5)

Additional Match - Leveraging of non-TRRC resources exceeds minimum 1:1 requiremént. {5)

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 20 of 22

....92_

So



Sustainability for Long-Term Success (15 points)
Sustainability - Demonstrated financia! plans with cash-flow analysis and pro-forma budgets. Clear
plan for financial sustainability and ability to maintain effort beyond the term of grant funding. (10}

Long Term Impact on Region & Communities - Regional cooperation and financial
collaboration. Likelihood for benefits of the project to accrue regionally and/or serve as a model for
other communities. {5)

A. AGRIBUSINESS

Ability to create agribusiness opportunities and to increase net farm income, with an emphasis on
systemic or collective benefit. Evidence of producer interestand market opportunity.

B. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Ability to recruit or expand business development opportunities, thereby leading to an Increase in jobs,
incomes, and revenues in the region.

C. INDUSTRIAL SITES & INFRASTRUCTURE

Addresses critical needs to improve economiccompetitiveness of the region and to result in long-
term job creation and private capital investment.

D. TOURISM

Ability to significantly and directly, increase number of visitors from outsidethe region and beyond the
Commonwealth; and with the increase in tourist and visitors toincrease visitor spending in the region.

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RF® / Page 21 of 22

s 0

So



Attachment B

Counties & Cities Eligible for Tobacco Commission Funding

The service area for the Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission includes 40-
tobacco-dependent localities in the Southern and Southwest areas of Virginia, Eligible
applicants serving these localities are eligible to apply to the Commission’s grant programs
for projects that will enhance the economic growth and development of the region.

Counties:
Bland
Buchanan
Carroll
Dickenson
Floyd
Grayson
Lee
Russell
Scott
Smyth
Sussex
Tazewell
Washington
Wise
Wythe

Cities:
Bristol
Galax
Norton

So

SOQUT N

Counties:
Amelia
Appomattox
Bedford
Brunswick
Buckingham
Campbell
Charlotte

Cumberland

Dinwiddie
Franklin
Greensville

FY23 TRRC Southwest Virginia Program Guidelines and RFP / Page 22 of 22

_94_.

Halifax

Henry

Lunenburg
Mecklenburg Nottoway
Patrick

Pittsylvania

Prince Edward

Cities
Danville
Emporia
Martinsville



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

_95_



= In-Person Meeting »

AGENDA

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Homewood Suites by Hilton, Capital Ballroom
700 East Main Street, Richmond, VA 23219
Thursday, January 5, 2023
9:00 A.M.

In accordance with §2.2-3708.3 of the Code of Virginia, public access for this meeting is being provided both in person and ‘

through electronic communications means. Video will not be used for this meeting, only audio. The public may remotely

participate in this meeting by utilizing the following meeting link:
htips:/virsiniatobaccocommission.my.webex.com/virginiatobaccoconmission my/A.php?MTID=m4c 1 9bbead37293b683eb494 fdfeleabt

If participating by phone, please dial:
1-408-418-9388 (tol}) and enter meeting mumber: 2631 326 6747 and password: 78495872

If during the meeting electronic transmission fails, the public may alert the Commission by calling 804-894-9652 or

emailing jbutler@revitalizeva.org. Tf alerted to a transmission failure, the Committee shall recess until public access is
restored.

Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Frank Ruff, Chair
Call of the Roll Mr. Andy Sorrell, Acting Direcior
Approval of the 10/5/22 Minutes (published on website)

Public Comment
Executive Director Compensation The Honorable Frank Ruff, Chair
Other Business Mr. Andy Sorrell, Acting Director
Public Comment

Adjournment

-6



STRATEGIC PLANNING
COMMITTEE

-97-




 In-Person Meeting =

AGENDA

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE
Homewood Suites by Hilton, Capital Baliroom
700 East Main Street, Richmond, VA 23219
Thursday, January 5, 2023
9:45 A.M.

Tn accordance with §2.2-3708.3 of the Code of Virginia, public access for this meeting is being provided both in person and

through electronic communications means. Video will not be used for this meeting, only audio. The public may remotely

participate in this meeting by utilizing the following meeting link:
hitps:/Ivireiniatobaccocommission.my.webex.com/virginiatobaccocommission.my/j.ohp?MTID=m4c! 9bbea837293b683eb494 {dfeOeabl

If participating by phone, please dial:
1-408-418-9388 (toll) and enter meeting number: 2631 326 6747 and password: 78495872

If during the meeting electronic transmission fails, the public may alert the Commission by calling 804-894-9652 or

emailing jbutler@revitalizeva.org, If alerted to a transmission failure, the Committee shall recess until public access is
restored.

Welcome and Call to Order My, Ed Blevins, Chair
Call of the Roll Mr. Andy Sorvell, Acting Director
Approval of the 10/4/22 Minutes (published on website)

Public Comment

Review Feedback Received

on Draft 2023-25 Strategic Plan Mr. Andy Sorrell, Acting Director
Other Business Mr. Andy Sorrell, Acting Director
Public Comment

Adjournment

88—




MEMO

TO: TRRC Strategic Planning Commiittee

FROM: Andy Sorrell, Acting Director

DATE: December 21, 2022

RE: 2023-25 Update to Commission’s Strategic Plan

Update

§ 3.2-3103, Code of Virginiu requires the Commission to prepare a strategic pian every two years. The
Commission last updated its Strategic plan in May 2020. The Strateglic Planning Committee (the
“Committee”) reviewed and provided feedback to staff on draft 1 of the 2023 -2025 Strategic Plan (the
“plan”) at their meeting on October 4, 2022, Based on the Committee's feedback, staff revised the Plan
to reflect the Committee's direction. That revised Plan {draft 2) and a comparison document noting
changes since the draft 1 were provided to the Committee for review and comment at the beginning of
November and then to the full Commission for review and comment in mid-November, No additicnal
feedback was received from the Committee or Commission members on draft 2 of the Plan at that time.

In accordance with § 3.2-3103, Code of Virginia Commission staff shall solicited input from over 100 local
and regional economic developers, the Va, Dept. of Agriculture & Consumer Services {VDACS), the Va.
Economic Development Partnership (VEDP), the Va. Dept. of Housing & Community Development (DHCD),
the Va. Tourlsm Authority, the Va. Resources Authority (VRA) and the Center for Rural Virginia, Staff
reached out to these organizations and many more requesting a review and any feedback on the draft. In
order to have feedback to share with this Committee in time for the winter meeting, a comment period
solicited feedback from Commission partners for three weeks {November 18 — December 9).

The current draft of the Plan {draft 2) and a comparison document summarizing changes between drafts
can be found as Attachments 1 and 2 to this memo — this is the verslon of the draft partners reviewed.

At the conclusion of the comment period, staff had received a total of 22 responses from partners and 14
that provided specific feedback. A summary of that feedhack can be found as Attachment 3. The
condensed timeframe between our fall meeting In October and the winter meeting in January did not
allow for this partner feedback to be reviewed by the Committee prior to the January meeting as has been
initially hoped by staff. Staff requests the Committee review the partner feedback attached to this memo
and be prepared to discuss with staff and provide direction on how the draft should be revised and a
preferred timeline for those revisions. After this review and direction, staff will revise the draft Plan {draft
-3) and share with the Committee. Once the Committee is comfortable with the draft, Staff recommends
an all-virtual public Committee meeting be held to receive any final input on the revised draft. After this
meeting, In consultation with the Committee Blevins and Commission Chalrman Ruff, staff will prepare a
final draft for the Committee to recommend for adoption at the Commission’s spring 2023 meeting.

If a clean copy of the existing 2020 Strategic Plan is desired, a copy can be found on the Commission’s
website here: https://www.revitalizeva.org/publications/

Additionally if earlier copies of the Strategic Plan is desired for review {2016 & 2018} they can also be
found on the abhove webslte,

_99_..



A Strategic Plan for the
Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

2023-2025

January 2023

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission - Page 1

-100-



Table of Contents

About the Commission
e Overview
+ Mission
e Vision

Funding & Strategic Priorities

s  Overview
Key Funding Priorities
Strategic Priorities
Committee Structure
Fiscal Management
Commission Foundation
Investing in the Regions
Program Outcomes and Goals

Operations
» Program Design
s Meeting Schedule
e Loan Fund - Operational Description
¢ Data Strategy

Appendices
o Appendix A: Organizational Chart

Ao W

Co o U1

11
11

15
17
17
18

19

Tobacco Reglon Revitalization Commission - Page 2

-101-



About the Commission

In 1998, the Attorneys General of 46 states signed the Master Settlement Agreement (MSA) with
the four Jargest tobacco companies in the United States to settle state suits and recover billions
of dollars in costs associated with treating smoking-related illnesses. Four states - Florida,
Minnesota, Mississippi, and Texas - settled their tobacco cases separately from the MSA states. A
portion of the MSA proceeds funded the creation of the Tobacco Region Revitalization
Commission.

Chapters 31 and 31.1 of Title 3.2 of the Code of Virginia contain statutes governing various
aspects of the Commission.! Broadly, those serving the Commission may be split into two groups
- members (or commissioners) and staff.

The Commission is composed of 28 members and appoints from its membership a chairperson
and vice-chairperson, These and other details on membership are described in §3.2-3102.
Members are appointed to one or more committees. Each committee is assigned a chairperson
by the Commission chair, Some committees have a vice-chairperson or are structured to have co-
chairs.

A current organizational chart of staff may be found on page 18.

Tobacco Region
Revitalization Commission
footprint localities
1 Southerfy - 20-counties & 3 cities _W

Aifinglon
&
| &
N R o> dalifed
; i o e Punce
A % R Withain
JHighland, -, [ B » 4 Koy
. LN e Q AT .
) Mg, ; Wenpniiing
A e Ronfumbcrid g
) X i QAo Q.- i _
A a B : "g“ Lapraste
?lty.f‘lél_i._f‘ ‘r‘ ) @ ol Mesomad
i " W 23 .u‘.nn_. .
SN Pt Mathc g (1
) \ B . 2N
sl \ Nonthampivs
) C2 0N toucemct
Bty 3 ‘?: f.‘meléir;" "
) Yok
SRy ‘.‘ o Vit
AN P hmh
R Budak i
Hositud Gatay Hastnwills anvite Fipula Saevinvills

+During the 2015 leglslative session, section §62,1-203 of the Code of Virginia was amended to include reference to the Virginia
Tobacco Region Revolving Loan Fund {§3.2-3117). This section describes the powers of the Virginia Resources Authority.

Fohacco Reglon Revitalization Commission - Page 3

-102-



Mission

The Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission is created as a body corporate and a political
subdivision of the Commonwealth and as such shall have, and is vested with, all of the politic and
corporate powers as are set forth in this chapter. The Commission is established for the purposes
of determining the appropriate recipients of moneys in the Tobacco Indemnification and
Community Revitalization Fund and causing distribution of such moneys for the purposes
provided in this chapter, including using moneys in the Fund to ... revitalize tobacco-dependent
communities.?

Section 3.2-3101, Code of Virginia3
Vision

In today's environment - where markets are largely global and employment is increasingly
knowledge-based - the Commission seeks to accelerate regional transformation, giving citizens
expansive opportunities for education and employment, and providing communities the benefits
of economic stability, diversification, and enhanced prosperity. In particular, the Commission
seeks to meet the region’s specific challenges related to a historic dependence on tobacco
production, textile and furniture manufacturing, and coal production. *

As a result, the Commission also recognizes that investments should reflect and directly advance
local, regional and state priorities as established by elected and appointed officials,
representatives from institutions of higher education, and other community leaders. The
Commission views economic development as a partnership and will - as often as practicable -
seek input from regional stakeholders to ensure its priorities align with those of the region.

The Commission’s work is grounded in an objective and quantifiable economic base analysis. In
general, directly productive industries, and the workforce training and development which
supports them, do more to further this goal and should be favored over an increase in service
industries primarily serving local markets.

Finally, the Commission must focus on ensuring the magimum impact of its expenditures, both as
they relate to creating economic growth and as they relate to maintaining the Commission’s
fiscal sustainability as a critical source of capital to the region the Commission serves.

Priorities
The Commission must continue to adapt to meet the challenges of reduced budgets and a

changing economic landscape over the next decade and beyond, if it is to continue being a
catalyst for growth and increased prosperity across Southern and Southwest Virginia.

2The stalute also contains a section referring to the Commission’s mission to indemnify fobacco farmers through dirsct payments. That
portion of the mission was deemed completed and is omitted here for clarity.

3 The full section of the code can be accessed at: htip://law.{is.virginia.govivacodefiitie3.2/chapter31/section3.2-3101/

4The most updated survey econemic data (and links to reglonal and MSA data) are avallable from the Bureau of Labor Statistics,
accessible at: hitp:/iwww.bls govieag/eag.va.him

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission - Page 4

-103-




Specifically, this means that the Commission will continue to prioritize lending activities over
grantmaking, be more efficient in the way it conducts business, seek to create new funding
avenues through the creation of an outside nonprofit, and make the best use of staff expertise
and regional marketing initiatives.

Ultimately, the Commission will transition into an organization engaged in significant business
and community lending, increasing access to capital and continuing its workforce and
infrastructure missions through targeted grants made from interest on the corpus, earnings on
lending, and other development activities such as receipt of grants and donations.

Funding & Strategic Priorities

The Commission receives hundreds of grant and loan applications each year and must determine
how to allocate its limited annual budgets to best serve the needs of the Tobacco Region. This
will become even more important as the Commission enters its third decade with a diminished
corpus and reduced earnings on that corpus. While the Commission will retain the ability to fund
large scale, regionally transformative projects at a high level, individual grant awards will be
lower than in prior years and the bar that must be cleared to acquire funding will be higher.
Further, the Commission will continue to transition away from grants as the primary mechanism
for funding projects and towards low or no interest loans.

The three mechanisms that inform staff recommendations and Commission decisions regarding
which projects to fund, whether by loan or grant, are: 1) our Key Funding Priorities, which
describe the sorts of project categories that will receive preference over all others, even those
that follow our General Funding Policies; 2) our Committee Structure and Program Outcomes
and Goals metrics; and 3) our General Funding Policies, which describe specific policies related
to uses of funds and preferred overall project finance rules.

Funding Priorities

The Commission has narrowed its focus to areas in which it can make the highest impact while
remaining a strong steward of its resources. This includes a continuation of business and
community lending, while preserving some traditional areas of effort for the Commission like
traditional economic development, agribusiness support, and education/workforce
development. In no particular order of preference, the Commission’s funding priorities shall
include:

1. Business and community lending: The Commission’s largest budget line is directed
toward community and business lending. This approach increases access to capital in
the region while also contributing to the Commission’s financial sustainability. This
program is funded via a full annual corpus invasion of 15%, less any budgeted funds
for grant making and administration. This invasion improves the Commission’s fiscal
position rather than harm it, as loans are usually made at interest rates greater than
the yield on the Commission’s assets within the State Treasury. This increased lending
activity will, in many cases, result in awards consisting solely of loans whereas past
guidelines may have resulted in a grant award. The Commission does not intend for its
lending program to compete against local community banks, but to provide an
alternative means of capital to projects that may not otherwise be a good fit for a local
private lender.

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission - Page 5

-104-




2, Education and workforce development: As the national and global economies
increase focus on human capital, the Commission must continue to support the
regton's efforts to address economic competitiveness factors and ensure employers
can hire top-flight talent. This will remain a focus for the Commission as we helieve it
presents opportunity for high return on investment and supports long-term
economic growth.

The program will continue to be broken out into three categories:

a. Competitive education grant-making, in which the Commission proyides capital
to post-secondary institutions for the creation of new programs or to expand
existing, in-demand programs.

b. The Talent Attraction Program (TAP), in which the Commission offers to pay
student loans for people who have specific, desired credentials, contribute
meaningfully to their communities, and work in occupations for which there is
currently a worlforce shortage with the goal of incentivizing people to change
their career plan and locate in the Tobacco Region.

¢. Workforce financial aid, in which the Commission reduces the cost of credential
or degree attainment at the region’s community colleges and higher education
centers.

3. Agribusiness: The purpose of the Commission’s Agribusiness funding strategy is to
promote agricultural and agribusiness growth, development and diversification, as
well as reducing dependence on tobacco and tobacco-related business. Even with
the transition away from tobacco, agriculture remains the largest economic sector in
the Commonwealth and the largest economic sector - by far - in the footprint. The
Commission will continue to make support for the agribusiness sector a priority.
However, in keeping with the renewed focus on high-impact investments, emphasis
will be given to value-added, aggregation, and systemic improvements, rather than
research or programs for individual producers.

4. TROF: The purpose of the Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund (TROF) is to provide
performance-based monetary grants and loans to localities in the footprint to assist in
the creation of new jobs and investments, whether through new business attraction oxr
existing business.expansion. Grants and loans, awarded at the Commission’s
discretion, are evaluated in a manner consistent with the goals of the Commission and
amounts are awarded commensurate with the project’s impact on the community
and/or reglon in which the project is locating. Evaluation of award amounts are
consistent throughout the region and based on the following criteria: prevailing wage
rates, number of new jobs, taxable capital investment, industry type, and the
possibility of related economic multiplier effect. While the TROF program has been
successful in drawing new businesses to the region and creating tens of thousands of
jobs, the region remains at a disadvantage relative to more-populous regions with
deeper reservoirs of medium and high skill workers, As a result, the added
competitive advantage the TROF offers remains important to landing transformative
projects.

Incremental improvements to the TROF program have been made over time and these
should continue. The program should remain discretionary, reserved for projects the
staff are persuaded are truly competitive, and which might not develop absent TROF

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission - Page 6

-105-



funds. Projects eligible for TROF funding must enjoy the support of economic
development staff in the locality and region, and the Commission’s regional
marketing team (when they've been involved). TROF will be reserved for projects in
traded sectors that promise to increase the locality’s prevailing wage and significant
preference should be given to projects that enjoy the support of sister state agency
programs lile the Commonwealth Opportunity Fund, Agriculture and Forestry
Industries Development (AFID) grants, or similar programs.

Industrial and business infrastructure: Footprint localities (and the
Commonwealth as a whole) continue to have a shortage of available and desirable
locations in which to place industrial and business facilities. This shortage of both
building stock and infrastructure assets puts the region at a competitive
disadvantage when competing with other states to attract top employers along with

 the jobs and investment they bring. The Commission will continue to make grants

and loans to support the creation and improvement of industrial sites, business
locations, shell buildings, and telecommunications infrastructure to close this gap
and ensure that localities within the Commission footprint can compete successfully
for projects. Priority will be given to projects that improve the readiness of sites
already under development within the region as opposed to the acquisition and
development of new sites.

Small Towns Initiative: The rural small towns in the Tobacco Region serve as
important community focal points and economic centers. Due to changing
transportation and economic patterns, these rural communities have faced acute
challenges that are often reflected in extremely low-to-medium household incomes,
lack of well-paying job opportunities, high rates of out-commuting by the workforce
and high building vacancy rates. The Commission desires to support projects that
focus attention on revitalizing the footprints rural small towns in a manner that
supports local and regional economic revitalization efforts that will attract outside
capital investment in rural small towns.

Community Assets and Opportunities: Many rural areas in the Tobacco Region are
fortunate to have local natural resources and cultural assets with the potential to
develop into tourist destinations. The Commission supports natural and cultural
asset projects that are regionally-impactful and have the demonstrated potential to
attract outside investments and visitors to the region.

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission - Page 7

-106-



Strategic Priorities

Along with changes in funding priorities it is necessary to make changes to the way in which
the Commission conducts business and seek out ways to utilize existing resources more

effectively.

Committee Structure

The Commission has five standing committees, with the option to create new committees
on an ad-hoc basis for special purposes. All committees meet at the call of their respective
committee chairpersons.

Most committees evaluate grant and loan proposals from eligible applicants, as specified
by each Request for Proposal. These committees make recommendations to the overall
Commission as to what projects should be funded, in what amounts, and whether said
funding should be in the form of a grant or loan. Some committees are operational in
nature and recommend policy or process changes to the Commission. The overall
purpose and objectives of each committee is described below.

1,

Executive - The Executive Committee is the Commission’s rulemaking and
administrative committee. The chair and vice-chair of the Commission serve as
the chair and vice-chair of this committee.

Southern Virginia Committee - The Southern Virginia Committee hears proposals
from applicants for grants or loans to support economic development in Southern
Virginia. Previously allocated funds will continue to be assigned to specific
counties, but future program funds will be available to all southern counties,
cities, towns and nonprofits within the region.

Southwest Virginia Committee - The Southwest Virginia Committee hears
proposals from applicants for grants or loans to support economic development
in Southwest Virginia. Program funds are available to all southwest counties,
cities, towns and nonprofits within the region, without regard to any specific
tobacco-related local data, historic or current.

Education - The Education Committee oversees the Commission’s Talent
Attraction Program {TAP) and hears proposais for grants or loans for
competitive education funding as well as financtal ald support at community
colleges and higher education centers throughout the footprint.

Incentives and Loans - This committee will oversee both TROF and Community
and Business lending policy and awards.

Such ad-hoc committees as may be necessary to accomplish specific tasks. A
good example is the strategic planning committee tasked with the production of
this report.

Tohacco Reglon Revitalization Commission - Page 8



Improved Fiscal Management

The Commission’s efforts toward sustainability have slowed the decline in Commission finances,
but they have not stopped it. [t is imperative that the Commission take further steps to reduce
and reverse the decline in Commission assets and ensure that the Commission will remain a
viable and impactful entity for change until the communities the Commission serves are at least
as economically successful as the Commonwealth as a whole.

Sustainability: During, and upon completion of the transition to sustainability, the
Commission will only reduce its overall financial position in instances of truly game-
changing economic development opportunities, meaning facilities with many hundreds
or thousands of jobs at or above the prevailing wage and investment in excess of $250
million. Otherwise, the Commission’s focus on sustainability will require that, moving
forward, the Commission only grant from earnings on the Commission's corpus, interest
on loans, and assets created by the new development team. With this approach, by 2025
the lending portfolio should be generating significant returns, as should the
development team, meaning that there is the potential for maintenance and eventual
slow expansion ofgrant-making efforts in the second half of the 2020s, In the next
iteration of the Commission’s strategic planning process, this fiscal transition will be
evaluated, and the Strategic Planning Committee will recommend continuing, pausing, or
reversing this transition based on documented financial changes.

Asset management. The Commission’s grant agreements require that any grantee
deliver, to the Commission, a security interest in any real, tangible, or intellectual property
that is purchased with non-TROF grant funds. For many years these assets existed and
would occasionally be transferred to the private sector and triggera clawback, but there
has only recently been a systematic approach to cataloguing our property and recording
our interest in that property. This means that the Commission is the partial owner of
millions of dollars of land, buildings, and high-value equipment across the footprint.
Moving forward, the Commission will complete the cataloguing of this portfolio of
equipment and real property that has aiready begun in the field offices and record right to
reimbursement notices against all assets over a specific value. Once properly catalogued
and right to reimbursement notices have been recorded, the Commission will also explore
potential uses of this portfolio and determine if it represents something that could be
leveraged to support future activities.

Fund development. (See: Commission Foundation] A transition to better fiscal
management, coupled with increased lending and decreased grant activity, means that
the Commission has the potential to grow in the years ahead and improve its financial
position. However, the Commission also does work - especially in education and
workforce development ~ that could be supported by charitable contributions and grants
from other entities, which would take further pressure off of the current corpus. This
entity would not be a recipient of Commission funds, rather it would be a new vehicle for
bringing funding to support Commission projects.

To facilitate this move to outside funding, the Commission plans to create a non-
governmental nonprofit to oversee the acquisition and allocation of funds for the purpose
of grant making, This will require the hiring of development staff who will seek grants

Tobacco Reglon Revitalization Commission - Page 9



from the government and charitable foundations as well as individual contributions from
donors that care about the success of Commission-supported communities.

Commission Foundation

Much of the work the Commission undertakes in its largest budget area, education, which
includes workforce development and talent attraction, is eminently eligible for funding via
other grant-makers and donors. It makes good fiscal sense for the Commission to pursue the
creation of an outside nonprofit, which should, once it has built up a portfolio of donors and
grants, be able to fund the Commission’s education and talent attraction work without requiring
significant inputs from the Commission’s corpus.

Bring in outside funds. By creating a foundation or nonprofit that resembles those
operated by the Foundation for Healthy Youth or any Virginia public university, the
Commission will have a vehicle to receive funds from other organizations and individuals.
This Commission foundation will seek both private and public sector grants as a means of
continuing to fund Commission programs, particularly in education and workforce
development.

Management. This outside entity will be managed by a board composed of current and
former members and staff of the Commission in an effort to prevent any divide between
the two organizations, and the Commission’s Executive Director will also be director of
the nonprofit. The Executive Committee will appoint the membership of the board of the
nonprofit, and those members will serve short terms with the opportunity for multiple
reappointments.

Initial funding and staff. The Commission will make the initial investment in this
nonprofit for the purposes of hiring a development staffer who will work out of the
Richmond office and report to the Executive Director. It will be the job of this staffer to
seek grant and donation opportunities that align with the goals of the Commission’s
education and workforce development programs and, in consultation with the Executive
Director, pursue those opportunities. This staffer will also be responsible for overseeing
the day-to-day operations of the fund.

Legislation. Creation of this nonprofit will require legislation. A bill has been drafted and
requires a sponsor in the General Assembly. Members of the Commission should engage
in outreach to the General Assembly in favor of this plan’s strategic direction, generally,
and a change in the Commission’s enabling statute to permit the creation of the
foundation, specifically.

Tobacco Reglon Revitalization Commission - Page 10



Investing in the Regions

Regional Marketing and Development Efforts. The Commission will implement measures to
assess the value and productivity of its regional marketing efforts, Invest Southern Virginia and
Invest Southwest Virginia. The Commission will also continue to seek partners to support
funding of these efforts to expand promation of economic development opportunities in its
geographical footprint,

Program Outcomes and Goals

Each programmatic committee of the Commission does its work in pursuit of specific “project
outputs,” each of which supports one or more of the “targeted outcomes,” the long-term goals of
the program. Below, each committee’s work is broken out into one or more logic models that
display the specific outputs supporting each programmatic goal. It is the goal of Commission staff
to evaluate projects, both before awards are given and in follow-up, on how well they meet the
clear metrics laid out in project outputs when grants or loans are awarded. For more detail on
specific metrics, please contact Commission staff.

Inputs, Activities and Participants

Broadly, TRRC has five different programs, each with one or more investment strategies. Each
program and strategy has specific outputs, or deliverables from the project, which target specific
outcomes in the region. Below is a comprehensive representation of the Inputs, Activities and
Participants, though some may vary by program.

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission - Page 11

-110-



Investment Strategies, Project Outputs, and Targeted Qutcomes

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission - Page 12

-111-



TOBACCO REGION OPPORTUNITY FUND {(TROF) LOGIC MODEL

rargeted Outcomes

SOUTHERN & SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM LOGIC MODEL

Agribusiness .
Agriculture is the dominant industry in the Commission footprint. The Commission strives to

grow and diversify agribusiness in the region through investment in the following types of
projects:

Commercial Agriculture Product and Food Processing Facilities
Cost Share Programs

Crop and Livestock Demonstration

Local Farmers Markets

Multipurpose Agriculture Centers

Wholesale & Retail Cooperative Marketing

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission - Page 13

-112-



Investment Strategy

Economic Development

The Cominission supports investment to increase capacity for economic development
opportunities within the region through the following types of projects:

« Physical infrastructure improvements (industrial site development, shell buildings,
water/sewer)

s Tourism creation and expansion
Technology infrastructure and connectivity improvements

Tobacco Reglon Revitalization Commission - Page 14

-113~



EDUCATION PROGRAM LOGIC MODEL
Through its education programs, the Cormnmission seeks to prepare citizens for new-economy
employment opportunities through workforce development, higher education scholarship and
loan programs for the twa regions and competitive grants to community colleges and other post-
secondary educational entities. These types of projects include:
s Advanced Manufacturing Workforce Training Programs
High School Equivalency (GED) Programs
Post-Secondary Programs, with a focus on STEM-H
Waorkforce Training Programs
Community College Financial Aid
Four-year scholarships to attract graduates to the Tobacco Region

e & & & 9

argeted Outcomes:

Operations

This section describes the internal operations of the Commission. Five areas are covered:

Program Design, Meeting Schedule, Loan Fund Operational Description, Data Strategy, and
Organization Chart.

Program Design. Each program has specific outputs and outcomes that are directly tied
to the goals of each program. The duration of thesegoals can vary between programs.
» Qutputs are specific deliverables required from a project by an awarded applicant
(or grantee) to satisfy the ohligations of the grant agreement.
» QOutcomes are the measures a program targets for effecting change.

A small but important distinction is that unlike outputs, outcomes cannot be targeted
directly. Program specific outputs vary because program-specific outcomes vary. Project
success is judged on delivered outputs, while program success is judged on effected

Tobacca Region Revitalization Commission - Page 15

~114-



outcomes.>

Every applicant to a program must clearly articulate and demonstrate how the
specific project relates to the goals of the program, what outputs shall be delivered,
when such outputs are delivered, and the anticipated effect of these outputs on the
outcomes targeted by the program.

Commission staff review and score submitted applications, The criteria used to score an
application are pre-established and program-specific, and have remained consistent over
the life of the Commission.

Commission staff prepare a report containing background information, an evaluation of
the financial viability of the proposed projects, and recommendations on each application
in the current pool and distribute the report to the appropriate committee for review in
advance of the next committee meeting. Although staff are neither members of the
Commission nor members of any committee, they are available before, during, and after
committee meetings to answer questions from applicants or members or the public.

If an applicant is awarded a grant, a grant agreement must be signed between the
Commission as the grantor, the awarded applicant as the grantee, and the final recipient of
the grant funds. Depending on the outputs of a project, the deliverables in the grant
agreement may vary within or between programs, Grant agreements are legally
enforceable contractual obligations between the signed parties. Every grant agreement
contains clauses that provide legal remedies, including in certain cases a clawback
provision, which may be exercised in the event of any unapproved use or misuse of
Commission funds, and /or outputs specified in the signed grant agreement not being
met by a specified point in time.

The grantee responds to interim assessments (surveys) on progress made toward
achieving the obligated outputs. Interim assessments are program specific. The
assessments are intended to provide the Commission with useful quantitative data on the
progress of the project toward completion. The Commission or Commission staff may, at
any time, request additional information from grantees.

A final assessment is done once a project is completed within the duration specified in the
grant agreement. A project is considered complete when the obligated outputs are met or
exceeded, or when the obligated outputs either have not or will not be met. In the event of
the latter, a clawback may be initiated by the Commission. Under no circumstances will
a final disbursement of funds be made to any grantee before Commission staff have
received, reviewed, and validated the final assessment from the grantee.

A project is closed once all documentation is received by the Commission and all
obligations are considered satisfied.

s In practice, it Is often difficult to Judge a program's sticcess on effected outcomes because of other exogenous effects on that same
outcome {e.g. lowering the unemployment rate). Examining the realized oulputs of a program over time is another way to Judge program
success. Howaver, this approach provides no information on the outcomes the program was Intentionally and specifically designed to
effact.

Tobacco Region Revitalizadon Comumnission - Page 16

-115-



Meeting Schedule. The Commission meets regularly three times each year, with various
committees having met in the weeks leading up to a full Commission meeting:

1. The Commission’s winter meeting shall be held in January, prior to the
convening of the General Assembly.

2. The Commission’s spring meeting shall be held in May or early June.

3. The Commission’s fall meeting shall be held in September or early October.

Any additional meetings may be called at the request of the chair, but the Commission has
a goal of accomplishing all of its annual business in its three regular meetings. Should an
unforeseen event like a global pandemic occur, meetings may be rescheduled at the
discretion of the Commission's chair.

With the passage of HB444 (regarding electronic meetings by public bodies] into law
during the 2022 General Assembly session, the Commission will evaluate the incorporation
of meeting via electronic means for some functions such as called meetings outside of the
regular meeting schedule.

Revolving Loan Fund - Operational Description. The Tobacco Commission was
authorized during the 2015 session of the General Assembly to set up a revolving loan
fund in partnership with the Virginia Resources Authority (VRA).6

This loan fund is the preferred funding option for any grant applications in support of
projects that are likely to generate sufficient recurring revenue to service loans. This
fund is distinct from the Commission’s business and community lending portfolio.

When grant or loan requests are made by localities, they are routed to the relevant
committee, and evaluated by Commission staff. Commission staff recommend to the
committee that the applicant receive no award, receive a grant in some amount, or be
reviewed for a loan up to some amount. Should the relevant committee, and then the full
Commission, choose to extend a loan, the applicant will be directed to VRA for a
creditworthiness evaluation. Upon completion of that evaluation, a loan will be extended
from the revolving loan fund in an amount equal to the lesser of the applicants’
creditworthiness or their loan offer from the Commission. Upon notice from VRA that a
loan will be extended, the amount of the loan will be deducted from the relevant
committee budget and transferred to VRA. In future years, when the revolving loan fund
has adequate resources from repayments, its funds will be allocated for the use of various
committees during the budget process.

When loan requests are made directly by businesses, Commission staff, in partnership with
VRA, shall determine the eligibility of the applicant business for a loan. If the applicant is
eligible and Commission staff support the making of a loan, VRA staff shall extend a loan
directly to the relevant business, and Commission staff shall take any measures necessary
to secure pledged collateral or other security necessary to protect the taxpayers.

6 The full statute and details can be found in the Virginia Code at § 3.2-3112 et seq.

Tobacco Reglon Revitalization Commission - Page 17

-116-



Data strategy. Data are an integral part of the Commission’s work, The Commission shall
view and treat data as an asset, and data are leveraged to create value for all stakeholders.
Through the collection of detailed grant and loan applications and ongoing grant and loan
assessments, the Commission acquires tremendous amounts of data about projects, the
region, and grantees within the region.

Ry making use of modern data analytics, the Commission can ensure strong ROl on its
activities while gaining and disseminating new insights into best practices and solutions
to region-specific challenges. As the Commission gains better insight into those
investments that yield the most return for the region, it will revise grant and loan funding
policies to reflect a preference for higher return projects,

The Commission shall create a clear, consistent, and objective set of criteria for what
constitutes successful projects in any funding area and apply these concepts throughout
the life of each grant or loan: application, management, and closeout.

The Commission is committed to objective metrics that are consistently recorded
throughout the life of any grant or loan. ‘

The Commission shall document comprehensive data management processes and
policies. The Commission shall establish a recurring review of these policies for accuracy
and workflow improvements,

Tobacce Region Revitalization Commission - Page 18

-117-



Appendix A:

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

Organizational Chart

obacco Gommissicn

Tobacco Reglon Revitalization Comunission -~ Page- 19

-118-



Comparison Document

2020-2022 and 2023-2025 Strategic Plans

“Section nln " Changes
Overview First Draft: Updated Service Area Map
Mission No changes in either draft
Vision No changes in either draft
Priotities First Draft: Section was previously calied “A New Approach.”

Minor editing to verbiage,

Funding & Strategic Priorities

No changes to either draft

Funding Priorities

No changes to either draft

1. Business & Community
Lending

First Draft: Minor editing to verbiage

Second Draft Version: Added underlined verbiage to make clear
the Commission intends the lending program to be a gap filler -
not a competitor to local community banks.

“Business and community lending: The Commission’s largest
budget fine Is directed toward community and business lending.
This approach increases access to capital in the region while also
contributing to the Commission’s financlal sustainability. This
program is funded via a full annual corpus invasion of 15%, less
any budgeted funds for grant making and administration. This
invasion improves the Commission’s fiscal position rather than
harm It, as loans are usually made at interest rates greater than
the yleld on the Commission’s assets within the State Treasury.
This increased lending activity will, in many cases, result In
awards consisting solely of loans whereas past guidellnes may
have resulted in a grant award. The Commission does hot intend
for its lending program to compete agalnst local community
banks, but to provide an alternatlve means of capital to prolects
that may not otherwise be a good fit for a local private lender.”

2, Education & Workforee
Development

First Draft: No changes to section

Second Draft Version: Added underlined verbiage as
alternative to prioritizing previous #8 priority, “Economic
Factors Affecting Regional Competitiveness”

“Education and workforce development: As the national and
global economies increase focus on human capital, the
Commission must continue to support the reglon’s efforts to
address economic competitiveness factors and ensure
employers can hire top-flight talent. This will remain a focus for
the Comimission as we believe it presents opportunity for high
return on Investment and supports long-term economic
growth.”

3. Agribusiness

No changes to either draft

-119-




4. TROF

First Draft: Eliminated reference to "Community Businhess
Launch” program

5. Industrial & Business
Infrastructure

First Draft Version: Replaced

“The Commission wiil continue to make grants and fcans to
suppott the creation and Improvement of industrial sites,
husiness locations, shell buildings, telecommunications, natural
gas, and electrical infrastructure to close this gap and ensure that
focalitles within the Commission footarint can compete
succassfully for projects.” with “The Commission will continue to
make grants and loans to support the creation and improvement
of industrial sites, business locations, and shell buildings to close
this gap and ensure that localities within the Commission
footprint can compete successfully for projects. Priority will be
given to projects that improve the readiness of sites already
under development within the region as opposed to the
acquisition and development of new sites.”

Second Draft Version: Restores reference to
telecommunications infrastructure {underlined language)

“The Commission will continue to make grants and loans to
support the creation and improvement of industrial sites,
husiness lacations, shell bulldings, and telecommunications
Infrastructure to close this gap and ensure that localitles within
the Commission footprint can compete successfully for projects,
Priority will be given to projects that improve the readiness of
sites already under development within the reglon as opposed
to the acquisition and development of new sites.”

6. Small Towns Initiatives

First Draft Version: New addition to plan

“The rural towns in the Tobacco Region serve as important
community focal points and economic centers. Due to changing
transportation and economic patterns, these rural communities
have faced acute challenges that are often reflected in
extremely low-to-medium household incomes, lack of well-
paying job opportunities, high rates of out-commuting by the
workforce and high building vacancy rates. The Commission will
make grants and loans to support capital investments in
downtown properties and entrepreneurial and business suppott
strategies, with the goal of encouraging the occupancy of
vacant, underutilized private buildings and creation/expansion
of technology and business service sector jobs.”

Second Draft Version: eliminates references to specific
strategies, which could be more fully addressed in program
RFPs and added info on projects the Commission desires to
support {underiined).

-120-




“The rural towns in the Tobacco Reglon serve as important
community focal points and economic centers, Due to changing
transportation and economic patterns, these rural communities
have faced acute challenges that are often reflected in
extremely low-to-medium household incomes, lack of well-
paying job opportunitles, high rates of out-commuting by the
warkforce and high building vacancy rates. The Comimnission
desires to support projects that focus attention on revitalizing
the footprints rural smail towns In a manner that supports local

and regional economic revitalization efforts that will atiract
outside capital investment in rural small towns.”

7. Community Assets and
Opportunities

First Draft Version; Restoration of Previous Priority

“Many rural areas in the Tobacco Region are fortunate to have
local natural resources and cultural assets with the potential to
develop Into tourist destinations. The Commission will make
grants and loans to cultural projects and tourism opportunities
that will create jobs, stimulate local business development, and
bring significant numbers of residents from outside the
footprint Into the region.”

Second Draft Version: eliminates references to tourism project
gualifications, which could be more specifically addressed in
program RFPs and added info on projects the Commission
desires to support {underlined).

“Many rural areas in the Tobacco Region are fortunate to have
local natural resources and cultural assets with the potential to
develop into tourist destinations. The Commission supports
natural and cultural asset prolects that are yegionally-impactful
and have the demonstrated potentlal to attract outside
investiments and visitors to the region.”

8. Economic factors
affecting regional
competitivenass

First Draft Version: Added

“The Commission acknowledges that the rising cost of childcare
and housing has created barrlers to attracting an adequate
workforce for rural communities seeking to attract economic
development opportunities. These quality-of-life challenges
require a creative approach to genarate a favorable climate for
business growth and human capital expansion In the region,
The Commission will consider supporting regional efforts that
address these Issues and have significant funding support from
other pubiic and private partners.”

Second Draft Version: This section has been struck and
replaced with an update to “2, Education and Workforce
Development”

Strategic Priorities

No changes In either draft.

-121-




Programmatic, capacity-
building, and project
development

First Draft: Eliminated in 2023 Plan, as priority has been
implemented.

Streamlined Committees

First Draft:

Heading replaced with “Commitiee Structure.” Replaced “In a
period of reduced budgets, dividing resources among too many
committees leads to small grant rounds with correspondingly
small cutcomes, As a result, the Commission will match
narrowed funding priorities with a reduction in the number of
committesas, The Commission will ereate a single committee for
each reglon that manages zll non-education grant-making and
fending while eliminating redundant committees including R&D,
Speclal Projects, Agribusiness, and Business Support
committees, and rolling their work into the new reglonal
commlitees, These two reglonal committees are not
continuations of the existing Southside and Southwest Economlc
Development committees — they will hear projects that would,
previously, have come befare some of the eliminated
committees, at the discretion of the chalirs. Additionally, the
executive committee will be simmed down to one that mirrors
executive committees of other organizations: it will consist of
the chairs of our committeas and the officers of the full
Commission, Each committee’s work is broken out Into one or
more loglc models, which can be seen at the end of this
document, that display the specific outputs supnorting each
programmatic goal. It is the goal of Commission staff to evaluate
projects, both before awards are glven and in follow-up, on how
well they meet the clear metrics laid cut in project outputs
when grants or leans are awarded. For more detal] on specific
metrics, please contact Commisslon staff.” With “The
Commission has five standing committees, with the option to
create new committees on an ad-hoc basis for special purposes,
All committees meet at the call of their respective committee
chairpersons. Most commiitees evaluate grant and loan
proposals from eligible applicants, as specified by each Request
for Proposal, These committeas make recommendations to the
overall Commission as to what projects should be funded, in
what amounts, and whether said funding should be in the form
of a grant or loan, Some commlittees are operational In nature
and recommend policy or process changes to the Commission.
The overall purpose and objectives of each committee Is
described below.”

Improved Fiscal
Management

First Draft:

Eliminated the following, as strategy has been implemented:;
“Focus on lending. In the past the Commission has relied on

grants as the primary means of supporting and Incentivizing

projects across the reglon. While this has resulted In positive
Impacts for the localities we serve, I has also resulted in the

-122-




slow drawdown of Commission funds to the point that the
Cemmission risks not being a financially viable entity within a
short number of years. That said, the Commission still retains a
slgnificant amount of capltal, It is critical that the Commission
use this capitat In the most efficient manner possible, and that
will largely mean lending, The Commission has the authority to
invade lts corpus for more than $20 million annually for the next
several years —rather than use these funds to make further
grants, which would dramatically deplete the corpus, the funds
will be set aside for making low, fixed-rate loans, At 4% return,
each year's corpus Invasion would yield at least $800,000 new
dollars per year, meaning millions of new doliars comlng into
the Commission per-year by year faur, At the same time the
Commission will expand lending activity beyond its current
stakeholders to Include business lending, when that business or
its principals have sufficlent assets to guarantee a loan or the
husiness’s locality or IDA/EDA will guarantee the loan. In the
past year, multiple businesses have approached the Commission
with purchase orders in hand, but without access to capital
sufficient to fifl those purchase orders, These businesses will be
ideal candldates for lending, and will make the business climate
In the Commission’s footprint aven more competitive relative to
the rest of the Commonwealth. Focus on lending, In the past
the Commission has relied on grants as the primary means of
supporting and Incentivizing projects across the region, White
this has resulted in positive impacts for the localities we serve, it
has also resulted in the slow drawdown of Commission funds to
the point that the Commission risks not being a financially viable
entity within a short number of years. That said, the Commission
stiif retains a significant amount of capital. It is critical that the
Commission use this capital in the most efficlent manner
possible, and that will largely mean lending. The Commlission
has the authority to invade Its corpus for more than $20 million
annually for the next several years — rather than use these funds
to make further grants, which would dramatically deplete the
corpus, the funds wili be set aside for making low, fixed-rate
loans, At 4% return, each year's corpus Invasion would vield at
least $800,000 new doliars per year, meaning millions of new
dotlars coming Into the Commissian per-year by year four. At
the same time the Commission will expand {ending activity
beyond its current stakeholders to Include husiness lending,
when that business or its principals have sufficient assets to
guarantee a loan or the business’s locality ar IDA/EDA will
guarantee the loan, In the past year, multiple businesses have
approached the Commisslon with purchase orders in hand, but
without access to canital sufficlent to flli those purchase orders.
These businesses will be deal candidates for lending, and will
make the business climate in the Commission’s footprint even

-123-




mare competitive relative to the rest of the Commonwealth.”

Commissicn Foundation

No changes to either draft.

investing in the Reglons

First Draft: ,

Eliminated due to strategy implementation: “Field offices. The
Commission's fleld office staff has multiple responsibifities
including grant management, metric tracking and grant
aversight, project development of prospective grant
applications, advising reglonai leaders on economic and
community development initidtives, and recently, tracking of
Commission assets, Moving forward, the Commission will better
utilize the field offices by increasing the focus of field staff on
project development and regional leadership. Field office
directors have seen more economic and community
development efforts in their respective regions than almost
anyohe in Virginia. Field staff have long been engaged in this
activity on an ad-hoc basis, but making these efforts a stated job
duty — and aliocating a specific percentage of fleld office
directors’ time for it — will bring them more closely into
alignment with local and reglonal economic development staff
and yield greater results. Along with this new focus on project
development, fleld staff will continue to evaluate projects as
they arrive and durlng performance periods. This core mission of
the grants team will continue with an increased emphasis on
thorough tracking of project metrics throughout the life of the
grants and ensuring that all relevant data are not just recorded,
hut entered Into the database In a manner that permits more-
detailed analysis, Fleld staff wili also directly monitor
Commission assets in the fleld. The Commission possesses
milllons in physical assets throughout the footprint and with an
Increased concentration on cataloguing and potentially
feveraging these assets good stewardship will be even more
important than it has been previously. Fleld staff will serve as
conduits to other state programs (VEDP, Port, DHCD, etc.) or
federal programs {EDA, ARC, SBIR, etc.) that may be beneficiai to
projects, but this has been ad-hoc, By training fleld staff in other
programmatic offerings, and setting aside staff time for advising
parther organizations, communities, and business prospects, we
can leverage our field staff expertise to bring more resources
into the region without expending Commission funds.”

Replaced “Regional Marketing and Development Efforts. The
Commisslon's reglonal marketing efforts, Invest Southern
Virginla and Invest Southwest Virginia, while distinct in
character, are both producing significant return for the
Cammission. Moving forward, the Commission will continue to
support these efforts, and will ensure continuity by
transitioning from a grantor/grantee relationship to a coniract

~124~




relationship, This has already been approved as relates to
Anwyl Cansulting and Invest Southern Virginia, and will be
reflected in the FY21 budget. The three-year grant period for
the team managing invest Southwest Virginia will be regarded
as a trial period, after which that effort could also be
transitioned to a renewable contract with the Commission, The
Commission will continue to seek partners to support funding
of these efforts.” With "Regional Marketing and Development
Efforts. The Commission will implament measures to assess the
value and productivity of its regional marketing efforts, Invest
Southern Virginia and Invest Southwest Virginia, The
Commission will also continue to seek partners to support
funding of these efforts to expand promaotion of economic
development opportunities in its geographical footprint.”

Program Qutcomes and Goals

First Draft:

Eliminated previous “all-inclusive” logic models and replaced
with logic models and outcomas specific fo investment
strategies,

-125-




Operations

First Draft:

Minor changes to “Program Design” section to bring to current
procedures.

NEW ADDITION to “Meeting Schedule:” With the passage of
HB444 {regarding electronic meetings by public bodies} into law
during the 2022 General Assembly session, the Commission will
evaluate the incorporation of meeting via electronic means for
some functions such as called meetings outside of the regular
meeting schedule,

Minor changes to “Revolving Loan Program” to bring to current
policies and procedures.

No changes to “Data Strategy.”

Organizatlona! Chart

First Draft: Updated to reflect current structure and positions,
and to eliminate staff hames.

Second Draft:

Updated to add dotted line reporting to the Commission for the
Executive Director,

-126-




Feedback Summary
2023-2025 Strategic Plan — Draft #2

Attachment 3

Note: Changes are listed by the comment number and name of organization providing feedback.

Section

Page

Changes

QOverview, Mission, Vision

3-4

No comments received.

Funding & Strategic Prioritles

45

12) SOVA REGIONAL ALLIANCE: Is the TRRCs role as laid out in state
code to sustain itself or is it to get its funds in the footprint for
positive impact? TRRC should reconsider whether loans should setve
as the Commission’s primary means of sustalnability.

Metrics for review of loan program success by addressing whether
grants decrease and loans reduced [s hot supported by localities —
localities are responsible for grant and loan losses,

Look at alternative revehue streams from grants and other funding
sources that could be leveraged to TRRC funded projects vs. using
existing commission funds that should be used on the footprint
localitles and limit grants that are already matched by localities—
TRRC staff is has excellent expertise to seek other alternative funding
that could be leveraged.

(14) SEC OF COMMERCE & TRADE: TRRC should consider all options
for financial sustainability — not just a heavy focus on lending over
grant making

1. Business & Community
Lending

{9} SCOTT CO. EDA: Lending program competes with local banks and
other lenders public & private [enders)

14} SEC OF COMMERCE & TRADE: In note about lending program
intent, consider revising to focus on expanding access to capital, not
crowding out private market sources.

2, Education & Workforce
Development

1) VDACS / SEC OF AG. & FORESTRY: often hear from livestock
farmers that there is a shortage of food animal ambuiatory
veterinarians - could TAP funding be utilized to help attract vets to
help with shortage of vets In footprint?

{2) SVHEC: If childcare and housing are to be supported, it should
he made clearer.

{3} FRANKLIN CO. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT: keep the first draft
version of this that specifically referenced childcare and housing

{11) VEDP: local and regional partners find very favorable — TRRC
abllity to inject capital into post-secondary institutions is critical
and allows flexibliity that it not possible through other state grants
or the traditional state budgeting process.

14) SEC OF COMMERCE & TRADE: wording edits to TAP goal -
revise to read: “...with the goal of incentivizing growth and
attraction of a qualified labor force and attraction of talent to the
Tobacco Region.”

3. Agribusiness

{1) VDACS / SEC OF AG & FORESTRY: see agribusiness logic model
comment,

4, TROF

{9) SCOTT €O. EDA: added competitive advantage of TROF remains
important to rural localities — grant portion is helpful, but the TROF
toan portion is not as helpful and is not being utilized as much as

~127-




intended. go back to just offering TROF grants (i.e. not splitting the
TROF incentive between % grant and ¥ loan)

{12) SOVA REGIONAL ALLIANCE: Evaluation of private taxable assets
by local Commissioners of Revenue is done different by localities —
TRRC should have a better process for evaluating capital assets (real
estate, M&T TPP) than solely relying upon CORs for final valuation.

5. Industrial & Business
Infrastructure

{(11) VEDP: VEDP is playing a larger role in funding the big sites of
100+ acres {and 50+ acre sites in GO Virginia regions 1 & 2) — TRRCs
should consider focus on funding smailer (under 50 acre} sites to
complement VEDPs focus on big sites. Additional, VEDP could also
collaborate with TRRC on co-investing in larger, high potential sites
to maximize impact

(12) SOVA REGIONAL ALLIANCE: industrial sites across region are
depleted and will limit future industry attraction — ensure funds are
available for assessing new sites as an important funding
mechanism and that the development of new sites be considered —
if not, it will impact regional competitiveness,

{13) DANVILLE: Are you moving away from developing new
industrial sites? What happens if a locality has needs for additional
sites because the stock is depleted? Localities are looking at
compiling more land for new industrial sites/parks because we
could run out of available sites before we can get new ohes
prepared to market.

6. Small Towns Initiatives

(2) SVHEC: Preference for the earlier description of the small town
Initiative from the first draft that was more specific. Also concerns
about the note ahout requiring outside capital investment in rural
small towns may not always be applicable.

10) VA DHCD: good compliment to the Va. Main Street program —
good opportunity for VIMS to cansult and work with TRRC staff on
development of program guidelines

{11) VEDP; TRRC's focus on small town revitalization is critical to
enhancing quality of life in the Commission’s rural footprint - long-
term investments improve the region & are essential for attracting
development projects

7. Community Assets and
Opportunities

(2) SVHEC: Concerns about the note about having demonstrated
potential to attract outside investments and visitors to the reglon
may not always be applicable and limit TRRC support

(11) VEDP: TRRC's focus on natural / cultural assets is critical to
enhancing quality of life in the Commission rural footprint — long-
term Investments improve the region & are essential for attracting
development projects

~128~




Economic factors
affecting reglonal
competitiveness

struck

(2) SVHEC: prefers Commission keep the more detailed description
of this from Draft 1 that specifically called out childcare and
housing. Not clear how childcare & housing will be addressed now.
{3) FRANKLIN CO. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT: keep the first draft
version of this that specifically referenced childcare and housing

(4) VA HOUSING: Current draft of Plan does not address workforce
housing — economic transformation cannot occur with places to live
and adding housing as a necessary component to mission and
strategy seems to be where other state economic development
entities are golng,

Committee Structure

(2) SVHEC: make sure committee names are clearly stated.

Improved Fiscal Management

(2) SVHEC: if eliminating this portion may want to consider
including wording for ongoing data collection, analysls and impact
of the implementation over the next 2-5 years

Sustainability

(12) SOVA REGIONAL ALLIANCE: is the TRRCs role as laid out in
state code to sustain Itseif or is it to get its funds in the footprint for
positive impact? TRRC should reconsider whether loans should
serve as the Commission’s primary means of sustainability,

Asset Management

10

No comments received.

Fund Development &
Commission Foundation

10

14) SEC OF COMMERCE & TRADE: Options such as this for bringing
in outside funding is worth exploring further.

Investing in the Regions:
Reglonal Marketing &
Development Efforts

11

(2) SVHEC: wording like this should be added to the improved fiscal
management section on page 9.

{12) SOVA REGIONAL ALLIANCE: make sure to consider regional
economic development offices for this, They would be more
effective to do this especlally in conjunction with VEDP and site
selection groups.

Program Outcomes and Goals;
Inputs, Activities & Participants;
Investment Strategies, Project
Outputs & Targeted Outcomes

11-12

14) SEC OF COMMERCE & TRADE: Overall in inputs, activitles and
participant boxes, make sure to include data, data analytics and
entrepreneurs.

Program Logic Maodels

13-15

{1) VDACS / SEC OF AG & FORESTRY: P. 13 agribusiness lopic model:
in first buliet of growing food processing facilitles — consider adding
encouragement for utilizing Virginia-grown agricultural products.
Providing value-added processing to agriculturai products is a worthy
investment for the area, but even more worthwhile when the
processing includes Virginia products in particuiar and especially
those from the tobacco commission regions,

Controlled Environment Agriculture is an important administration
priority — adding a bullet referring to CEA facilities is encouraged.
Aerofarms investment in Danville Is a great example of the impact
CEA can have in the region

Operations, Meeting Schedule

15-17

No comments recelved.

Revolving Loan Fund —
Operational Description

17

{6) Virginia Resources Authority: to ensure no conflict with 32,
3113 ¢, TRRC should consider revising the last paragraph of this
section to note that When loan requests are intended for private
husinesses, Commission staff, In partnership with VRA, shall

-129-




determine the eligibility and may extend a loan through a conduif
economic or industrial development authority. Commission staff
shall take any measures necessary to secure pledged collateral or
other security necessaty to protect taxpayers,

Data Strategy

18

No comments received.

Appendix A: Org Chart

i9

(2) SVHEC: consider including a version of the org chart with staff
names and on without. The dotted line showing the executive
director reporting to the Commission and a solid line to the
governot makes it uncltear who the position reports to.

General Comments

{1) VDACS / SEC OF AG. FOESTRY: mostly in keeping with the
administration priorities. If not specifically, at least in general in
creating investment and jobs in Southside and Southwest Virginia,
no-interest or low-interest loans is one way to provide for long-
term sustainability of the funds.

(5) GENEDGE ALLIANCE: TRRC may be better served by concentrating
its core mission, rather than continuing to expand services which
could result in a diminished set of returns.

With the transition In capital assets and business model, the plan
should show the historical and projected return on investing
activities as outlined.

important to analyze the ROl and market potential and consider a
plan that is focused on where the greatest opportunities for return
on investment are, and cohcentrate there,

(7) LUNENBURG CO.: retain prior southern Va locality allocation
amounts

{8) USDA RURAL DEVELOPMENT: TRRC orientation for partners
would be heipful

{9) SCOTT CO. EDA: use core southern & southwest focus group to
solicit plan feedback in future

{9) SCOTT CO. EDA: Dollar for Dollar match requirement for grants
is burdensome for rural localities should be less — look at what
other funding agencies do for match requirements for rural places

{10) VA DHCD: Plan seems to aligh well with DHCD programs

(11) VEDP; Interested in understanding how TRRC collaborates with
other state partners when considering strategic investments in the
footprint region. Lots of overlap with other VEDP, DHCD SBSD and
other programs that can contlnue to be tightened up to maximize
overall impact of state investments to generate greater economic
growth,

-130~-




FULL COMMISSION

-131-



» In-Person Meeting »

AGENDA

FULL COMMISSION
Homewood Suites by Hilton, Capital Ballroom
700 East Main Street, Richmond, VA 23219
Thursday, January 5§, 2023
11:00 A,M. - 12:15 P.M. — Orientation
12:15 P.M. — Regular Meefing

In accordance with §2.2-3708.3 of the Code of Virginia, public access for this meeting is being provided both in person and

through electronic communications means. Video will not be used for this meeting, only audio. The public may remotely

participate in this meeting by utilizing the following meeting link:
hitps://virginiatobaccocommission.my.webex.com/virginiatobaccocommission. my/L.php?MTID=m4c 1 9bbeaB37293b683eh494fdfe0¢eab1

If participating by phone, please dial:
1-408-418-9388 (toll) and enter meeting number: 2631 326 6747 and password: 78495872

If during the meecting clectronic transmission fails, the public may alert the Comuission by calling 804-894-9652 or
emailing jbutler@revitalizeva.org. If alerted to a transmission failure, the Commission shall recess until public access is
restored.

Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Frank Ruff, Chair

Call of the Roll

Orientation (11 am — 12:15 pm)
Approval of the_10/5/22 Minutes
Public Comment

Lducation Comtmittee

Strategic Planning Committee
Southern Virginia Committee
Southwest Virginia Committee
Hxecutive Committee

TROF & CBL Loan Updates
Other Business

Public Comment

Adjeurnment

My, Andy Sovrell, Acting Director
Mr. Andy Sorrell, Acting Director
(published on website)

The Honorable Kathy Byron, Chair
Mr. Ed Blevins, Chair

Mr. Walter “Buddy” Shelton, Chair
The Honorable Will Morefield, Chair
The Honorable Frank Ruff, Chair
Mr. Andy Sorrell, Acting Dirvector
My Andy Sorrell, Acting Director

-132-



000551 000°599°2$ 000'06¥'¥$ 66E°916'51ES el 174 syoafoid 30 # 6L0T AL
00072995 000'915'2$ 000'90L v 6LZ'PELGPZS 608k 6 s199f04d 10 # 0202 Ad
000°965°L8 000°0SYS 000'sr1 1S STYTVTVLLS 68 113 symafoid Jo # 1202 Ad
000'¢99°2$ 000°298% 000" 26215 96Z° LLO'EVLS st 2 syoafold Jo i ZZ0Z A4

0

$

005°9£6%

132ve0'ezls

2ok v

syoafold Jo #

{=1eD O} £20Z Ad

9Jep 0} €20¢ Ad - 6102 Ad
spiemy 4041

~133~



¢20c 03( sueo] 40dL

000"l 006'651 pasIngsip 8G oL -ouj ‘6id AVN Aunog AemopoN 210Z/9/9 8
00095 000'0¥L 61/81/9 Kresspuwoy Aaxeg andwig Aunog upuerd g1L0Z/6/01 18v¢
- pesungsig i : :

000°069 00009 pasingsip 2 01 O°T1 YosISE-] MOUEH fusoyny 8L0Z/SL/0L Z8ve
: Aoe fpmsnpu) [euoifay euRAASHid-slaueg

- 000'0EE paebiqosp 9q oL yoedold 19ss3 16 Ao alaueq SLOZZLIZE LOSE

000'86 000071 - %mw__o:mmﬁ 077 dedfiod Auoyny Juswdojeasq feLsnpu| AUNOD [essny| - 6LOZ/9/9 L0S€

000'6 000'G1L 0Z/1/ - pesIngsI 077 fremsig SISISIS USASS VA “Aunod syiipg Jo val juopn 6LOTIOSHY ee

000'02 $ [ 00008 $ _ %mmho:ﬂmﬁ 2T “subitsaq abpry anig Aunog oued 6L0Z/0S/Y SHEE

. . 1Z/97/6 ¢ Ruoyny

000'0.2 $ fooo'oLz % - pOSINGSIC P ‘g3 Aue.{ [egsnpy| RUcIBeN EUEAKSHId-SIIAUE] 6102/9/8 9g85¢e

009°6e ¢ | 008'vY g . uwwhﬁmﬁ 977 ‘SISUMEd [S10H SuO)Syoelg Jo umej ‘sucisyoelg LZ0%/ers 749¢

005°‘sy $ | oog'sy $ | pesmngsipagol, o711 ‘Bugeyep jeubiq sreuebay 10 A0 ‘efiueq 120z/8e/L ¥ELE

000's¥ $ |ooo'sy  § | pesingsipeq ol “ou} ‘UaneIeM Aoy VZ0Z/08S/Y ¥eIE
’ Ayoed fewmsnpu leucibsy elusaisid-ofiaued

00529 § 1005729 $ | pesmasip &g oL 71 PUnuiEg 10 A1 "UGLON 1Z02/6/6 L1BE

- $ | oos'or s | -pelebigosqg aneg 103l04d va3 Aluno) yaLined TE0ZIGLI9 69LE




009'9S°L 008222 STVIOL |
[1¢]
2]
T
. : LLIZZ6 ‘ Auouyiny
005y 000'et - pOSINGSIC 11 N Buipunod jo yieai Bul |, juslido[eAsq [elasnpu) AJUNog [ameze | L102/L21y 96Z¢
: ) gL/OLY Auoyny juswdonsq
Qoo'eEl £00'089 - PESINGSIC pojesodiou} suoeDIunULILo? [eBiC] Jesung SIUIOUGIT|BLISNPU] [IBMIZEL JO UMOL 110Z/1e/5 00ge
] . SLIL2/Y Jajusg umo | Auoymny
005'S 005 Ze - pasmaqgsiq yllgay BUL] Y4Q I ”m_E mEU::on_ 30 Ule@H BULL ] wcmEn_o_m>mQ |BuIsnpU| \ﬂc:oo UBUBLONG L10¢/Lic) €eee

¢c0¢ 93 sue0] 4041



-136-

[AAVAR L

sueoT weibold Buipua| ssouisng Ajunwiwio)

00059293 000°Ga2'0LS 000°G9.L°0LS STYLOL
220z Ae Ul paLnoDo busap o
USYM JACD) [B00] O} PASINASIP YHA sl oo000OYS piemy msucmmm;«ww\,ﬁoﬂm@ s N\MMMN 000'C0GFS sucpEaunwwoosE] | Auedwod eaud ool [e00|  LZ0Z/Z0/80 ELEE
"ZZ02 934 VA 01 p3singsip ueo ) —
Vo Aq JUSLIJG[@ASD BPUN $wlS] . ) SJUSRIN0Y B FRuEdan
ueOo] Ye] - ssavord u Bugumsapun 000°005% 000°005$ ey Buipusg - pasaiddy ael 000°00s% BAaWIOY ajealid MAuedwos aeaud LZ0efLiL) €E6E
“gsuodsal
Bugiemy “zz/61/11 weojdde g N N suauindog A deont|  Auedwos sreaud 408 o0
A1290] O} PIpIAGIG 198US WIS | UEC 000'S86°S$|  000°S86'9S| emy Buipua - penarddy aai 000°686'6S Aygepdsor ajeand gaob reoo|  ZZ0E/S/0) BLOF
"ZZIG/01 Parcidde UDISSILILIOD)
VeI Aq $58001d Ul BugLAISPU 000'0828|  000'08ZS| ppmmy Bupusd - panasddy aaL 000'082% ampongseyul|  Auedwod sieAud faoB oo|  ZZ0eEZE| €60




EIB(] 3UBLLIOPEY| e SauRULIONId papug
adl Bumannay Bupayien| poliad 3IUBULGHS] U ‘SSRi(Pes dg SN &TO0Z/TE/TT| ITOT/TE/TT L10E/9/¢ 99LE
o Pulzou pepul
5CLICLES Brrto'es| uswhed dwing dwin|  a3uBwIcnsd ||nd| poliad IIUBLLIGHSd U1 YIS YIA1enoN Auay TZ0Z/TE/ZT| 9TOT/0s/6| 9TO0Z/Z/TT SPZE
paINexa 18w 30U papuy
00°98T'TIS 06'265'5% 06'8LL9TS) ued wawheday| @vewLcpEd |nd|poMad sauBuIelTd OT1 ‘ovousha [930H|  piempa aaund 6L0Z/0E/9| 9TOZ/08/9| 9TOZ/0E/8 YTZE
ElE( BOUBULIONA| e1eq aDuRLMIOLRd papuy
Q8L Bupayreg Suusen|ponad aauzutiopad| (AN 13fold) Ul “SIASUILIEIN 1LY Aduay Te0Z/TE/E| 9TOT/IS/E|  9TOZfv/S LLTE
asal ElEQ @JUBULIOpad| EIEG JURGLIONA papuy IOAIBS PUE $A[2S JOfn ANig Asoyiny
Huuayes Aunayien | pouad 2ousuLIonad wswdoprag
|2HIEnBU|
Aunoz (pmaze
2Z0C/OE/E| STOT/0E/E| STOT/B/0T 30TE
sgasold Ul uopnoeExy|  ElRQ FRVRLLIOHA papuy
SE'EBR'SES 000% 9EEBE'SES ueld JuIwWAeday Fuimainay | poHad UULOUS U SHHAL JRISTVIIA UOSARID LYOT/TE/CT| YIOT/TE/TE]  STOE 92 Z00E
adl elE(] BOUBULIOMS[ 2IRe) adURLLIOND] papu3 {umog Aoyiny
Bulayien Supayien poyad IusuLiopad (¥ ded ([BH AeQ) sousnpY) jteH Jed wauidoEaag
IAiounsy
Azuno uoshets
TEOZ/0E/9| YTOZ/TE/ZT] STOE/SIft 6662
BUIRIPaI JO [0OL3S sljododusH
pa3n53xy paynsaxy papuy 30 88aj03 g uEIPaIN
000$ 060000845 00°000°084S) ued awAedoy|  ueld uBuAedaY |pouad aURULOMSd|pUS 30UBIDS 10} SI51UI) anpeIEaN] aJjinsuen] L10Z/08/6| vTOT/0E/6| YTOT/6T/TT 66T
szl sauewopad
pasiaal pajenodau
Jo suewaopad
Buiropuow
- ueg|d Juawiieda 18w ou papuy
agl pajenodan|  @ousuniopad |Ind|poyad sdueusiouad AT 'ANH0IF NYIHOV IVddY [|9ssry 210Z/08/s|  pTOZ/0E/9 YIOT/T/8 §2:T4
(Fuadssy
paINIaxa =il 10U papuy|  Dgv o1 Auedwoo sasis e S| s1y)
£0°000°0SS 00'000°0sS 00°000'00TS ueld JuawzAedsy| doueULONRd ||N]|POUA ADURULIOHI] 2u] ‘Buanag, 1200 7 1se0) dinguaum] BI0Z/TE/E| YIDZ/TE/E yIOT/S/S 759C
[1950H
BIE(] @OUBRLLIOHSd| ElRQ SsuRwLiDMSd papug SuOisSas W 1/5[@0H anbinog
asl Fulages Jugialen | poiad a0UBULIOLSY 3ARRRL) B{E}DTE j01sUg HED 10351 TZOT/TE/CL| ET0T/TE/TT| vI0T/SE/e 0S8Z
suLB) AR 13 10U papuy
00°C68°TVS 0O8OI LTFS 00°000°09FS dunenocdaN| @surwacpwd (nd|poiad IIUBLLICHS "I UIBIUNG[Y BiMag oI5 LI0T/TE/TT| ETOT/TE/TT|  $IOT/VT/T 8T
P3N 12l 10U papug oM
QO EEE'EYS 00°£99'98% 00'000°0ETS uejd wawAedsy|  9auewiepsed Ind| poyad susuLIops| “AZolouyda] PO URILBLIY YLION afjiaueq] groz/os/o| erav/oe/a| EToT/ET/s
Auueliey eday pEgMeDy QLY STEIS ddyr -

ZZ0Z "06(] SPOLISd S0UBLLIOLIS PAPNIUOD UM SO L SAIOY

-137-



- < S - S B3R IUBULIQLEIEE  BlBQ SJUSLLIOND papuzi 2ul “sTriedee) uoginog spsAsds: Atoyiny
Huyaylen Suuayien |polay SyUBULICHR] pHETI [VERET]
JIQUOIY
Auno) ylhws Z0zfoef9| BYOZ/OE/| 8TOY/LL/L 18%E
B3R SIUBLLIOUS| B32Q SDURULIOUIY papug
0008 06'0057TS) 00"00SZTS Sumainay Funayien| poliad 22UBULIOLIRd SIBWAICE JINY MBN vdijoue) Teoe/Le/e|  8TOZ/IE/E| STOT/BE/S L1vE
paINIAX papuz om
00'000°sZIS 00°000°SZ1S 00°000°05Z$| Amdnnjueq-inejsa|  veld uswArday pOLSg ATUBLLIOLS|  ‘S1oNpoid Jaquul dof Wienow noxg 0ZOT/TE/TT| LIOZ/IE/TT| gLOT/iT/E FZYE
pinQ vaUeUOEd| B8 SJUBLLIONId pepua
3214 BumaInay BuLIBYIED | PONIJ FIURLLICHD OT7 ‘sucnisinboy Asjeq Auned pAsid Tzor/ie/en| Lroefre/e|  SroT/eee 90%E
gle(] SqUeULIQN3 2ieq 3aueluioad papuy
gl BUMAIAY Zunaylen | polad S0UsLLONSd uoln APRL edng|  Auno) uipuery nzoz/TE/e| L10T/TE/TT]  B10T/1e/T SOVE
E1EQ SPUBULIONI £le adUBULIOLA papul 30
adl] Suimatnoy Bupaipen (pouad sousULIoLad U] s93IALag Uonely Y| Auno3 ‘piogpeg TE0Z/TE/LT| L1oe/ie/er| gtoe/se/t SBEE
adL meg SIUeLtioNad| EBlBG 9JUBLLIOHD pIpg “ay] ‘|euoiIBUIaIU] JOYIWY Aunoy
Suusien Juus\ien | poiad Soueuiiapay eruealAsiild
ZTOZ/0E/s|  LTOZ/0E/6] LT0T/9T/CT PEEE
pleq SUBLLIQNa | EIRG SBUBWIOISd papul 13U UMQL YIjeay BULL YEQ
agl Surmatnay Suusipen | popad ssuewiopad| DT A BUIPUNC O LajeaH BuLL ueueyong Qz0Z/08/6| LI0T/08/6] LI0L/LITT £6EE
a8L ®1e(] 2OUBLLIONId| EBIB(} SDURLILIOUS papuy YAl [ned "1§ 9/ JT1 S| JO UMOL “INEd IS
Mﬂ.cm_.—umw mcﬁmﬁ.mw polad eaUeuLIOlad
renzfoefs|  LTOT/OS/6]  LTOT/L/TE SLEE
- S 3 - ¢ | InoAed asuewniopad el papuy "37177 AORL UGS Ayoqiny
-jsod uo Supiom|  souswnOSd (Ind| PO BIUBULIONIY Ajiced jeuisnpu]
[euoiFay
e[ueaisnld
-3jpaueq
TCOZ/OE/s| LTOT/NE/6]  LTI0T/ST/8 TrEE
J=tu 10U papu3z amn
05 viri'58% 0555528 0C°000°2565 anpuswAedey]  ddueuiopsd ||nd|podad ueulopad|  ‘saidojouyoal Suleas onrAGUU] xopnewoddy QT0z/oE/9| LroT/OE/e] L1I0T/TT/E 1473
souewdopad| eleg doueLiONa] papy3 pazeJodiod]
0008 0008 00°0% [N pawLiua) Fumalasy |pousd soueuniopad| sucnenumuwe) eyl 18sung llemaze) DZOZ/TE/E| L10E/TE/E|  £10T/18/S) 00EE
T100] PIUBLIOHS| E38(] SoUBNLIONS] papuy
agL Buimaiasy Buliayien | poldad soueuniouag| 377 T SUIpuUnod Jo YljesY Bull |{3mazel oCuzZ/Tefe| LTOZ/TE/El  LIQT/LT/Y 96TE
“pRIIANS "paINIAX3 papu3 “ou] (40 umc])
0o'es 00°000°01S 0 D00 0TS ugid Jusuriedsy|  uejd WswAedsy |palsg BOUBLLIONSG|  BILIBWLY JO SOUBLLIOLIA] PINbIT [ sauoog OTOZ/TE/S| LIOT/IE/E| LI0T/vEfv
7 | preden pegmen | 7 Emyels poue . STRCCYF P BCS .

2207 "990 SPOLI9d SOUBULIOHSH PSPNIOUOD UM SHO¥.L SAIOY

-138-



qal efu e/ufpuaciddy uoisuapg U[ ‘SSR|D $534d Aduay £20z/0c/0| ®IOT/OE/9| sTCZ/ST/L 9LpE
Alup BULIBYS INU3ADY U IBSINGSIP papul
0008 00°0% 0008 Buyssa01d| potiad S0UBWIOMDd openby| Wl XejleH 0Z0Z/TE/TT} LI0Z/IE/TT| 8T0T/se/L) §SE
AJug Buneys snuaaay pEDT; papu3| ou| ‘aferedoo] Bogqunog Jpisiady {74Ims)
saueiulogad {|nd| polad 2IUBNLIONS3 fuoyqiny
seryed
{BLIsTpU;
Jeuoiday
ucidurysepn
00'0% 0003 0003 -yahwg 1z0Z/osfe| sTOZ/oEfe| sToz/Lv/
e - - e — - — - TEvEE

2207 "09( SPOLIdd SOUBULIOLS PAPNIOUCD UM SJOXL SAROY

-139-



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

Financial Summary
As of October 31, 2022

TICR Fund Balance $ 237,289,259
Restricted Endowment Balance $ 75,076,441
Unrestricted Endowment Balance $ 46,108,311
$
$

Restricted Endowment Accum Interest 2,546,903
Unrestricted Endowment Accum Interest 262,231
Total Cash & Investments $ 362,184,143

Cash Dlsbursements - this month $ 1,123,268
Cash Disbursements - FYTD $ 6,193,032
Fund Unohilgated Balances
Edugation $ 1,820,708
Education-Workforce Training $ 2,432,053
Education-TAP $ 3,600,000
TROF (Deal Closing) $ 20,062,518
Southside Economic Development $ 15991623 .
Southemn Va Commiitee $ 16,161,863
Southwest Va Committea $ 7,278,736

Megasite Prospect incentive $ 17,375,889
Lending Program $ 74,438,458
Administration $ 2,091,659
TICRC General Account $ 2,702,307

FY2023 Budget Balance $ 165,550,462

41/30/2022

—-140~



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Cash Basis)

REVENUES
Other Revenue (all cost codes)
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Administration
Salaries, Fringe Bensfits, Per Diems
Coniractual Services
Supplies and Materials
Transfer Payments
Rent, Insurance, Agency Sve Charges
Furniture and Equipment

Subtotal - Administration $

Community Revitalization
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In {endowment and earnings)

CASH BALANCE, Juna 30, 2022
CASH BALANCE, October 31, 2022

As of Oclober 31, 2022

YTB Actual
as % of Varianee Favorable
FY23 Budget YTD Actual Budget {Unfavorable)}
$ = $ 499 962.36 499,962.36
$ - $ 499,962.36 $  499,962.36
$ 1,523,050 $ 412,824 .45 271%  $1,110,225.55
514,800 161,169.57 31.3% 353,730.43
4,500 947.92 21.1% 3,652.08
416,680 5,235.24 1.3% 411,444.76
208,300 42,299.34 20.3% 166,000.66
10,500 822,75 8.8% 9,577.25
2,677,930 $ 623,399.27 23.3%  $2,054,530.73
33,075,889 5,569,632.67
$ 35,753,819 $ 6,193,031.94

$ (35,753,819)

$ 37,699,350

$ 242,082,328

$ (5,693,060.58)

% -

$ 242,982 328.28

$ 244,027,859

$ 237,288,258.70

-141-

11/36/2022



VIRGINIA TOBACCO
COMMISSION

STANDING COMMITTEES

~142-



VIRGINIA TOBACCO REGION REVITALIZATION COMMISSION

Commission Committees
{rev. 11/1/2022)

EDUCATION COMMITTEE

The Hon. Kathy Byron, Chair

The Hon, L. Louise Lucas, Vice Chair
Ms. Gretchen Clark

Ms. Amanda Cox

Mr. Joel Cunningham, Jr.

Ms. Sandy Ratliff

The Hon. Frank Ruff, Jr.

The Hon. Gary D, Walker

The Hon, William C. “Will” Wampler, 1li

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Hon. Frank Ruff, Jr., Chair
The Hon. James “Will* Morefield, Vice Chair
The Hon. Leslie R. “Les” Adams
Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins

The Hon. Kathy Byron

Ms. Julienne D. “Julie” Hensley
The Hon. Terry G. Kilgore

The Hon, L. Louise Lucas

The Hon. Daniel “Danny” Marshall
The Hon. T. Jordan Miles, Il

Mr. Walter H. “Buddy” Shelton

INCENTIVES AND LOANS COMMITTEE

The Hon. Daniel “Danny” Marshall, Chair
The Hon. Terry G. Kilgore, Vice Chair
The Hon. Leslie R. “Les” Adams

Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins

Ms. Gretchen B, Clark

The Honorable Stephen Cummings

Ms. Coley Jones Drinkwater

The Hon. T. Jordan. Miles, Ili

The Hon. Joseph D. “Joe” Morrissey
The Hon. William A. “Will” Pace

The Hon. Frank Ruff, Jr.

-143-

SOUTHERN VIRGINIA COMMITTEE

Mr. Walter H. “Buddy” Sheiton, Chair
The Hon. T. Jordan Miles, Iii, Vice Chair
The Hon. Leslie R. “Les” Adams

The Hon. Kathy Byron

Mr. Joel Cunningham, Jr.

Ms. Coley Jones Drinkwater

Mr. Watt R, Foster, Jr.

Mr. Richard T. Hite, Jr.

Mr. Jay D. Jennings

The Hon. L. Louise Lucas

The Hon. Daniel “Danny” Marshall

The Hon. Caren Merrick

The Hon. Joseph D. “Joe” Morrissey
The Hon. William A. “Will” Pace

The Hon. Frank Ruff, Jr.

SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMITTEE

The Hon. James “Will” Morefield, Chair
Ms. Julienne D, “Julie” Hensley, Vice Chair
Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins

Ms. Gretchen B. Clark

Ms. Amanda Cox

The Hon. John S. Edwards

The Hon. Terry G. Kilgore

The Hon, Matthew Lohr

The Hon. William A. “Will” Pace

Ms. Sandy Ratliff

The Hon. William C. “Will” Wampler, Ili
Ms. Sarah L. Wilson

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE

Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins, Chair

The Hon. Leslie R. “Les” Adams, Vice Chair
The Hon. Kathy Byron

Ms. Gretchen B. Clark

Ms. Julienne D. “Julie” Hensley

The Hon. Matthew Lohr

Mr, T. Jordan Miles, I

The Hon. William C. “Will” Wampler, Il



